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DEFINITIONS
Bx

In this annual report, unless the
context otherwise requires, the
following expressions shall have
the following meanings:

“2021 AGM”
ZE I —FREBAFAE]

“AGM”
[RRBFEAEZ]

“Angame”

[Angame |

“ARPPU”

[ARPPU

“Articles”
[AEE=F248) ]

“Audit Committee”
[BEZZEE

“Board Committees”

[EFZBg

“Board of Directors” or “Board”

==

“BVI”
[REELHS ]

ERFERA - BXEZBREIN > TIFAEEBEUTEE

the AGM to be held on June 2, 2021
ARRER_ZE-_—F XA HRETHREBEFAE

annual general meeting of the Company

AAFHBRBFRE

Angame Inc., a company incorporated in the BVI with limited liability on July 5, 2005,
which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
—FR_ZERFLARREEBEARSTMRINERAF - BARRFE

Angame Inc.

2 EMBLRR

average revenue per month per paying user, which represents our revenue recognized
for a particular game, a particular type of games or all of our games, as applicable, in the
period divided by the number of paying users of the game, the type of games or all of our
games, as applicable, in such period
BENERFERATHRA - H—FEE - —REESERMMEEE (ER) R —ERAMAMR
ROV - BRAZREERL - R R M AR (nER) N BRAnNERF &8

the memorandum and articles of association of the Company as amended from time to
time
KR AEE RS 7T AR A = 12 A48 K2 48 A

the audit committee of the Board
EEgBTERZES

the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
EREZET  FWEZEGRIEREES

the board of Directors of the Company
ZN/NSIE: =

British Virgin Islands
HERLHS

@ Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2020



DEFINITIONS (Continued)

B (&)

“Beijing You Lai”

[ b5k |

“Beijing You Tang”

b |

“CG Code” or “Code”
[{EEEEFRIZ =7 A ]

“China” or “PRC”

[FE )

“Company”, “our Company”,

» o«

“Digital Hollywood”, “Group”,

» o« n o«

“our Group”, “we”, “our” or “us”

[ARAR] - [ERES] -
ENSE NN

“Controlling Shareholder(s)”

[ R AR ]

“COVID-19 Outbreak”
[COVID-19% 15

Beijing You Lai Information Technology Company Limited* (1t Rz (s BRI AR A F), a
company established in the PRC with limited liability on November 14, 2014, which is an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

ERBHRERMRBERAR  — KR _T—NF+—ATEHBEFBEXNZINERAR - BEAR
AINEEEENE QR

Beijing You Tang Information Technology Company Limited* (It R#EE{EERHEER L
A]), a company established in the PRC with limited liability on July 17, 2015, which is an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

BRBEZEEMBRERAR  — KR ZE—AFtAT+HHAERBKINERDR - AERQE
B 2 E B Q)

the “Corporate Governance Code” as contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

LR BT ERHIUAT R A [ R ER ST

the People’s Republic of China, which for the purpose of this annual report and for
geographical reference only, excludes Hong Kong, Macau Special Administrative Region
of the PRC and Taiwan

PEARLANE - ERAFHRIMBIRAME - TRESE  RFISHIITREREE

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited (##E &)LE AR A E)*), a company incorporated
under the laws of the Cayman Islands with limited liability on November 24, 2014 and
except where the context indicated otherwise (1) our subsidiaries and (2) with respect to
the period before our Company became the holding company of our present subsidiaries,
the business operated by our present subsidiaries or (as the case may be) their
predecessors

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited 3 B B)EEBRAF) — KR _T—NF+—A=
TUEBEFEREEZTMRINERATE - UERBRXESEREN - (1YEMOHERE R
R)BERERRKASREMBARINZERARANBENE - aRAMB AR (RIERME)
HAT G RRMMEENER

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules and unless the context requires
otherwise, refers to Mr. LU Yuanfeng, Ms. LUO Simin, Mr. HUANG Guozhan, Mr. HUANG
Deqgiang, LYF Digital Holdings Limited, Angel Age Limited, LXT Digital Holdings Limited
and HDQ Digital Holdings Limited

BEELWRAFMETHRE  BXEZBMEN  BEERELEE  BREHLL  FZEEE
4~ HE58 5 A - LYF Digital Holdings Limited * Angel Age Limited * LXT Digital Holdings
Limited J2HDQ Digital Holdings Limited

the outbreak of the novel coronavirus
FAEMRRESHLEE

BHREBHEEERAT

T - TEFR @
.|.
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DEFINITIONS (Continued)

B (&)

“Director(s)”

[E%]

‘FY2019”
[TZ-NBMBFE]

“FY2020”
(T2 -ZMRFE ]

“Guangzhou SYND”

[BEM R AR

“Guangzhou You Lai”

“Guangzhou ZYK”

)Hfﬁﬂﬁﬁl

“HK$” or “Hong Kong Dollars”

[T

“Hollywood BVI”

[Hollywood BVI ]

“Hollywood HK”

[Hollywood HK

the director(s) of the Company or any one of them

AAREEHIEPERN—BES

the year ended December 31, 2019
BEZ-NAFT_A=+—RHIFE

the year ended December 31, 2020
BE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—RHIFE

Guangzhou Suiyue Niandai Software Technology Company Limited* (/5% A FEREF
B AR A7), a company established in the PRC with limited liability on June 12, 2010,
which is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
BMNEAFRBUEREAERAR  — KRR ZE—ZTFNATHEFREKIHNERAR - /A
ANRAMEEE2ENB AR

Guangzhou You Lai Information Technology Company Limited* (E/I#&3H(EER AR A
A]), a company established in the PRC with limited liability on May 13, 2015, which is an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

BMEREEREAERAT  — KRR ZE-—AFHEAT=AEFEXIHNERAT - HAAA
M2 EHE Q)

Guangzhou Zhang Ying Kong Information Technology Company Limited* (Bl Z&mi%{E 5
B ABRAR]), a company established in the PRC with limited liability on March 6, 2013,
which is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
BNERZEEEREARAG  —FRZE—=F=ZANBEFEKINERAR » AAAHE
MEE2EH B AR

Hong Kong Dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BEREEEREET

Digital Hollywood International Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI with limited
liability on November 25, 2014, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
Digital Hollywood International Limited * —RR =T —WNF+— A+ A EABERES
FMEZHERAT - AARFENEEMEBRF

Game Hollywood Hong Kong Limited, a company established in Hong Kong with limited
liability on December 5, 2014, which is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company

Game Hollywood Hong Kong Limited " XA -Z— NS+ - AR BRAEBEBRIHNERA
A RARAINREELEMEB R

@ Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2020



DEFINITIONS (Continued)

B (&)

“Hong Kong”
(&%

‘HTML5”

[HTML5 |

“IFRS”

[ B B 75 e o5 R
‘IPO”

[BRDFEE]

“Listing”
[ £

“Listing Date”
[ E HH7 ]
“Listing Rules”
[ Em#R 8]

“MAUS”

[EAERAF]

“Model Code”

Esrs)

“Nomination Committee”

ML Eg]

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PEFBFRITH R

hypertext markup language 5, the fifth and current major version of the hypertext markup
language standard; used for structuring and presenting content on web pages and for
creating web applications

FEAMBYFRLES  BXFRLETFENERRRBANEERE : ARERE HZ
RERAE - ReRBEEAER

International Financial Reporting Standards

BB 5 $R 22 A

the initial public offering of the Company, having become unconditional in all aspects on
December 15, 2017
ERFEEAEEER  ARAAR_Z—tF+ A THBETHNERARHEES
the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

P ) FE RS 22 P AR 7

December 15, 2017, on which the Shares were listed and from which dealings therein

were permitted to take place on the Stock Exchange
—tF+ZR+HA - ARG AT BTN B R R T TTE E A H A

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (as amended from

time to time)

B 22 PrE 5 £ AR Bl (I NERHERT)

monthly active users, which refers to the number of individuals who login to a particular
game in the relevant calendar month; average MAUs for a particular period is the average
of the active users in each month during that period

BRERBPHE HBEAMEAANEHFEEENAY  REEHHENTHEAERAFEE
ZHE S AERBE A

the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

ETRAIMER T PAE LW BETABRETESRIZNRETA ]

the nomination committee of the Board

EEgBETREEZES

EREHEEBRL

.|.

R _TFFR @
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DEFINITIONS (Continued)

B (&)

“Now To Play Game”

[Now To Play Game]

“Now To Play Game (Spain)”
[Now To Play Game (FE¥IZF) |
“Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”
[ERAFESRERETS

“Prospectus”

[HERER]

“Qianhai Huanjing”

[RIE 4] ]
“Remuneration Committee”
[FMEZES |

“RMB”
AR

“SDK”

[SDK]

“SFO”

[5& 7 KRG D]

Now To Play Game Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability on
March 29, 2011, which is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

Now To Play Game Limited - —XR-Z——F=A -+ NLBEEEEMKINBRAA
REARFNEZEEZEMNB QR

Now To Play Game Sucursal En Espafia, a branch office established in Spain on July 24,
2014 by Now To Play Game, which is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
Now To Play Game Sucursal En Espafia © —ZHiNow To Play Game X —ZT—F+ H —
THEERRTR LMD XHEE - RARFNEELEWNBE AR

the share option scheme conditionally adopted by the Company on May 27, 2017
ARRAR ZE—HFHA -+ HB G RGNERERT S

the prospectus of the Company dated December 5, 2017
AARABHAZZT—tF+ - ARAMNBRER

Shenzhen Qianhai Huanjing Network Technology Co., Ltd.* (FIIT RIS ERER AR
7x|]), a company established in the PRC on July 12, 2015, one of our game developer
partners and a fellow subsidiary of 7Road Holdings, a substantial shareholder of the
Company

RNNTANE L RBEBEARAT  —RRZE—AFHATZBEFREKIHLA - AEAM
ERREERH —RELREERORRMBEAR - AARFANEERE

the remuneration committee of the Board
EESBTHFWEES

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

REAE AR

software development kit, typically a set of software development tools that allows the
creation of applications for a certain software package, software framework, hardware
platform, computer system, video game console, operating system, or similar development
platform

PHREEHe  —RAE—HERHFEETIAR  UREEEMHE  MHER #EHTae  EWR
B REBEEK  BRIERRSEUNRE T a2 EARER

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
BEEOIESTIEZH REE R - K TRHER] ~ R s A B 75 Sk

@ Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2020



DEFINITIONS (Continued)

B (&)

“Share(s)”
[tn |

“Shareholder(s)”
A5 |

“Shenzhen 7Road”

RYIEEAE ]

“Stock Exchange”

B 52 A |

“U.S. Dollars”, “USD” or “US$”
Eg

“/R”

[EHEE ]

“7Road”

[FELKiE]

“7Road Holdings”

[EERBER]

w7
[%]

*  For identification purposes only

ordinary share(s) of US$0.001 each in the share capital of the Company
RABRAHFAREEO0.001 5= 7T H) E AR

holder(s) of Shares

[ESUESEE N

Shenzhen 7Road Technology Co., Ltd.* (FIIELAERIFLAERRAT),
established in the PRC on January 22, 2008, one of our game developer partners and a

a company

fellow subsidiary of 7Road Holdings, a substantial shareholder of the Company
FRYBLREMBARLA  —FZR _EEN\F-A- T - HERFBRKRINLAR - BRIk
BREEBH 2 —RBELRNEBERORREMB AR RARRNEZRR

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBMARSAERAT

United States Dollars, the lawful currency of the United States

XBEEERRET

virtual reality, a computer technology that uses certain equipment to generate realistic
images, sounds and other sensations that simulate a user’s physical presence in a virtual
or imaginary environment

ERER  EAETREREREREREREINERIIENRED  EMELZEEY
& BENHEMEE 2 BRI

7Road Holdings and its fellow subsidiaries
BLREZERIERAMNBAT

7Road Holdings Limited (5t K& BRAF*), a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability on September 6, 2017, a substantial shareholder of the
Company
FLREZERERRE]
AN EERR

—RKRZE-EFNAANAEREREEMRINERAF - AERQ

per cent.
AL

*ERES

PEHREBHEEGRART T _TFEFIR 0

+
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CORPORATE PROFILE
~EEFR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS EEg

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. LU Yuanfeng (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) FERE L& (LEFEEHNTE)
Mr. HUANG Guozhan EHEESE

Mr. HUANG Degiang H=EREE

Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES

Ms. Imma LING Kit-sum BRI L

Mr. LI Yi Wen FRNEE

Mr. LU Qibo EROR

COMPANY SECRETARY DNAEIME

Mr. YU Ching Ming (resigned with effect from December 11, 2020)
Ms. FOK Po Yi (resigned with effect from February 2, 2021)
Mr. WONG Wai Chiu (appointed with effect from February 2, 2021)

RIBREE (BT -FTF+=F+—HEFT)
EBRUt (BT - —F_— - HEET)
ERBAE (AT —F-_A-HHEEZ(F)

REAER
R S

EERLT (A =—F=-—4&=H = HEFF)
ERBEE (AT —F-H-HHEEZT)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. LU Yuanfeng
Ms. FOK Po Yi (resigned with effect from February 2, 2021)
Mr. WONG Wai Chiu (appointed with effect from February 2, 2021)

AUDIT COMMITTEE BREEY
Ms. Imma LING Kit-sum (Chairman) ERLT LT (F/E)
Mr. LI Yi Wen BRXEE

Mr. LU Qibo ERUKE &
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FNEES
Mr. LI Yi Wen (Chairman) TR E (EFE)
Mr. LU Yuanfeng R R & 5 &

Mr. LU Qibo & RO St
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZES
Mr. LU Yuanfeng (Chairman) REIRIE 5 & (F/E)
Mr. LI Yi Wen TR GE

Mr. LU Qibo ERUK T4

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2020



CORPORATE PROFILE (Continued)

DNAREHR (&)

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants and Registered PIE Auditor
22/F, Prince’s Building

Central, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

2nd Floor, No. 368 Jiang Nan Da Dao (South)
Haizhu District

Guangzhou

The PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

11/F, Tai Sang Bank Building
784 Nathan Road

Kowloon

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
2/F, 673 Nathan Road

Mong Kok, Kowloon

Hong Kong

BBVA Compass Bank
Plagca de Tetuan, 26
08010, Barcelona
Spain

HONG KONG LEGAL ADVISER

P.C. Woo & Co.
12th Floor, Prince’s Building
Central Hong Kong

B

BEF KBRS

HESHI LAMARF ST B
BEPIR

KFKRE2212

AN EE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

RBRPEEEEF R

+

&I

Bk
TTFAABR3685E —

BRIEEXRME

BB

NEE

TRHET84 55
RERITRE111E

FEFRET
BB LBELZET
BE

BETA
WECE6T35E 212

BBVA Compass Bank
Placa de Tetuan, 26
08010, Barcelona
Spain

EREERER
B2 RMEEA
EBPIR
KFRE121E

PEHREBHEEGRART T _TFEFIR @

+
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CORPORATE PROFILE (Continued)
ARER (&)

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
Stock Code: 2022

WEBSITE

www.gamehollywood.com

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2020
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Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

BERMDBFER

BEBEHFERLRER AR
BE

(T
EREKREER1835
AR L541E

% 04K 55%
AR - 2022
#8uh

www.gamehollywood.com
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MILESTONES

BiE®

Year Events
F15 X0
2010 . Our founders became the beneficial shareholders of our first operating entity, Guangzhou SYND
—T-EF o BAMAIRAKARMEREEERENRAFRNEZRE
2011 . The first overseas subsidiary was established to develop overseas operation
T o KUBE-RBINERRIAERGINET
2012 . Launched multiplayer web game Wartune with an exclusive license for overseas publishing in English-
speaking markets
T F « BEHEMRBEESWartune - WA TRETIZHIBER BINETE
2013 . We were granted the “Facebook’s Excellent Game-Advertiser Award”
—T—=F « BB Facebook B F e EIE S £ K2
. Wartune was granted the “Facebook Staff Favorites Recognition”
. Wartune #78 % [ Facebook 8 T = & #7 /8, 4% |
. Launched Stallion Race on Facebook
. 7 Facebook# i Stallion Race
. We were granted the “Best Overseas Publisher Award” by 7Road
c BRRERYELRBRE [ RESIMNEBETRAE]
2014 . Established Now To Play Game (Spain) as our liaison office in Europe
—T—ME «  BK3iZNow To Play Game(Fa ¥t 7T ) {E BB AFIERBUM BB A& B F R
2015 . Launched several successful casual shooting games, including a special edition featuring sports figures
and scenes licensed from Barcelona Football Club
—Z—hfF o BEMBUARIOABSTREE - BENADEESRIKEREENZEAY RS ENERINR
2016 . Launched our cross-platform Wing SDK
S NGS «  EMETEWing SDK
. Entered into the VR market with our investment in a VR studio in China
o BRREPE-ZFRERERRELNR  EBERERETS
2017 . Launched Lord of Star, a mobile game in cross-platform format on Gameroom
—T—+F « P Gameroom# M5 T &&= B FHIERILord of Star

Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 2022) on December 15, 2017

BOR-E—tF+ - A+AREMIMEREH (RHARE - 2022)

EREHEEBRL

—T_THEFR @
.|.
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MILESTONES (Continued)

=346 )

Year Events
F15 X0
2018 . French, German, Polish and Turkish versions of Dragon Awaken were launched successively, fully
penetrating into the European market
—T—)\F «  Dragon Awaken®) ;=B ~ (26 B - THHRAREE LR 2EEFEENTS
. Robot Tactics, the strategic mobile game featuring anime graphics, was launched on and featured by
Google Play in more than 100 countries and regions around the world
o BIETMEHIEN CRJTHR SRS F 52 8% B E0 15 Google PlayfE 2 B8 100 18 Bl K M & 8 HE B
. Digital Hollywood was awarded the 6th Jincha Award for 2018 Best Mobile Publisher
- PBREHREFERESRE T \REBHEHETE]
. Be elected as the vice-president of the Gaming Industry Association Guangzhou Branch
 EBEBENTBETEDERISREM
. Dragon Awaken was awarded “2018 Zhuoer Award for Top 10 Most Popular Windows Games” in 2018
Globe Windows Game Conference
«  Dragon Awaken®&GWGCEHHEEHRE —_T— \FREEE [ T — \FEERRMUEAME T AHZ IR
EEER]
2019 . A number of HTML5 games launched for global distribution
—E-NEF o HEEIREITEZHHTMLEEE
2020 . Completed the technical replacement of flash to HTML5 and clients.
e 35 o SEAREflashBZEHTMLS k& P i # Rl E &

Distribute HTML5-based products in multi-terminal, multi-platform, and multilingual to meet the game
needs of global users in different scenarios.
1150 ZFARZABETHHTIMLER - WA 2RKAPETRBERWERFE K

@ Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2020



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

Revenue for FY2020 amounted to approximately US$17.6 million,
representing a slight decrease of approximately 1.7% from approximately
US$17.9 million recorded in FY2019.

Gross profit for FY2020 amounted to approximately US$9.2 million,
representing an increase of approximately 9.5% from approximately
US$8.4 million recorded in FY2019.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company for FY2020 amounted to
approximately US$3.6 million, representing a decrease of approximately
37.9% from approximately US$5.8 million recorded in FY2019.

Non-IFRS adjusted loss attributable to owners of the Company" for
FY2020 amounted to approximately US$3.0 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 28.6% from approximately US$4.2 million
recorded in FY2019.

U To supplement our consolidated financial statements which are presented in
accordance with IFRS, we also use non-IFRS adjusted (loss)/profit attributable
to owners of the Company as an additional financial measure to evaluate
our financial performance by eliminating the impact of items that we do not
consider indicative of the performance of our business. Our non-IFRS adjusted
(loss)/profit attributable to owners of the Company was derived from our (loss)/
profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year excluding share-
based compensation and listing expenses.

—ECTHREFENRALNBITOEEET 8=
T MY BFEERESNN17.98 EFXTEM MY
1.7% °

7_7%ﬁ¢ MEFKNRI2AEET B
— NI B FREESNAB8.4BEFRTIEINE.5% -

—E_THBEEARAEEARGEEIERNR3.6
%%E R-Z- NP REEHRFEHH6.888
KR A #IB7.9% °

—RTUBEFEARRBER ARG IFFERM SR
EREASHEBEONRIOAEETL  W_T—
MFESRENN42B8ETM428.6% °

m RWHARFRRBER T B EER 278 A G875
Wk - HAIIGE R IERIBR B A RS AR RS T EE (S
18) /S AERBEINIMBEITE - BIERERMR
RUBRMAMNEBRRTBEFEENREZTZE
ARHER PO ISEE - RPIWARREE AR
IR BB REEREAE (BB) 8RR
BRMOADAEEARME (BE) SRFFES
o IR EEARD BERN KR EHRX -

—T_THEFR @
.|.

EREHEEBRL
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

B HE

For the year ended December 31,

BEt+t-ZA=+t—-HLEE

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
—E-RF E—tF T\ —T-hF ZBIEF
Us$’000 US$'000 Us$’000 UsS$’000 Us$’000
F=r Fx=x FEr FEx FErx
Revenue A 28,446 28,621 24,161 17,919 17,550
Gross profit EH 15,535 15,926 13,319 8,397 9,160
(Loss)/Profit before income tax  BRFrEFLAT (E518), i 7 8,552 3,982 2,008 (5,603) (3,439)
Income tax expense FiSfix 1,613 2,255 1,071 159 200
(Loss)/Profit for the year FR(ER),EF 6,940 1,727 937 (5,762) (3,639)
(Loss)/Profit attributable to: LT &L (&18), % F
Owners of the Company RAREER A 6,940 1,727 937 (5,762) (3,639)
Non-Controlling interests FEPERR IS - - - - -
Non-IFRS adjusted RNEHEB AEG
(loss)/profit attributable FE B R B 745 R 5 2 R
to owners of the Company R (BB w5 7,565 6,516 3,570 (4,184) (2,986)
As at December 31,
R+=—A=+—H
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
“E-RF —FtF T\ —T-hF ZBIEF
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$’'000 US$’000
FE=r FET FEr FErx FErx
Total assets BEE 26,524 63,830 63,731 59,336 56,272
Total liabilities reE 15,732 13,767 10,454 12,060 11,167
Equity attributable to the RABHEE AEIEER
owners of the company 10,791 50,063 53,277 47,276 45,105

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2020



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERE|E

Dear Shareholders,

Chairman: Mr. LU Yuanfeng
FE BRI

On behalf of the Board and the management of Digital Hollywood
Interactive Limited, | am pleased to present to you the annual report of

the Company and its subsidiaries for FY2020.

OVERVIEW OF THE GROUP

We are a leading global online game publisher for China-based game
developers, with fast-growing in-house development capabilities for

mobile games. Our mission is to bring engaging, differentiated gameplay

experience to users across languages, cultures and borders. We offer

compelling value proposition to game developers by helping them

penetrate the international markets with one-stop solutions, including

game redesign, optimization, marketing, distribution, monetization,

payment support and other user-related services.

SRS AR

AANERREXREHEEBRARNEFEREE
CRAE BTREANFAREMBAT T
TR HFENFR -

B

B AT ENEEFAEHREAREN2IRE
EWBERBETH  HRRIERNFRERS T
e - HPIMEDZHS ARAK A~
BERBTHREZEE  BXERBEEINAPL - &
FIA—uE BV BRIR TS 5= (BB E#RET - B - 17
B BT B MNPSOS REMEEREFEN
R#)EBBEETHLZERBEDS - REGRE
AWs| WEESRE -

PEHREBHEEGRART T _TFEFIR @
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (Continued)
EFERE ()

We began our business as an international web game publisher and
grew quickly to become the leading web game publisher. Besides, we
strategically expanded our business focuses to develop and launch
mobile games by enhancing in-house development capabilities to capture
the market opportunity from the fast-growing smartphone users, and our
mobile games achieved considerable success in a number of regional
markets.

In recent years, the Group has begun to deepen the business of HTML5
multiplayer games and established a self-developed HTML5 game
platform. As such, the Group has the technical capability to achieve the
data exchange between personal computers and mobile terminals, and
embarked to launch a variety of HTML5 games of different types.

RESULTS OF THE GROUP

As of December 31, 2020, we launched and operated 33 games including
web games, mobile games and HTML5 games over the world. 13 of such
games were self-developed games, accounting for 39.4% of the total
number of games launched and operated.

As of December 31, 2020, calculating based on IP addresses we
recorded, we had cumulative registered users of approximately 82.2
million located in over 200 countries and regions.

As of December 31, 2020, our average MAUs for online games were
more than 0.6 million.

In 2020, we launched 3 HTML5 games and took advantage of our global
distribution network in the HTML5 game markets. We will continue
deepen our involvement in the HTML5 game distribution markets and
cooperate closely with our outstanding business partners in research
and development, distribution and promotion in the global HTML5 field,
vigorously enlarge our market shares in emerging markets for HTML5
games and further strengthen our leading position in overseas distribution.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (Continued)
EFERE ()

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF THE GROUP

Revenue of the Group for FY2020 amounted to approximately US$17.6
million, representing a slight decrease of approximately 1.7% from
approximately US$17.9 million for FY2019.

Despite market volatility, the Group enhanced its marketing promotions
and provision of quality services, actively responded to the impact of
market changes, and continued to improve the layout of the HTML5
games. The revenue for FY2020 remained stable compared with FY2019.

PROSPECTS AND STRATEGIES OF THE
GROUP

Entering 2021, the Group will continue to leverage its advantages in
overseas publishing and develop new HTML5-based games and publish
on multi-terminal and multi-platform. The Group will continue to optimise
game contents, enhance player experience, boost player stickiness and
loyalty, and actively optimise our product launch strategy. At the same
time, in order to further expand its overseas market share and upscale
international competitiveness, the Group will continue to develop a
global gaming platform and continue to explore business opportunities in
overseas markets. Under this development trend, the Group is expected
to further deepen the diversified development of game products.

Since the COVID-19 Outbreak in early 2020, a series of precautionary
and control measures have been and continued to be implemented
across China and other countries in the world. As at the date of this
annual report, the Board was not aware of any material adverse effects
on the financial statements as a result of the COVID-19 Outbreak. To
shoulder our social responsibilities and offer humanitarian support, the
Group promptly launched an assistance scheme in response to the
COVID-19 Outbreak. Under this scheme, the Group has mobilised its
global subsidiaries to procure medical masks, protective gowns and
other medical supplies and has donated the same to front-line medical
professionals and institutions in China. The Group has been closely
monitoring the development of the COVID-19 Outbreak and will continue
to evaluate its impact on the financial position and operating results of the
Group from time to time.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (Continued)
EFERE ()

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to thank
the management of the Group and all our staff for their hard work over
the past year. | would also like to extend my sincere gratitude to our
Shareholders, business partners and stakeholders for their continued
support.

LU Yuanfeng
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, March 30, 2021
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Below are the brief profiles of the current Directors and senior

management of the Group.

DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises six Directors, of which three are executive
Directors and three are independent non-executive Directors. The %78

EE

following table sets forth information regarding the Directors.

NTAAEERFESRSRERBHBHEER -

EXeRBAREREN  BRE=ZAWTESFK
TIHMITEE - TREIIEHESNER -

Date of Appointment

Name Age Position as Director
HE Fie B BEERESHNAEEY
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. LU Yuanfeng 41  Chairman, executive Director November 24, 2014
and chief executive officer
e 41 EFF BOESEKEFATE “E-mME+—R-+mA
Mr. HUANG Guozhan 41  Executive Director and chief November 2, 2015
operating officer
=mEE KA 41 HOTEEREFEZLE —ZT-RF+—AZ=H
Mr. HUANG Degiang 47  Executive Director and chief June 28, 2017
technology officer
| L 47 BITEERAREMNE —E—+FRAZTNR
Independent non-executive Directors
BYFHITES
Ms. Imma LING Kit-sum 66 Independent non-executive Director November 24, 2017
BB L 66 BUIFMITES —tF+—A=+mEHH
Mr. LI Yi Wen 50 Independent non-executive Director November 24, 2017
FRE 50 BUIFBMITESE —tF+—HA=+mA
Mr. LU Qibo 54 Independent non-executive Director October 3, 2019
& RUK 52 4 54 BUIFBITES —NF+A=H
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

EEREAEEEER (H)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LU Yuanfeng, aged 41, is an executive Director, our chief executive
officer and the chairman of the Board. Mr. LU has overall responsibilities
for strategic planning and positioning and management of the Group. Mr.
LU founded our Group in June 2010 and was appointed as an executive
Director on November 24, 2014. He also serves as a director of Angame,
Hollywood BVI, Hollywood HK and Guangzhou You Lai.

Mr. LU has over 18 years of experience in the game industry.

Prior to founding our Group, Mr. LU founded Guangzhou Blue Power
Digital Technology Company Limited (“Guangzhou Blue Power”) which
is primarily engaged in software development in May 2001 and served as
its chief executive officer from 2004 to January 2011, mainly responsible
for development, publication and operation of various games. From June
2001 to February 2004, Mr. LU served in various positions up to the chief
editor of the game channel at 21.com operated by 21CN Corporation
Limited which is primarily engaged in the provision of information
technology services.

Mr. LU graduated from Guangdong University of Technology with a
bachelor degree in architectural engineering on June 30, 2001.

Mr. HUANG Guozhan, aged 41, is an executive Director and our chief
operating officer. Mr. HUANG oversees the strategic planning and
development for the game projects, and he is also responsible for the
operation and marketing of the Group. Mr. HUANG joined our Group in
June 2010 and was appointed as an executive Director on November 2,
2015. He also serves as a director of Now To Play Game, Beijing You
Tang, Guangzhou SYND and Beijing You Lai.

Mr. HUANG has over 13 years of experience in the game industry.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. HUANG served as a video game operation
and planning officer at Guangzhou Blue Power from January 2006 to
January 2011. From February 2003 to January 2006, he served as
a radio host at Guangzhou Sheng Se Chuan Bo Entertainment and
Production Co., Ltd. which is primarily engaged in installation services of
stage lighting and audio equipment and cultural communication, mainly
responsible for hosting and planning radio programs.

Mr. HUANG graduated from Guangdong University of Technology with
a bachelor degree in architectural engineering on June 30, 2002. Mr.
HUANG obtained a certificate as a host issued by the State Administration
of Radio, Film and Television on February 12, 2005.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

EEREAEEEER (H)

Mr. HUANG Degqiang, aged 47, is an executive Director and our chief
technology officer. Mr. HUANG is responsible for developing information
technology and operation and maintenance the Company. Mr. HUANG
joined our Group in June 2010 and was appointed as an executive
Director and the chief technology officer on June 28, 2017.

Mr. HUANG has over 13 years of experience in the game industry.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. HUANG served as the manager of the
technology department of Guangzhou Blue Power from October 2004 to
January 2011.

Mr. HUANG graduated from Guangdong Financial and Trade Cadre
Academy with a college degree in financial management in July 1997.
He was enrolled in Aptech Certified Computer Professional, an IT career
program taught by Aptech Beida Jade Bird, from December 2001 to June
2003. Mr. HUANG obtained a national certificate as an intermediate
programmer and a national certificate as a software engineer in
December 2002 and June 2003, respectively, both issued by the Ministry
of Labor and Social Security of the PRC (now known as the Ministry of
Human Resources and Social Security of the PRC). In August 2003, he
was also certified as a Sun Certified Programmer by Sun Microsystems,
Inc.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

EEREAEEEER (H)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Imma LING Kit-sum, aged 66, is an independent non-executive
Director of our Company appointed on November 24, 2017.

Ms. LING is a Certified Public Accountant and a retired assurance partner
of PricewaterhouseCoopers. She is also an independent non-executive
director of Wise Ally International Holdings Limited (stock code: 9918),
Raymond Industrial Limited (stock code: 0229) and EVA Precision
Industrial Holdings Limited (stock code: 0838), all of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Ms. LING is a council member of The Education University of Hong
Kong and a board member of the Estate Agents Authority. She serves
as a member of the Appeal Board Panel (Town Planning) and Hospital
Governing Committee of Hospital Authority. Ms. LING is a council
member of The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups and an executive
committee member of the Hong Kong Youth Hostels Association. She
previously served as a board member of the Employees Compensation
Assistance Fund Board (2006-2012).

Ms. LING is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, Chartered
Professional Accountants, Canada, and Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants. She is an accredited general mediator.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

EEREAEEEER (H)

Mr. LI Yi Wen, aged 50, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. LI
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on November
24, 2017.

Mr. LI has over 13 years of experience in the information technology
industry.

Mr. LI has served as a director of Aleo BME, Inc. which is primarily
engaged in biotechnology research and development since January
2016. He served as a director of Ningbo Lehui International Engineering
Equipment Co., Ltd. which is primarily engaged in development,
manufacturing of industrial equipment from March 2016 to November
2018. From January 2011 to October 2013, he also served as a
director, chief financial supervisor and secretary of the board at Guiyang
Longmaster Information & Technology Co., Ltd., a company listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 300288) which is primarily
engaged in wireless games and Internet medical service. He served as
the general manager of Sina Net Technology (China) Co., Ltd. which is
primarily engaged in wireless games and deputy manager of Guangzhou
Xunlong Technology Co., Ltd. which is primarily engaged in wireless
games from October 2002 to February 2004 and June 2001 to October

2002, respectively.

Mr. LU Qibo, aged 54, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. LU
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on October 3,
2019.

Mr. LU has over 22 years of experience in media and internet industry.

Mr. LU served as the chief executive officer of Guangdong Senlong Group
from May 2018 to December 2018. From 2014 to 2017, Mr. LU worked
as the president of KUFM of Guangzhou Kugou Computer Technology
Co., Ltd.,
is listed on the New York Stock Exchange (stock code: TME). Tencent

a subsidiary of Tencent Music Entertainment Group, which

Music Entertainment Group is a subsidiary of Tencent Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
700). Mr. LU founded Shengse Chuanbo Inc. in 1997 and served as its
chief executive officer and an executive director from 1997 to 2010. Mr.
LU served as an anchorman in Guangdong People’s Radio Station from
1989 to 1995.

Mr. LU completed his junior college study at South China Normal
University in July 1989.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LU Yuanfeng, see the above “Executive Directors” for details.
Mr. HUANG Guozhan, see the above “Executive Directors” for details.
Mr. HUANG Degiang, see the above “Executive Directors” for details.

Mr. LIU Jiahua, aged 40, joined our Group as our chief financial officer
on March 21, 2014. He is primarily responsible for the investment, the
legal affairs and the overall management of the finance of our Group. He
has served as the chief financial officer since March 2014.

Mr. LIU has over 17 years of experience in the field of financial
management.

Mr. LIU served as the finance controller at Moonbasa E-commerce Group
which is primarily engaged in the online sales of women apparels from
September 2010 to March 2014. From April 2009 to August 2010, he
served as a financial director at China Nepstar Chain Drugstore Ltd. which
is primarily engaged in pharmaceutical retail, a company previously listed
on the New York Stock Exchange (stock code: NPD). From November
2004 to February 2009, Mr. LIU served in PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong
Tian LLP.

Mr. LIU graduated from Sun Yat-sen University with a bachelor degree in
international finance on June 24, 2003.
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Mr. SHI Lijia, aged 37, joined our Group as a vice president on August
17, 2015. He is primarily responsible for the overall management of the
research and development of the Group.

Mr. SHI has over 10 years of experience in the game industry.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. SHI served as the game producer in certain
medium and large companies which are researching and developing
game products from March 2010 to April 2015, mainly responsible for
game development and general administration.

Mr. SHI graduated from Lanzhou University with a bachelor degree in
information and computing sciences in 2007.

Mr. CHEN Yangzhao, aged 43, was appointed as our vice president on
July 1, 2015. He is primarily responsible for the management of Platform
Research and Development System and Operations Platform System of
our Group.

Mr. CHEN has over 18 years of experience in technology and software
engineering of game industry.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. CHEN served as the technology manager
of Guangzhou Tianya Internet Technology Co., Ltd. which is primarily
engaged in software development from January 2009 to March 2010. He
served from a platform development team member to a senior developer
at Beijing Bokee Net Information Technology Co., Ltd. which is primarily
engaged in technology service from October 2005 to November 2008. He
served as the senior software engineer at Guangzhou Ruixun Computer
Technology Co., Ltd. which is primarily engaged in development and
manufacture of computers’ hardware and software from September
2002. He briefly served as a software engineer at Asiainfo Technologies
(China) Inc.,
primarily engaged in development of network system from April 2002. Mr.

a Nasdag-listed company (stock code: ASIA) which is

CHEN started his career in July 2001 with Guangdong Xiantong Digital
Technology Co., Ltd. as a software engineer.

Mr. CHEN graduated from South China University of Technology with a
bachelor degree in computer science and technology on July 1, 2001.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERBNWR D

BUSINESS REVIEW

2020 was a challenging year for many businesses around the world.
We weathered these obstacles and maintained steady development
across our business. Revenue of the Group for FY2020 amounted
to approximately US$17.6 million, representing a slight decrease of
approximately 1.7% from approximately US$17.9 million for FY2019.
Loss attributable to owners of the Company for FY2020 amounted to
approximately US$3.6 million, representing a decrease of approximately
37.9% from approximately US$5.8 million for FY2019. Non-IFRS adjusted
loss attributable to owners of the Company for FY2020 amounted to
approximately US$3.0 million, representing a decrease of approximately
28.6% from approximately US$4.2 million for FY2019. In spite of the less
favourable economic environment, our key operating indicator for FY2020
was basically satisfactory as compared with the corresponding period in
2019. Our ARPPU amounted to US$36.0 for FY2020, as compared with
US$36.0 for FY2019.

In 2020, the COVID-19 Outbreak posed challenges across countries
and industries. However, on the other hand, the quarantine measures
during the epidemic resulted in the rise of “Stay-at-Home Economy”,
which contributed to new users traffic to the Internet industry. Leveraging
on such social circumstances, with its years of experience accumulated
in the mobile and online game industry, the Group is committed to
continuously providing all of its users with the best quality products and
services.

In addition to the COVID-19 Outbreak, since January 2021, all popular
browsers no longer support the use of flash player. Faced with the
challenge of the discontinuing flash player, the Group strategically
converted flash based games into HTML5 games as early as the
beginning of 2020, and at the same time, using its excellent technical
capabilities, developed clients for multiple game products. With many
years of rich experience in game operation and excellent technical
prowess, the Group has successfully completed the technical replacement
of flash player to HTML5 and clients.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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INDUSTRY OUTLOOK AND GROUP STRATEGIES

Please refer to the section headed “Chairman’s Statement — Prospects
and strategies of the Group” in this annual report for the industry outlook
and Group strategies.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Our operations and prospects and future financial results involve, and

could be materially and adversely affected by, certain risks. The following

highlights the principal risks exposed to the Group and is not meant to be

exhaustive:

A small number of games have contributed a substantial majority of
our revenue.

We work with game distribution platforms to distribute our games,
and our business may be materially and adversely affected if
they breach their contractual obligations, or if we fail to maintain
relationships with a sufficient number of platforms, or if the platforms
lose popularity among Internet users.

Our growth prospects will suffer if we are unable to successfully
implement our game development strategies on mobile and HTMLS
games.

Our businesses rely on our data analysis capabilities, any impact on
which would materially and adversely affect our ability to formulate
appropriate business strategies.

Our steady growth during the past years may not be indicative of our
future growth, and our limited operating history makes it difficult to
evaluate our growth prospects and future financial results.
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If we fail to successfully execute our growth strategies, including
launching games of new genres, themes or operating formats and
investing in new technologies, our future results of operations and
growth prospects may be materially and adversely affected.

Protecting user and customer data is the top priority, and we are
fully aware that any loss or leakage of such information could have
a significant negative impact on the affected users and customers
and our reputation. This could in turn lead to potential legal actions
against us.

The Internet and technology industry is still evolving yet getting more
mature. Regulatory authorities in different jurisdictions have been,
in an attempt to keep up with such evolution, heightening respective
regulatory requirements. As we continuously expand our businesses
in the PRC and overseas to more countries and jurisdictions, it is
required to keep up and comply with the relevant applicable laws
and regulations in different countries and jurisdictions, including but
not limited to laws relating to data protection, Internet information
and cyber security, IP, gaming, Internet finance, etc. In addition,
development of various industries around the world may be impacted
by regulatory uncertainties.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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To mitigate the identified risks, the Company improves its management
capability and adaptability and further ensures the realisation of the
business objectives and sustainable growth. We aim at implementing the
following strategies to further capture players and enhance profitability of
our games:

. Our growth also depends on our ability to continuously launch new
games that attract and retain a significant number of users, in order
to grow our revenue and maintain our competitive position.

. We strengthen our relationships with major international game
publishing and distribution partners to expand the reach of our
games to new countries and regions.

. We further strengthen and expand our mobile and HTML5 games
portfolio by developing additional high-quality mobile and HTML5
games, and offer more specific value-adding features to enrich
users’ game experience on devices.

. Our team members can utilise our various data analysis engines to
collect and store all user behavior data in a timely manner.

. We manage our expanding business, continue to offer new
games and enhance our existing games, maintain and expand our
collaboration with game distribution platforms, anticipate and adapt
to evolving user interests, industry trends and market conditions.

. We have expanded our product offerings to attract a
demographically diverse user community and will continue to
identify new genres with high monetization potential from game
developers, meanwhile we actively enhance our in-house research
and development capabilities.
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We are obliged to protect user and customer data, and as such,
we strive to provide the highest level of protection on such
information and data. In this regard, we have formulated and
kept optimising control measures to protect such information
and data. Information security is ensured through effective
management systems, encryption, access restrictions and controls,
and continuously improving the business continuity and disaster
recovery management. In addition, we arrange regular reviews by
independent specialists over our data protection practices; and
provides training for staff to enhance their awareness of information
security.

We have invested enormous compliance resources and efforts to
ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulatory requirements.
This includes setting up special department and specialist team,
as well as engaging external professional consultants to work
closely with management to track on changes in relevant laws and
regulations; and take appropriate responding actions or measures to
ensure us is in compliance with such applicable laws and regulations
in the PRC and overseas. In addition, we also engage in active
dialogue with relevant regulatory authorities, and exchange view and
information with relevant regulatory authorities on the market trends
and the development of Internet and technology industry.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Overview

For FY2020, loss attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately US$3.6 million, representing a decrease of approximately
US$2.2 million or 37.9% from approximately US$5.8 million for FY2019.
Non-IFRS adjusted loss attributable to owners of the Company amounted
to approximately US$3.0 million for FY2020, representing a decrease of
approximately US$1.2 million or 28.6% from approximately US$4.2 million
for FY2019.

Revenue

For FY2020, revenue of the Group amounted to approximately US$17.6
million, representing a slight decrease of approximately US$0.3 million
or 1.7% from approximately US$17.9 million for FY2019. Despite market
volatility, the Group enhanced its marketing promotions and provision of
quality services, actively responded to the impact of market changes, and
continued to improve the layout of the HTML5 games. The revenue for
FY2020 remained stable compared with FY2019.

Cost of Revenue and Gross Profit Margin

For FY2020, cost of revenue of the Group amounted to approximately
US$8.4 million, representing a decrease of approximately US$1.1 million
or 11.6% as compared with approximately US$9.5 million for FY2019.
The gross profit margin of the Group increased from 46.9% for FY2019 to
52.3% for FY2020.

Other Losses/Gains, Net

For FY2020, other losses of the Group amounted to approximately
US$0.03 million, as compared with other gains of the Group which
amounted to approximately US$0.3 million for FY2019. The other losses
of the Group for FY2020 primarily consisted of the net exchange loss,
partly offset by other gains from reversal of contract liabilities related to
the ceased operation of certain games.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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Selling and Marketing Expenses

For FY2020, selling and marketing expenses of the Group amounted to
approximately US$5.4 million, representing an increase of approximately
US$1.3 million or 31.7% from approximately US$4.1 million for FY2019,
primarily due to the increase in advertising and promotion expenses.

Administrative Expenses

For FY2020, administrative expenses of the Group amounted to
approximately US$4.9 million, representing a decrease of approximately
US$0.8 million or 14.0% from approximately US$5.7 million for FY2019.
The decrease was mainly due to (i) decrease in staff cost which
amounted to approximately US$0.6 million; and (ii) impairment loss on
license fees which amounted to approximately US$1.2 million for the
unilateral termination by Qianhai Huanjing of a series of intellectual
property licensing agreements (the “IP Licensing Agreements”), as
compared with impairment loss mainly due to write-down of prepayment
and intangible assets for certain games of the Group which amounted to
approximately US$1.5 million for FY2019.

Research and Development Expenses

For FY2020, research and development expenses of the Group
amounted to approximately US$1.9 million, representing a decrease of
approximately US$0.5 million or 20.8% compared with approximately
US$2.4 million for FY2019. The decrease in research and development
expenses in FY2020 was mainly due to decrease in staff cost.

Net Impairment Losses on Financial Assets

For FY2020, net impairment losses on financial assets of the Group
amounted to approximately US$0.5 million, representing a decrease of
approximately US$0.9 million or 64.3% compared with approximately
US$1.4 million for FY2019. The impairment losses on financial assets
were attributable to impairment losses on the balances due from the
Group’s customers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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Impairment of Investment in an Associate

For FY2020, impairment of investment in an associate of the Group was
nil (FY2019: approximately US$0.7 million).

Income Tax Expense

For FY2020, income tax expense of the Group amounted to approximately
US$0.2 million, as compared to approximately US$0.2 million for FY2019.

Loss Attributable to Owners of the Company

As a result of the above, loss attributable to owners of the Company
decreased by approximately US$2.2 million or 37.9% from approximately
US$5.8 million for FY2019 to approximately US$3.6 million for FY2020.

Non-IFRS Adjusted Loss Attributable to Owners
of the Company

To supplement this annual report which is presented in accordance with
the IFRS, we also use unaudited non-IFRS adjusted loss attributable to
owners of the Company as an additional financial measure to evaluate
our financial performance by eliminating the impact of items that we do
not consider indicative of the performance of our business.

For FY2020, non-IFRS adjusted loss attributable to owners of the
Company amounted to approximately US$3.0 million, representing a
decrease of approximately US$1.2 million or 28.6% from approximately
US$4.2 million in FY2019. Our non-IFRS adjusted loss attributable to
owners of the Company in FY2020 and FY2019 was calculated according
to the loss attributable to the owners of the Company for the respective
years, excluding share-based compensation of approximately US$0.7
million in FY2020 and approximately US$1.6 million in FY2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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Liquidity, Treasury Policy and Source of Funding
and Borrowing

As at December 31, 2020, the Group’s total bank balances, cash
and short-term deposits amounted to approximately US$31.9 million,
representing an increase of approximately 26.1% as compared with
approximately US$25.3 million as at December 31, 2019. The increase
in total bank balances, cash and short-term deposits during the year was
primarily resulted from the increase in the net cash flow generated from
operating activities.

As at December 31, 2020, current assets of the Group amounted to
approximately US$47.6 million, including bank balances, cash and
short-term deposits of approximately US$31.9 million and other current
assets of approximately US$15.7 million. Current liabilities of the Group
amounted to approximately US$9.5 million, including trade payables
and contract liabilities of approximately US$6.3 million and other current
liabilities of approximately US$3.2 million. As at December 31, 2020, the
current ratio (the current assets divided by current liabilities) of the Group
was 5.0, as compared with 4.7 as at December 31, 2019. The Group
adopts a prudent treasury management policy to ensure that our Group
maintains a healthy financial position.

Gearing ratio is calculated on the basis of total borrowings (net of cash
and cash equivalents) over the Group’s total equity. The Group does not
have any bank borrowings and other debt financing obligations (excluding
lease liabilities) as at December 31, 2020 and the gearing ratio is nil (as
at December 31, 2019: nil). The Group intends to finance the expansion,
investments and business operations with internal resources.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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Significant Investments

The Group did not have any significant investments during FY2020.

Material Acquisitions

The Group did not have any material acquisitions of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during FY2020.

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital
Assets

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Future plans and use of
proceeds” in the Prospectus, the Group currently has no other plan for
material investments and capital assets.

Material Disposals

The Group did not have any material disposals of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures during FY2020.

Pledge of Assets

As at December 31, 2020, none of the Group’s assets was pledged (as at
December 31, 2019: nil).

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at December 31, 2020
(as at December 31, 2019: nil).

Foreign Exchange Exposure

As at December 31, 2020, the Group mainly operated in the global
market and majority of its transactions were settled in USD, being the
functional currency of the group entities to which the transactions relate.
We currently do not hedge transactions undertaken in foreign currencies
but manage our exposure through constant monitoring to limit as much
as possible the amount of our foreign currencies exposures. Foreign
exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions and recognised
assets and liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s
functional currency. The Group operates internationally and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to RMB, EURO and Hong Kong dollar. As at December 31,
2020, the Group did not have significant foreign currency exposure from
its operations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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The Impact of The COVID-19 Outbreak

Since the COVID-19 Outbreak the Group has acted swiftly and adopted
a number of measures. All departments of the Group were required
to fully comply with the epidemic-prevention and control requirement,
and resume operation in an orderly manner. In this way, the Group has
ensured good working environment for employees and has maintained
sound work order. The Group has assessed and preliminarily concluded
that there was no significant impact on the financial position of the Group
subsequent to FY2020 and up to the date of this report. The Group will
pay continuous attention to the situation of the COVID-19 Outbreak and
react actively to its impact on the operation and financial position of the
Group.

Events Occurred Since The End of FY2020

The Group did not have any significant events after December 31, 2020
and up to the date of this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SREARE

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining high standards
of corporate governance by focusing on principles of integrity,
accountability, transparency, independence, responsibility and fairness.
The Company has developed and implemented sound corporate
governance policies and measures, and the Board is responsible for
performing such corporate governance duties. The Board continues to
review and monitor the corporate governance of the Company, as well as
various internal policies and procedures, including but not limited to those
applicable to the relevant employees and Directors, with reference to the
CG Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and other applicable
legal and regulatory requirements so as to maintain a high standard of
corporate governance of the Company.

During FY2020, the Company has complied with the applicable code
provisions of the Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
except for the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code as
disclosed below.

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. However, the Company does not have a separate
roles of chairman and chief executive officer and Mr. LU Yuanfeng
currently performs these two roles. With extensive experience in the
internet industry, Mr. LU Yuanfeng is responsible for the overall strategic
planning and general management of the Group and is instrumental to
the Company’s growth and business expansion since its establishment
on November 24, 2014. The Board considers that vesting the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer in the same person is beneficial to
the management of the Group. The balance of power and authority is
ensured by the operation of the senior management and the Board, which
comprises experienced individuals. The Board currently comprises three
executive Directors (including Mr. LU Yuanfeng), and three independent
non-executive Directors and therefore has a fairly strong independence
element in its composition.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for leadership and the internal control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. The Board has
general powers for the management and operation of the Company’s
business. The day-to-day operations and management are delegated
by the Board to the management of the Company, who implements the
strategy and direction as determined by the Board.

The Board currently consists of six Directors, namely Mr. LU Yuanfeng
(chairman and chief executive officer), Mr. HUANG Guozhan and Mr.
HUANG Degiang as executive Directors, and Ms. Imma LING Kit-sum,
Mr. LI Yi Wen and Mr. LU Qibo as independent non-executive Directors.
None of the Directors has a relationship (including financial, business,
family or material/relevant relationship) with each other. The Board has a
balance of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of the
business of the Company.

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 19 to 25 of this
annual report.

Code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code states that all directors appointed to
fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at the
first general meeting after appointment and that every director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2020

Exg

ERESREARANRERAMEE  MEEAE
B XS BBEARRKRE  UHFASESBES
REBAANREY  (UERDRNKRY - EFEHE
BFERREERDREBN—RIEN - EFGHH
FRENEBRETARREREAR  EBER
WITEFSETNRM RIS

EEHATAANBESAN  IRTESERES
E(EFEREFENTE) BEETERERBREE
ARBIFERTERERZOLLT FRUELERE
Romses: - EF 2 HMERR(BEVE  B%E -
RESERHEBR) - BEEGABRARER
Ff 5 B 2 TRE S A B

EXERSNAFRFE19E25H -

EEERTRNTREXEA 421558 - RIEH
R ERMEZENMEESRNESZ FREERK
RAGLARFEE  MELEF (BEREEE
HEZEE) R E=FRFERE—R-



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

EERERHRE (F)

In accordance with the Articles, all the Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation at an annual general meeting of the Company at least once
every three years. Any new Director appointed by the Board (i) to fill a
casual vacancy in the Board shall hold office only until the first general
meeting of the Company following his appointment and shall be subject to
re-election at such meeting; and (ii) as an addition to the Board shall hold
office until the next following annual general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company and the Company has issued letters of appointment to
each of the independent non-executive Directors. Each of the executive
Directors is appointed for a term of one to three years and is subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Each of the
independent non-executive Directors is appointed for a term of one to
three years, subject to retirement by rotation at lease once every three
years. The terms of the service contracts and the letters of appointment
may be renewed in accordance with the Articles, the Listing Rules and
other applicable laws.

The aggregate remuneration (including fees, salaries, contributions to
pension schemes, share-based compensation expenses, discretionary
bonuses, housing and other allowances and other benefits in kind)
payable to the Directors for FY2020 was approximately USDO0.2 million.

The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference to salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors and performance of the Group. Details of the remuneration
of the Directors and senior management for FY2020 are set out in Note
34 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

EERERHRE (F)

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
legal proceedings against the Directors.

The Board has agreed, as stipulated in code provision A.1.6 of the CG
Code, on the procedure agreed to enable Directors, upon reasonable
request, to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

The Company has complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of independent non-executive Directors representing
at least one-third of the Board.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from
each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules, and considers all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

Directors have access to the services of the company secretary to
ensure that the Board procedures are followed. During the period form
January 1, 2020 to December 10, 2020, the joint company secretaries
of the Company were Mr. YU Ching Ming and Ms. FOK Po Yi. Starting
from December 11, 2020, Mr. YU Ching Ming ceased to be one of our
joint company secretaries and Ms. FOK Po Yi became as the company
secretary of the Company. In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules, Mr. YU Ching Ming and Ms. FOK Po Yi had undertaken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training during FY2020. During
FY2020, the main contact person of Ms. FOK Po Yi in the Company is
Mr. LU Yuanfeng.

Starting from February 2, 2021, Ms. FOK Po Yi ceased to be the
company secretary of the Company, and Mr. WONG Wai Chiu replaced
Ms. FOK Po Yi as the company secretary of the Company with effect from
February 2, 2021. Mr. WONG Wai Chiu is the associate director of SWCS
Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited and he has the necessary
qualifications and experience as required under Rule 3.28 of the Listing
Rules. The main contact person of Mr. WONG Wai Chiu in the Company
is Mr. LU Yuanfeng.
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During FY2020, the following Directors have participated in continuous
professional development by attending in-house briefing or reading
materials on the following topics to develop and refresh their knowledge

and skills:

RIE
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Event/Reading
Materials motes

EE,
B R AR
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. LU Yuanfeng e IR U 5 A 1
Mr. HUANG Guozhan EHEE LS 1
Mr. HUANG Degiang =HEREE 1
Independent non-executive Directors BYkHITES
Ms. Imma LING Kit-sum BRI L 1,2
Mr. LI Yi Wen TR E 1
Mr. LU Qibo ERUL L& 1
Notes: B3
1. Reading materials relevant to corporate governance and regulations. 1. BEEEEE A RERNME -
2. Attending training session(s) relevant to corporate governance and 2. HEAEBDES A RERBIE -

regulations.
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EERERHRE (F)

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy which aims to build
and maintain a Board with a diversity of Directors, in terms of skills,
professional experience, educational background, knowledge, expertise,
culture, independence, age and gender. A truly diverse Board will include
and make good use of differences in the skills, regional and industry
experience, background, race, gender and other qualities of Directors.
These differences will be taken into account in determining the optimum
composition of the Board. All Board appointments will be based on merit
while taking into account diversity (including gender diversity).

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates to serve as a director
of the Company, the Nomination Committee would consider the above
criteria necessary to complement the corporate strategy and achieve
Board diversity, where appropriate, before making recommendations to
the Board.

The Company seeks diversity of members from multiple perspectives in
designing the composition of the Board, including gender, cultural and
education background, as well as professional experience. As at the date
of this annual report, the Board consists of six Directors, of whom one
is female. Directors are with an extensive background in fields such as
finance, accounting, audit, economics and management, while some of
them have multiple professional backgrounds.

BOARD MEETING

The Company adopts a practice to convene Board meetings regularly
which is at least four meetings per year and roughly on a quarterly basis.
A notice of a regular Board meeting shall be delivered to all the Directors
at least 14 days in advance with the matters to be discussed specified in
agenda of the meeting. For other Board and Board Committees meetings,
reasonable notice is generally served. Agendas or relevant documents
of the Board or Board Committees meetings shall be despatched to the
Directors or members of the Board Committees at least 3 days prior to
the convening of the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time
to review the relevant documents and be adequately prepared for the
meetings. When Directors or Board committee members are unable to
attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and
given an opportunity to make their views known to the chairman prior
to the meeting. The minutes are kept by the company secretary of the
Company and the copies are circulated to all Directors for reference and
record purpose.
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The minutes of the meetings of the Board and the Board Committees
thoroughly recorded all matters under consideration and decisions made
by consensus including any problems raised by the Directors. Draft
minutes of each Board meeting and the Board Committees meeting are
sent to the Directors for comments within a reasonable time after the date
on which the meeting is held. Directors have a right to review the minutes
of the Board meetings and the Board Committees meetings.

According to code provision A.1.1 of the Code, board meetings should be
held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals with
active participation of the majority of the Directors, either in person or
through electronic means of communication.

Six Board meetings and the AGM for 2020 were held during FY2020. The
Directors’ attendance is listed below:

EERNEFLEERRANERLBEHE
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Attendance/

Number of meetings
eligible to attend
HEREEHESERH
Board meeting AGM for 2020

—EEF
EEEER BRRBERE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. LU Yuanfeng BRI 58 A 6/6 11
Mr. HUANG Guozhan EEESTAE 6/6 11
Mr. HUANG Degiang EEELAE 6/6 1/1
Independent non-executive Directors BUFHITES
Ms. Imma LING Kit-sum ERLZ L 6/6 11
Mr. L1 Yi Wen TR E 6/6 11
Mr. LU Qibo ERUR St 6/6 11

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has three Board Committees, namely the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Each of the
Board Committees operates under its terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the Board Committees are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The Company has also amended the terms of reference
of the Audit Committee reflecting the changes to the Code in respect
of the Company’s risk management and internal control systems, which
became effective on November 24, 2017. The Company further amended
the terms of reference of the Audit Committee on November 23, 2018.
The Audit Committee consists of three members, namely Ms. Imma LING
Kit-sum, Mr. LI Yi Wen and Mr. LU Qibo, all of whom are independent
non-executive Directors. Ms. Imma LING Kit-sum has been appointed
as the chairman of the Audit Committee. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to review and supervise, and provide an independent
view of the effectiveness of the financial reporting process, the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group, oversee the audit
process and perform other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the
Board.

Two meetings of the Audit Committee were held during FY2020. The
attendance of the committee members is listed below:
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Attendance/
Number of meetings
eligible to attend

HERE
Members j24=1 EHEEBXE
Ms. Imma LING Kit-sum BRI L 2/2
Mr. LI Yi Wen FREE 2/2
Mr. LU Qibo ERUR oA 2/2

For FY2020, the Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s audited
annual results for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the Group’s
unaudited interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2020, and was
of the opinion that the preparation of the relevant financial statements
complied with the applicable accounting standards and requirements and
that adequate disclosure has been made. The Audit Committee provided
an independent view of the risk management and internal governance
systems of the Group. The Audit Committee has also reviewed the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, and selection
and appointment of the external auditors.
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with the Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee consists of two independent
non-executive Directors, being Mr. LI Yi Wen and Mr. LU Qibo, and one
executive Director, being Mr. LU Yuanfeng, who is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing and
assessing the composition of the Board and the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors and making recommendations to
the Board on appointment and removal of Directors. In recommending
candidates for appointment to the Board, the Nomination Committee will
convene a meeting to consider candidates on merit against objective
criteria and with due regards to the benefits of the Board. The Nomination
Committee shall make recommendations or nominations to the Board
for candidates to fill a casual vacancy or for those who are elected at a
general meeting. A notice issued to shareholders will provide information
on the candidates. The Board shall make the final decision on all matters
in respect of the election of its proposed candidates at any general
meeting. The selection criteria for Board members will be considered
from a number of perspectives, including but not limited to all aspects of
integrity, achievement, experience and diversity, such as gender, age,
cultural and educational background, industry experience, technical and
professional skills and/or qualifications, knowledge, length of services and
time to be devoted as a Director. The Company will also take into account
factors relating to its own business model and specific needs from time
to time. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

One meeting of the Nomination Committee was held during FY2020. The
attendance of the committee members is listed below:

Members 24=1

REZEES

AR A E R £ R AP 8%+ 70 P astax T BB B2
HLBE WA VEMBERE - RREZBEEHMW
2BV IFATES (RFREERERKSEE) R
—HBRTEE (AERIELEE)ER - BERIELEER
REZRBEEWNER -

REZEBETIZEARI NG ESENER IS
SERITEENE Y UARREAREREEA
EEoRMEEBER NEBAEUZREMAEZS
B REZBEEHAHSARTBEBHRMTEEA
B WHEBELEEENESR - REZEEAD
RN ZRAERRARE E2ENREAN - AEF
SREZZLRES - ARRBFHOBRRBESREH]
REANER - EFSETMBRRAES LRHEER
REASENFEEEFLRERE - EEEKE
MERFEREZ ETEETERE  BRATRR
WA - BBt RS ERMER AT E - Bl 1t
Al FilR UERBBEER - BE BERERS
HER - M RBFHRETEENER - AR
AR R EEASGEBEA RN EEBHLE
FEEE - SEREBARABES BRA - LEE
FE NEBHEESIELOER

RIZE-_ZHRFE  REZEGETT —RE
o BB ZHFEBREIDT

Attendance/
Number of meetings

eligible to attend
HERE, eI

Mr. LU Yuanfeng BRI 5 A
Mr. LI Yi Wen FRXEE
Mr. LU Qibo ERUE &4

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the nomination committee
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board, assessed the
independence of independent non-executive Directors, and considered the
re-election of retiring Directors for 2020 AGM and made recommendations
to the Board.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the Code as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee has three members,
comprising two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. LI
Yi Wen and Mr. LU Qibo, and one executive Director, namely Mr. LU
Yuenfeng. Mr. LI Yi Wen is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The duties of the Remuneration Committee include:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®)

to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all directors and senior management remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy;

to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior management
of the Company. This should include benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive directors of the Company;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities, and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Company and its subsidiaries;

to review and approve compensation payable to executive directors
and senior management of the Company for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;
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(9)

(h)

(i)

@

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that they
are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable
and appropriate;

to ensure that no director of the Company or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration;

where the service contract of a director or proposed director of
the Company or its subsidiaries is required to be approved by the
shareholders of the Company pursuant to Rule 13.68 of the Listing
Rules, the Remuneration Committee (or an independent board
committee) shall form a view in respect of such service contract and
advise shareholders (other than shareholders who are directors with
a material interest in such service contract and their associates)
as to whether the terms are fair and reasonable, advise whether
such service contract is in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole and advise shareholders on how to vote;
and

to consider all other matters as referred to the Remuneration
Committee by the Board.

In carrying out its duties under these terms of reference, the
Remuneration Committee should:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

provide the remuneration packages sufficient to attract and retain
directors to run the Company successfully without paying more than
is necessary;

be sensitive to the wider scene, including pay and employment
conditions elsewhere, especially when determining annual salary
increases;

ensure that the performance-related elements of remuneration
form a significant proportion of the total remuneration package of
executive directors of the Company and should be designed to align
their interest with those of shareholders and to give these directors
keen incentives to perform at the highest levels; and

ensure that executive share options (if any) are offered in
accordance with the Listing Rules.
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One meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held during FY2020.
The attendance of the committee members is listed below:

R-ZF_THBRFE FHEES8TT —Re
o BB ZHEBREINWT

Attendance/
Number of meetings
eligible to attend

HERE
Members RE EHEEBXH
Mr. L1 Yi Wen TR E 11
Mr. LU Yuanfeng e IR U 5 A 11
Mr. LU Qibo B RUR & 11

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the remuneration committee
surveyed peer companies’ remuneration packages and reviewed the
remuneration packages of the executive Directors and the management.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding dealings in the securities
of the Company by the Directors and the Group’s senior management
who, because of his/her office or employment, is likely to possess inside
information in relation to the Group or the Company’s securities.

Having made specific enquiry, all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code during the year under review. In addition,
the Company is not aware of any non-compliance of the Model Code by
the senior management of the Group during the year under review.

FRAMEWORK FOR DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Company has in place a policy on handling and dissemination of
inside information (the “Policy”) which sets out the procedures and
internal controls for handling and dissemination of inside information in a
timely manner in such a way so as not to place any person in a privileged
dealing position and to allow time for the market to determine the price of
the listed securities of the Company with the latest available information.
This Policy also provides guidelines to staff of the Company to ensure
that proper safeguards exist to prevent the Company from breaching the
statutory disclosure requirements. It also includes appropriate internal
control and reporting systems to identify and assess potential inside
information. Dissemination of inside information of the Company shall be
conducted by publishing the relevant information on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company, according to the requirements of the
Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

EERERHRE (F)

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers has been appointed as the external auditor of
the Company with effect from December 8, 2017, and there has been no
change in the external auditor of the Company since the Listing Date.

For FY2020, the fees paid/payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers for audit
and non-audit services (primarily related to tax advisory services) are
approximately USD442,400 and USD6,300, respectively.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow during FY2020.
A statement from the auditor about its reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements is set out on pages 110 to 112 of this annual report.
In preparing the financial statements for FY2020, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and
prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The basis on which the Company generates or preserves value over the
longer term and the strategy for delivering its objectives are explained in
the “Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages 26 to 36 of
this annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective internal
control and risk management systems in order to safeguard the Group’s
assets and Shareholders’ interests and reviewing the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control and risk management systems on an annual
basis so as to ensure that internal control and risk management systems
in place are adequate. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. The Company also has an internal audit function
which primarily carries out the analysis and independent appraisal of
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems, and reports their findings to the Board on, at
least an annual basis. The Company implements and strictly enforces
procedures on inside information according to the relevant procedures
stated under the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information.

The Group’s internal control system includes a well-established
organisational structure with clearly defined lines of responsibility and
authority. The day-to-day departmental operations are entrusted to
individual department which is accountable for its own conduct and
performance and is required to operate its own department’s business
within the scope of the delegated authority and to implement and strictly
adhere to the strategies and policies set by the Company from time to
time. Each department is also required to keep the Board informed of
material developments of the department’s business and to implement
the policies and strategies set by the Board on a regular basis so as to
identify, evaluate and manage significant risks in a timely manner.
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During FY2020, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
control and risk management systems of the Group to ensure that a sound
system is maintained and operated by the management in compliance
with the agreed procedures and standards. The review covered all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions. In particular, the Board considered the
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions are adequate. The review was conducted through discussions
with the management of the Company, its external auditor and the
assessment performed by the Audit Committee. The Board believes that
the existing risk management and internal control systems are adequate
and effective, in particular, for financial reporting and Listing Rules
compliance as well as for resolving internal control defects (if any).

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Articles were conditionally adopted by the Board on November 24,
2017 and became effective on the Listing Date. A copy of the Articles
is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
During FY2020, there was no significant change in constitutional
documents of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands.
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Under Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more Shareholders holding
at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company may at all times have the right, by a written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the Company, to
require the convening of an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such
requisition. If, within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Directors. All resolutions put forward
at general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules
and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

The Board is not aware of any provision allowing the Shareholders to put
forward proposals at general meetings of the Company under the Articles
and the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. Shareholders who wish
to put forward proposals at general meetings may refer to the preceding
paragraph to make a written requisition to require the convening of an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company.

Detailed procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as
a Director are published on the Company’s website.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may send
written enquiries to the Company as follows:

Address: 2nd Floor, No. 368 Jiang Nan Da Dao (South), Haizhu District,
Guangzhou, PRC

Attention: Office of the Board

The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE  SHEELRRSE

This is the fourth environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) report
issued by the Group. The ESG report disclosed our sustainability policy
and performance for FY2020. The scope of the ESG report includes the
environmental and social performance of the Group’s headquarters in
Guangzhou during the period under review (unless otherwise stated). The
relevant data for all other regional offices have not been collected and
therefore is not disclosed in this ESG report.

The preparation of the ESG report complies with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27
(2016) to the Listing Rules issued by the Stock Exchange and abides by
the “Comply or Explain” provisions contained therein. The four reporting
principles — materiality, quantitative, balance, and consistency — are taken
as the basis for the preparation of the ESG report. The Board of Directors
assumes full responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategy and reporting,
and through reviewing the ESG report, guarantees that the reported
content is true, accurate, and complete.

ABOUT DIGITAL HOLLYWOOD

Digital Hollywood was listed on the Stock Exchange in 2017. The Group
is committed to becoming a leading global online game publisher while
building success in developing and launching dozens of high-quality
mobile games.

We help China-based game developers penetrate into the international
markets with one-stop solutions, including game redesign, optimization,
marketing, distribution, monetization, payment support and other
user-related services.

We offer a diverse selection of games consisting primarily of casual
games and mid-and hardcore games in both web and mobile formats to a
demographically diverse user community.

VISION

To become and be recognized as an interactive entertainment group
providing world-class user experiences.
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OBJECTIVE

Connecting with happiness among players, business partners and
employees.

CORPORATE CULTURE - CORE VALUES

We firmly believe that pooling people who agree with and adhere to
the common pursuit of long-term goals in creating cohesion is the most
valuable and worth-inheriting asset for us. In other words, the F.AM.I.L.Y
(Focus/Agile/Mind/In-touch/Learn/You) culture.

i g
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Game Hallywoad EXAZILIT BN

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT POLICY

We are a leading global online game publisher for China-based game
developers, with fast-growing in-house development capabilities for
mobile games. In recent years, we have strategically expanded our
business focuses to develop and launch mobile games by enhancing
in-house development capabilities. This has also reflected our
commitment to sustainable development. We are committed to ensuring
business continuity, while sparing no effort in integrating ESG principles
into our business administrative practices, which has produced a positive
impact on the environment and the entire community.

@ Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2020
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The Board assumes overall responsibility for our ESG governance and
reporting, and is also responsible for assessing and determining our
management policies, strategies, related importance and objectives
and explaining how they relate to the Company’s business. As a
responsible corporate citizen, the Group has formulated different
policies on ESG and other issues to advance and manage matters
relating to social responsibility, such as product responsibility, labor
practices, environmental protection, health and safety, and supply
chain management, so as to guide the Group’s business partners in
putting sustainable development into practice. The relevant policies and
measures and our sustainable development performance in all respects
can be found in the corresponding sections of this ESG report.

STAKEHOLDER COMMUNICATION

Our stakeholders mainly include employees, customers, suppliers,
business partners, Shareholders, the government and, in a broad sense,
the community. We are firmly convinced that our sustainable development
benefits from the unremitting support and trust of stakeholders. We listen
to the voices of stakeholders and respond to their needs through a range
of communication channels such as meetings, interviews, hotlines, official
websites, WeChat public accounts, emails, as well as communicate
with our stakeholders via the publication of annual and interim results
announcements, so as to maintain a close and harmonious relationship
with them and accordingly achieve long-term success.

COMMITMENT TO CUSTOMERS

As a technology company, we strive to create value for customers by
providing quality products and superior services. We offer services and
products primarily relating to web and mobile games. In recent years, we
have strategically expanded our business focuses to develop and launch
mobile games by enhancing in-house development capabilities to capture
the market opportunity from the fast-growing smartphone users, and our
mobile games have immediately achieved considerable success in a
number of regional markets. Since the beginning, we have established
an integrated business model and the resulting synergies have further
enhanced the overall performance of the Company. Our rich experience
in web game publishing has enabled us to effectively identify key success
drivers for mobile games and create game content that appeals to users.
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We help China-based game developers penetrate into the international
markets with one-stop solutions, including game redesign, optimization,
marketing, distribution, monetization, payment support and other
user-related services. With our deep understanding of the international
markets, rich distribution experiences and proprietary technologies,
we continuously provide solutions to game developing partners for
them to reach and monetize their global user base, thereby bringing an
extremely attractive value to them. When a game is launched, we will
update and repair the system on a regular basis. We are committed to
maintaining relationship with players by creating a highly-interactive
and information-based online gaming community and organising a
series of activities in and out of the game. In addition, we will collect
player comments and suggestions through various means such as
questionnaires, forums and customer services to improve the game and
enhance the player experience. The Group strictly abides by national laws
and regulations that are relevant to the business in developing products
and providing services that have significant impact on the Group, as
well as other laws and regulations relating to the health and safety of
products and services provided, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
and remedies, including but not limited to the Regulations on Internet
Publishing, the Measures on Internet Information Services and the
Measures for the Administration of Online Games.

The Group is committed to providing quality products and services and
values customers’ feedback. We require game masters to record and
report every potential complaint, which will be followed up via an interview
by our staff to properly collect player opinions for game improvement. To
prevent inappropriate handling of complaints and recurring complaints
from players, the Group keeps the staff responsible for the complaint
informed of the complaint handling process and result, analyzes the
reasons for complaint, and consults with relevant business departments.

During the period under review, the Group was not aware of any matter
that had been in violation of laws and regulations in relation to the
provision and use of the Group’s products and services, including but
not limited to matters concerning the health and safety of products and
services, information and labels, marketing communications (including
advertisement and promotion materials), property rights (including
intellectual property rights), and privacy issues that have a significant
impact on the Group.

@ Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2020
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INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

We are committed to protecting the achievements of our research and
development team. To this end, we have established the Intellectual
Property Management System under which standard work programs are
formulated in respect of applying for and managing intellectual property
rights and strengthening the protection of intellectual property and this
can effectively protect the intangible assets of the Group. The Group’s
intellectual property included copyrights, trademarks, patents, trade
secrets and other rights conferred by (i) the Patent Law of the People’s
Republic of China, (ii) the Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of
China, (iii) the Copyright Law of the People’s Republic of China, (iv) the
Measures for the Administration of Internet Domain Names in China, (v)
the Measures for the Administration of Software Products, (vi) the Law
of the People’s Republic of China Against Unfair Competition and other
applicable laws and regulations as well as other rights relating to the
protection of games, software, designs, new technologies, techniques,
etc.

We attach great importance to confidentiality in protecting intellectual
property. All interested parties are prohibited to divulge or provide
relevant information to others in the process of product development
and creation. In accordance with the “Measures for the Administration
of Content Self-review by Internet Cultural Business Entities”, our
self-inspection system will ensure that all products comply with our
intellectual property measures and relevant regulations.

HEALTHY NETWORK

As a company with a focus on the internet business, we have the
responsibility to uphold and strengthen a healthy network culture.

For our game development business, we strictly abide by the Measures
for the Administration of Online Games and other applicable laws and
regulations. In view of this, we have built a professional content review
team. There are professionally qualified content reviewers on the team
responsible for close scrutiny to ensure that the game elements, including
names, backgrounds, sound effects, maps, scenes, character designs,
building designs, prop designs and features, do not contain any legally
prohibited or improper wordings and materials, neither should any
pornography, gambling, violence and abetment be promoted. Therefore,
the Group strictly complies with the legal requirements on healthy gaming

of the countries where it operates.
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DATA SECURITY

Given the nature of our business, we need to collect and process a
large amount of player data. Therefore, we are exposed to the risks of
cyber attacks and the loss and leakage of data. To minimize these risks,
we have adopted a series of data security measures, such as access
authorization, password and data transmission encryption, so that data
are stored in at least two different locations on our internal server and
further backup is implemented in our disaster recovery system. The Group
has taken a number of measures to ensure network system security and
stable operation, in terms of network, system and application.

PRIVACY PROTECTION

Ensuring data privacy is crucial to protect our business and maintain our
relationship with customers and business partners. Employees must sign
a non-disclosure agreement to confirm their responsibility for keeping
the data (including sales data, business plans, customer’s personal
data, and intellectual property) in strict confidence. We have set access
authorization with respect to the customer’s personal data, restricting
employees from accessing sensitive data only unless otherwise as
required. We have also devised specific procedures to collect and process
user data to ensure that our products and services are in compliance with
applicable legal requirements.

ADVERTISING LABELS

We ensure the compliance, accuracy and authenticity of all published
materials, including press releases, labels, articles, and web contents, in
accordance with the Advertising Law of the PRC, and through the review
of the legal department.
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COMMITMENT TO EMPLOYEES
Equal opportunity

The Group always upholds the principles of fairness, openness and
justice, and applies these principles in the recruitment, assessment,
promotion, development and welfare of its staff. The Group will not allow
any employment discrimination arising out of race, color, nationality,
language, age, gender, disability, religious belief, marital status,
pregnancy, etc., and related systems are formulated in internal documents
such as the code of conduct.

Staff development

The Group adheres to the cultural core values of F.AM.I.L.Y., and has
employees kept informed of the latest industry information and new job
skills for them to realize their full potential through a variety of training
formats and courses.
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In order to meet the developmental needs of employees in different
positions, the Group provides our employees with management, expertise
and general knowledge learning channels, and organizes various sharing
and exchange programmes at the company level. We aim to create a
learning-oriented corporate culture, and thus encourage employees to
excel and pursue their career path development. Currently, the training
types received by employees include, but are not limited to, conventional
classroom training, on-the-job coaching and experience sharing sessions,
such as induction training, orientation, mini talks, etc.
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In 2020, for example, the company organized experience sharing
meetings — mini talks, which were held in the form of “online classes”
by the corporate executives. As a multinational internet enterprise, the
Group perceives the impact of the epidemic around the world more
comprehensively. Through data tracking spanning about half a year,
samples of user data from all over the world and interviews with gaming
companies from different countries, the impacts of the epidemic on
the game industry were summarized then shared among employees
participating in the training.

Through continuous optimization and improvement of the performance
management system, the Group conducts regular and timely performance
evaluation of employees and maintains an annual comprehensive
performance evaluation. The main business units conduct monthly
performance appraisal. After each appraisal, employees are required to
review their performance in their daily work and set out new achievement
targets with their supervisors. Through the two-way communication
mechanism, we can receive employee’s feedback and suggestions in a
timely manner to facilitate the growth of both parties.

The promotion of employees is determined based on the results of
their performance evaluation and potentials. The Group has also put
in place promotion mechanisms for employees. Employees may apply
for competitive promotion provided that they meet the relevant years of
service and performance requirements and that they have no records of
misconduct and are in line with the Group’s corporate culture and values.
This will accordingly stimulate the initiative of excellent employees, which
is conducive to selecting and cultivating talents and maintaining the
sustainability of talents.

Caring for talents

The Group has always regarded employees as the key to sustainable
business development. Accordingly, the Group provides competitive
remuneration packages and benefits to employees and organises

diversified staff activities.
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The Group strictly abides by labor laws and regulations of the PRC
and other laws and regulations regarding compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunities, diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and
welfare, including the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Social
Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Regulations on the
Administration of Housing Provident Funds and Employee Paid Annual
Leave Regulations, to provide domestic employees with social insurance
covering pension insurance, unemployment insurance, medical insurance,
maternity insurance, work-related injury insurance, critical illness
insurance and supplementary medical insurance as well as housing
provident funds. In addition to public and statutory holidays, employees
are entitled to paid leaves, such as marriage leave, pregnancy check-up
leave, maternity leave, paternity leave, annual leave, bereavement leave,
sick leave and bonus leave, and other benefits including meal allowances,
attendance awards, festive gifts, charity soft drinks and birthday gift.
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Work-life balance

We attach great importance to the healthy development of employees’
physical and mental health. We enrich employee’s spare time life by
organising various recreational activities, such as badminton, table tennis
and basketball games, monthly birthday parties, festival events, Children’s
Day on the 1st of June, Thanksgiving Day, Woman’s Day on the 8th of
March, Halloween and annual dinner. These recreational activities have
greatly enriched the spiritual and cultural life of employees and enhanced
their cohesiveness and teamwork.
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1. ZZ = FF€2020 Annual Dinner

. B & B Team Building Activity

. RRKERE EHMid-Autumn Activity

. 5 ACE B Fire-drill

.+ 6. TAFREEBGroup’s 10th Anniversary Celebration
.+ 9. BRAEEE) Thanksgiving Day Activity

. BERLENEE) Christmas Activity
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Attention to two-way communication

We strive to establish sound and humanized communication channels,
formal and informal, for our employees. Currently, the various
communication channels established include conferences, work reports,
WeChat, Enterprise WeChat, instant messaging software (QQ), emails
and performance appraisal interviews. Employees may express their
ideas and views through these communication channels.

Occupational health and safety

The Group is committed to providing employees with a safe, healthy and
comfortable working environment. The Group conducts unified guidance
and supervision of the safe operation of the Group companies in
accordance with China’s laws and regulations on occupational health and
safety and industry standards. The Group grants badges to all employees
and only employees with badges can enter the office area. Non-company
personnel are required to register identity information at the front desk
and enter with a temporary visitor card. To solve the pollution problem
arising from the newly decorated office and to ease employees’ concerns
on the potential negative impacts on their health from the renovation, the
Group is equipped with high-efficiency air purifiers and protective masks
in the office area. We also plant and place large quantities of green
plants throughout the office area, taking care of the health and safety of
employees with practical actions. A complete set of fire-fighting facilities
that meet fire protection standards are placed at a prominent position in
the office. Clear guidelines for emergency exit routes are available in the
office and fire inspections are conducted to prevent from potential fire
hazards.

Strictly abiding by laws and regulations concerning the provision of a safe
working environment and the protection of employees from occupational
hazards, such as the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases, the Group provides annual physical examination
for employees and routinely publicizes the knowledge of occupational
diseases through different channels, to protect the health and related
rights and interests of employees.

As of December 31, 2020, no incidence of any work-related injury or
fatality was identified by the Group.
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Since the beginning of 2020, in response to the COVID-19 outbreak,
safety and health of the employees are the prime concern. A number of
strict protective measures have been imposed amid the period by the
Group, such as comprehensive disinfection in public facilities with a higher
visitor frequency, further enhancing the ventilation in the office areas,
and providing personal protective hygiene products to all employees. To
strengthen the control even further, all activities surrounding the office
area are monitored, with tightening visitor and vehicle controls, to lower
the chance of office infection, hence maintaining a safe environment for
all employees.

Labor standards

Strictly abiding by laws and regulations concerning the prevention of child
labor or forced labor, such as the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Minors and other
laws and regulations, the Group prohibits the employment of child labor
and forced labor. Upon the joining of an employee, the Group strictly
implements the relevant processes of employment, so that the employee’s
data file, including identity and age, will be reviewed thoroughly to
prevent the occurrence of child labor. During the review, any child or
forged identity data found will be handled in accordance with the law. The
Group strictly abides by relevant laws and regulations of the jurisdiction in
the place of operation, signing labor contracts with employees according
to law and pays social insurance and protects the personal privacy of
employees in strict accordance with provisions.

In addition, our staff handbook and labor contracts have set out details
concerning the arrangements about working hours, overtime, leave and
dismissal. The Group’s implementations are carried out in a unified
manner according to standard working hours to ensure that the working
hours of employees are reasonable. Employees are not forced to work
and, if overtime is required, they need to obtain approval in advance and
receive paid leave afterwards. In the case of forced labor, employees
have the right to appeal to the Group’s Personnel Administration Center.

As at December 31, 2020, the Group had not identified any employment
of child labor and forced labor and no labor dispute had happened.
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COMMITMENT TO THE COMMUNITY

The Group always attaches great importance to the establishment and
maintenance of harmonious relations with the community and society. The
Group’s priorities include, but are not limited to, recruiting and cultivating
outstanding university graduates in the place of operation to take up
positions dedicated to game development and operations. In 2020, the
Group eagerly visited higher education schools in Guangzhou to conduct
campus presentations and recruitment activities and received enthusiastic
responses. Promoting the employment of university students through such
activities is an effective measure for achieving economic development
and social harmony.

RERES
On-campus Job Fair
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In respect of the requests by relevant administrative departments in
accordance with laws and regulations for the supervision and inspection
on the Company, the Group actively cooperates with them to ensure the
fulfilment of its own social responsibilities and obligations.

CHARITY

Since COVID-19 Outbreak in early 2020, a series of precautionary
and control measures have been and continued to be implemented
across China and other countries in the world. To shoulder our social
responsibilities and offer humanitarian support, the Group has promptly
launched an assistance scheme in response to the COVID-19 Outbreak.
Under this scheme, the Group has mobilised its global subsidiaries to
procure medical masks, protective gowns and other medical supplies and
has donated the same to front-line medical professionals and institutions
in China.
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1. N T 39 BT #4489 B % 38 B Donation of epidemic prevention equipment to Guangzhou government authorities.

2. BEMHELH B 8 Ph & 8 B Donation of epidemic prevention equipment to Guangzhou medical institutions.

3. WEIMN I8 R AR & 8 B Donation of epidemic prevention equipment to Guangzhou educational institutes.

4. 5. HEHEEITR B & 18 & Donation of epidemic prevention equipment to our players.

6. 7. A% E 8 TIkEFr% ¥ EHand out epidemic prevention equipment to personnel of Digital Hollywood.

8. 2R BB EZEIBINZEE L BT M A Twitter The Tweet from the Government of Catalonia in Barcelona.

9. 2R B B EE A NNZE 78 /2 T2 BUF F FE M) 2 = The gratitude letter from the President of the Government of Catalonia.

10. REEERMIMEREEEHBENEMZH (EThe gratitude letter from the Minister of Business and Knowledge of the
Government of Catalonia.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group’s commitment to combating unethical business practices,
including bribery, fraud, corruption, extortion and money laundering, can
be reflected in our Anti-fraud Management System. Employees should
report to us by phone or email if there is any suspected misconduct. The
relevant departments of the Group will seriously investigate the report
based on our internal protocols and make rectification in a professional
and timely manner. Divulgement of any relevant information is strictly
prohibited and offenders will be handled in a solemn manner. A code of
ethics and conduct will also be included in the staff handbook. We will
do our utmost to ensure that employees pay attention to the code and
make it part of our daily activities, so as to create a corporate culture
that upholds righteousness and integrity. The Group strictly abides by the
Law of the People’s Republic of China against Money Laundering. We
have not experienced any confirmed matters or open legal proceedings
involving the Group or its employees over extortion, bribery, fraud, and
money laundering during FY2020.

COMMITMENT TO THE SUPPLY CHAIN

As a responsible company, we attach great importance to environmental
and social factors and are committed to sustainable operations. Similarly,
we also expect our suppliers to be self-disciplined, thereby making
a positive influence on the supply chain. We have signed a code of
conduct with suppliers that requires them to meet the legal requirements
concerning occupational health and safety, anti-discrimination,
environmental protection, anti-corruption and anti-fraud.

We conduct preliminary assessment of quality and pricing for introducing
new suppliers. In purchasing important materials, such as servers,
computers and printers, qualified new suppliers will be recorded on a
supplier list. Under normal circumstances, the list should have at least
three different suppliers in each category so as to disperse the risk arising
from any of the suppliers due to disqualification or our termination of
cooperation. For the existing suppliers, we conduct an annual assessment
to maintain the most desirable list of suppliers. We will review the prices,
product quality, payment terms, delivery and after-sales services of
product suppliers as well as the service quality, staff qualification and
sense of cooperation of service providers.
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COMMITMENT TO THE ENVIRONMENT
Emissions reduction

The Group strictly abides by the relevant laws and regulations, such as
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Environmental Protection
and the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Energy Conservation,
and vigorously advocates green office. Neither any significant exhaust
emissions and significant direct greenhouse gas emissions nor any water
and land pollution and hazardous and non-hazardous waste generation
and the like have been identified in the daily business operations of
the Group, and our business will not have any significant impact on the
environment and natural resources. The Group’s products are online
games and do not need to consume packaging materials. The main
consumption of resources is concentrated in the electricity and water
consumed in the Group’s operating premises and diesel oil used by
the Company’s vehicles. The Group spares no effort in environmental
protection. The Group adopts the low-carbon office concept in reducing
emissions, uses various measures including encouraging employees to
use public transport instead of private cars to reduce emissions, and
smoking is strictly prohibited in all parts of the office premises. Due
to these measures, the Group has been maintaining a relatively low
level of emissions, and such emission level does not pose significant
environmental and social impacts.

As a internet enterprise, the Group identified the two major sources of
waste: scrapped IT equipment and printing consumables. Therefore,
the Group has adopted corresponding measures to reduce resource
consumption, encourage recycling and reduce waste generation.For
scrapped IT equipment, including hosts, monitors and other equipment,
the Group will deal with it accordingly according to the situation of the
equipment.First,they are sorted according to the Company’s operational
needs and reusable parts are reserved for recycling and reuse purposes.
As such, the actual life cycle of electronic devices can be extended and
the aim of reducing the environmental hazard arising from electronic
product manufacturing can be achieved. Lastly, for dysfunctional
equipment, the Group will hire an electronic equipment recycling agency
to recycle it. By making rational use of such electronic equipment recycled
through these two major ways, the equipment can also be reused,
thereby reducing environmental pollution caused by electronic waste.
For printing consumables, the Group has engaged a printer maintenance
service provider to handle maintenance and repair of printers at several
offices to avoid the increased use of printing consumables due to the
aging and failure of printers. Going paperless in all work processes is
encouraged in the Group, with aims to reduce the use of paper and
printing consumables.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the papers recycled by the
Group amounted to approximately 165 kg.
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Resource efficiency

The Group advocates the concept of environmental protection, energy
conservation and low carbon office. To save natural resources, we have
taken the following actions:

. Emails, instant communication tools and WeChat at Work are used
and employees are not encouraged to print paper. Only necessary
documents are printed and double-sided printing and paper recycling
are being promoted. The Group encourages paperless processes in
work attendance approval, application for using conference rooms
and internal announcements, etc.

. For used materials in offline activities, recyclable materials are used
and used materials are recycled as far as possible to comply with
the principle of recycling.

. Priority is given to energy-saving lighting and other energy-saving
appliances in purchasing to reduce electricity consumption.

. Air conditioners are turned off during non-working hours or when
the office occupancy rate is low. In non-summer seasons like winter,
the use of air conditioners is suspended to reduce exhaust gas and
electricity consumption. New office premises are equipped with
transparent glass to increase the transparency and lighting, thus
reducing the need for office lights and reducing energy consumption.

. Signs reminding employees to save water are posted in toilets to
enhance employees’ awareness of water conservation.

Due to the above measures, the Group has been maintaining a relatively
low level of electricity and water consumptions, and such consumption
level does not pose significant environmental and social impacts.
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COMPREHENSIVE PERFORMANCE
Prevention of bribery and corruption

RERARRE
b5 L BE R R B (LS

2020 2019°
Indicators B —EBEH —ZE-hF
Cases involving bribery, extortion, fraud and WREARER - 8% - MFER
money laundering (number of cases) FERENERG (R) 0 0
Product and service quality EnkBREEE
Service performance: BRI -
2020 2019
Indicators B —EEH —E-NF
Legal cases in which products and services are
suspected of safety and health issues EmERE P RE 2 RERR
(number of case) FARM (R) 0 0
Cases in which products and services are
suspected of infringing intellectual B fb R ARSI IR A0 AN A R Y
property rights (number of case) ZMHHAE (R) (] 0
Complaints due to divulgement of
customer information (number of complaint) EeFER P13 BmE B R 20 (p) 0 0
Number of products and service Approximately Approximately
related complaints received Address BEBNERRREOEFEE 22,200 36,280
players’ questions (incidence) BEITKRERE OR) #122,200 #736,280
Emissions? BEmn?
Air pollutant emissions (office vehicles)®: RESREMBER (P ARE) 3
2020 2019
Indicators BE i Jemg 23 —Z-NEF
Nitrogen oxide (NOXx) (kilogram) Rafy (=) 1.60 1.28
Sulphur oxides (SOx) (kilogram) maty (F5) 0.07 0.05

The disclosure of data for the year of 2019 was mainly aimed to meet
the reporting principles of consistency in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules, and the
related disclosures in the 2020 ESG report shall prevail.

The Group’s business scope involves a small amount of paper and e-waste
emissions. As the data collection system is still in the process of being
established, the related data is not disclosed in the ESG report.

The calculation method and the emission factor of air pollutant emissions
were established with reference to the Technical Guide for Air Pollutant
Emission Inventory for Road Vehicles (Trial) issued by the Ministry of
Ecology and Environment of the PRC. The scope of calculation of air
pollutant emissions in 2019 includes 2 private car owned and used by
the Group, and the scope of calculation of air pollutant emissions in 2020
includes 2 private cars owned and used by the Group.

@ Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2020
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

5 HERERRE ()

Greenhouse gas emissions:

BEREBER

2020 2019

Indicators BE —E-EH —ZT-NF
Direct greenhouse gas emission*: RERBHEERNEY:
Office vehicles

(kilograms of carbon dioxide equivalent) PAB(FR-Z&(tREE 10,393.85 8,324.23
Average total direct greenhouse gas emissions

by each employee® (kilograms of B EBSTHRAERBEENESE

carbon dioxide equivalent per person) (Fr=—&tixEE/ A) 59.39 4451
Indirect greenhouse gas emission®: RERBRERE
Purchased electricity

(kilograms of carbon dioxide) SNBE ) (T8 kiR) 175,655.11 145,205.08
Average total indirect greenhouse gas

emissions by each employee BEEFIREREMERESE

(kilograms of carbon dioxide per person) (FrR=F i/ A) 1,003.74 776.50

4 The calculation method and the calculation of emission factors

were 4

established pursuant to the Guidelines for Accounting and Reporting of
Greenhouse Gas Emissions from Land-based Transportation Enterprises

(Trial) issued by the National Development and Reform Commission
PRC.

of the

5 The number of employees was derived from the total number of employees 5

of the Group as at December 31, 2020 and December 31,

respectively.

2019,

The scope of calculation of indirect greenhouse gas emissions includes
the indirect greenhouse gas emissions of our business generated by the
use of purchased electricity. The calculation method and the calculation of
emission factor of emission were established with reference to the “Notice
on Making 2018 Annual Carbon Emission Report and Verification and
Emission Monitoring Plan” — the 2015 national grid average emission factor
in the 2018 carbon emission supplementary data accounting report template
issued by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the PRC. In order to
improve the comparability of the data, the data for 2019 in this report have
been revised to adopt the same calculation factors as those for 2020.

i3
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BN RBTIREF EARENEBE R ERE
EREERHN(ELBESCERERBIN
BRE AR E R (B97)) FrlET »
EBEABBESEAEE T -_TF+-_A=+
—HEBE-_Z-AF+-_A=+t—BENEEHEE
BAZ -
IRAEREHEFNENTEEBIEEFEIING
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iz AR ALFE B R A AR IR 55 S0 3 4 10 BRI AT
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ENVIRNMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

RE - gRELARS (H)

the Group and purchased electricity. The calculation method and related
references are factored, given in Appendix Il of the How to Prepare an
Environmental, Social and Governance Report: Reporting Guidelines for
Environmental KPIs A2.1 issued by the Stock Exchange, “Motor Gasoline”
GB 17930-2016 — Table 3 Technical Requirements issued by the General
Administration of Quality Supervision, Inspection and Quarantine of the
PRC, the Standardization Administration of the PRC and Testing Party for
Motor Gasoline (VIA), and Guidelines for Accounting Methods and Reporting
of Greenhouse Gas Emission of Enterprises in Other Industrial Industries
indicating that the low calorie-generating value of gasoline is 44.80 GJ/
tonne (Trial) - Table 2.1 Default values for common fossil fuel characteristic
parameters issued by the National Development and Reform Commission of
the PRC.

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2020

Use of resources BREA
Energy consumption: BEIRERE
2020 2019
Indicators B —EEH —E-NEF
Purchased electricity (kilowatts-hour) SNEE S (FEF) 287,912.00 238,002.10
Average electricity consumption by BLEETFHENEREE
each employee (kilowatts-hour per person) (FTEF,A) 1,645.21 1,272.74
Gasoline (liter) (A F) 3,100.00 4,200.00
Average total gasoline consumption by
each employee (liter per person) BREB T TmERRE (RFAN) 17.71 22.46
Total energy consumption (megawatt-hour)’ wiEE KRR 7 316.75 277.07
Average total energy consumption by each
employee (megawatt-hour per person) BB HERE KRR, A) 1.81 1.48
Paper consumption: R EREE -
2020 2019
Indicators BE —E-EH —E-NF
Total paper consumption (kilogram) FRMREE (F=) 358.34 750.00
Average total paper consumption by
each employee (kilogram per person) B EEFERAARES (TR A) 2.05 4.01
7 The total energy consumption includes private cars owned and used by 7 LN EEEREEEEANALREFERN

FTRMRINEE S HHEFEREBELERHS
EHEABAERIMERARBHBOHARER
% deRERARE) M BIRWRENIEE
EHRESIA2ARFEARKABER R EEER
BREAR TEEREECERZEGEMN
(ERAH)IGB 17930-2016 — R 3E T (VIA)
R ERMERT RAPEARENBEEREREM
MEZEBERMHA(ITEAMITECE AT REH
BAZE R EEREEREER IR TRNEL RS
744.80 GJ/WE(F17))—K2.1F RALARES
ML2HREE -




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

RE - gRELARS (H)

of the Group as at December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019,
respectively.

Water consumption®: KHFEE®:
2020 2019
Indicators BE —E-EH —ZT-NF
Total water consumption (cubic meter) FRK#BE (3L75K) 1,421.00 805.00
Proportion of outsourced tap water (%) SME B ROKIE L (%) 100 100
Total water consumption by each person
(cubic meter per person) BEERKEE (SIHKAN) 8.12 4.30
Employment EE
Employee composition: BBk
2020 2019
Indicators BE —E-EH —ZT—hF
Number of employee (number)® BEEAZ(AN)® 175 187
By gender EIERIE D
Female employee (number) ZE R (AN) 60 64
Male employee (number) SEE(AN) 115 123
By age group BFERE D
Below 30 (number)8 30BRA T (A) 96 112
30 — 50 (number)? 30-50% (A) 76 73
Above 50 (number)? 50584 £ (A) 3 2
8 Water consumed by the Group comes from the municipal pipe network and 8 S E/AKERETRE RSB N SkEUKR
there are no issues in sourcing water. T HEERRE o
9 The number of employees was derived from the total number of employees 9 WEBABBES R ABEEZE _TZ-_SF+_A=+

—BEBEE-_T-AF+-_A=+-BNEERE
B A

e

ERE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

RE - gRELARS (H)

Occupational health and safety BERERZE
Health and safety of employees: BIRREZ: :
2020 2019
Indicators B —EEH —E-NEF
Number of work-related fatalities occurred
in the past three years including the BE=F (BERSFE)
reporting year (number of case) B T T A 0 0
Development and training B R
Employee training: 8T
2020 2019
Indicators B o223 —E-NEF
Total training hours LRE IR ER (/) 330.00 320.00
Per capita training hours (hours per person) AT E (VN A) 1.89 1.71

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2020




* |0ER

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
5 HERERRE ()

&HRBX (R
&Hi55]) &5

INDEX OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL RiE CHERE
AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE

ISSUED BY THE HONG KONG STOCK

EXCHANGE
General —RIKE
disclosures Related sections REgE ESGHER
and KPIs Description in the ESG report MR i g ERES
Environmental Aspect BIEERE
Aspect A1: Emissions BEA1: R
General Information on: Emissions reduction —MEE | FERRAEREEN - | [ RDHES
Disclosure (a) the policies; and KETHEBEES BERES
(b) compliance with relevant laws and BEYNEESH :
regulations that have a significant (a) B« &
impact on the issuer relating to air (b) BFHETABEATE
and greenhouse gas emissions, BIAERREE RADIRIE RS o
discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective Comprehensive KPI A1.1 | BErt e AR BE R EUE - | REERK
emissions data. performance E3i)
KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) | Comprehensive KPIA1.2 |RERBEBNE (UHEFE) | GREEY
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per performance R(mER)RE (MNEES | RR
unit of production volume, per facility). Bh - BERETE) o
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) | Data collection system KPIA13 |FTEEASHEEDEE (LA | kB R
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per |in the process of being AE)R(MER)EBE (MUE | &+
unit of production volume, per facility). established ES8 - BERETHE)
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in | Data collection system KPIA14 |FTEAEESEEYMESE (UM | WERER
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity |in the process of being FTE)R (WER)EE (WAET | @7 F
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per | established ES8N  BERETH) -
facility).
KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate Emissions reduction KPI A1.5 | $ LR K B 78 2 B0 18 1 I AT 1S | IR HERR
emissions and results achieved. R e
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non- | Emissions reduction KPI A1.6 | il RIR A EREZEEDH | BAHEK
hazardous wastes are handled, reduction FE  ORIRE £ S TE R
initiatives and results achieved. R ©
EREHEEBRL ZETFFR @
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ENVIRNMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

activities on the environment and natural

resources and the actions taken to

manage them.

BROBAZERCERERSE
RAREHTE)

General —RIKE

disclosures Related sections RERE ESGHRER

and KPIs Description in the ESG report MigE i g TRES

Aspect A2: Use of Resources BEA2: EREAR

General Policies on the efficient use of resources, | Resource efficiency —MEE | EREAER (BREER - | BRBE

Disclosure including energy, water and other raw IR B EA R ) B BSR
materials.

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption | Comprehensive KPIA21 |IREA B DM EE R B | GEER
by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total | performance ZERR(WE - fom) 85 | RB
(kWh in ’000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit BUUNTETEFFAE)REE
of production volume, per facility). (MABEEEN - BIHERE

FTHE) -

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity Comprehensive KPIA22 | BREKERTE (WLBER | FEEX
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per performance B - SERMEITE) © E3:
facility).

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency Resource efficiency KPI A2.3 | fid il g8 JR & A e 5T 8 R FT 15 | BIRAE
initiatives and results achieved. KR -

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in | Comprehensive KPI A2.4 | f it Sk EE A KR _E A FA] | SR & 4B
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water | performance, M URBRFABKS &SRS | KA -
efficiency initiatives and results achieved. | Resource efficiency RETBRR © BRME

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished | Not applicable KPIA25 | @ATABEMENEE | TER
products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, (AMEETE) R (WER) BEE
with reference to per unit produced. BhE o

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources BHEA3: BERRXRER

General Policies on minimising the issuer’s Not applicable —MEE | REEITAERRERRRAER | TEA

Disclosure significant impact on the environment and ERERZENBUR
natural resources.

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of | Not applicable KPI A3.1 | il 275 E B HIRE L RKAE | TEA
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

RE - gRELARS (H)

General —RIKE
disclosures Related sections RERE ESGHRER
and KPIs Description in the ESG report MigE i g TRES
Social Aspect HEHE
Aspect B1: Employment BEB1: &R
General Information on: Equal opportunity, —REE | BT EE BERE|TFEHKE
Disclosure (a) the policies; and caring for talents and e IERY - BRE - TEER|BEAL
(b) compliance with relevant laws and Labor standards g Zalb - RER A REAM | 48R
regulations that have a significant Rl RABFIA
impact on the issuer relating to (a) BR + &
compensation and dismissal, (b) BTFHETABEALE
recruitment and promotion, working HREBAR RO AR -
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment | The consolidated KPIB1.1 |15 ~ EIBEL - FEAER | FEERE
type, age group and geographical region. |performance discloses Kb [E S5 HI (R B B8 - TR TR
the total number of Rl KRR
employees by gender EoHEER
and age “mE
Aspect B2: Health and Safety BEB2: REHRZE
General Information on: Occupational health —MREE | ABRETE2 TERELRRE | BERFESR
Disclosure (a) the policies; and and safety EEEBRBEMBEN : ze
(b) compliance with relevant laws and (a) B &
regulations that have a significant (b) BFHBETABEALE
impact on the issuer relating to HIABRAE R AR BIR E R o
providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. | Comprehensive KPI B2.1 | A T{ERBRE M T AB R L | GRE B
performance o e
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and Occupational health KPI B2.3 | il FRER e B X R R M 2 & | B R e
safety measures adopted, how they are | and safety Bt ARBERITRERHF |2
implemented and monitored. o

—T—F
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ENVIRNMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

General —RIKE
disclosures Related sections RERE ESGHRER
and KPIs Description in the ESG report MigE i g TRES
Aspect B3: Development and Training BEB3: #ERIEZFI
General Policies on improving employees’ Staff development —MEE | FRRAREBTIEREN | BEIRE
Disclosure knowledge and skills for discharging duties HH R BE BV IER o faE B
at work. Description of training activities. JEED ©
Aspect B4: Labor Standards BEB4: TR
General Information on: Labor standards —MWHEE | BRI IEE TR mIS TH) - | 48R
Disclosure (a) the policies; and (a) B : &
(b) compliance with relevant laws and (b) BTFHETAEERTLE
regulations that have a significant WARBDAR ARG AR
impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forced labor.
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review Labor standards KPI B4.1 | fif il i 57 1B HE 18 7] &9 5 b LA | A5 )42 R
employment practices to avoid child and GRETIREHST -
forced labor.
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate Labor standards KPI B4.2 | il E BB RIS A HRA | BHE4ER|
such practices when discovered. BIE R TR 5]
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management [BEBS: fEEEE
General Policies on managing environmental and | Commitment to the —REE | EERMHEENRIEREERER | HHEEN
Disclosure social risks of the supply chain. supply chain BR © HGH
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility BEB6: EMEM
General Information on: Commitment to —MEE | FREMRHEEMMRENER | HEPY
Disclosure (a) the policies; and customers e FEE - REERLES|AHE
(b) compliance with relevant laws and Advertising labels HARFERIES EERE
regulations that have a significant Healthy network (a) B« & R A4
impact on the issuer relating to health (b) BTFHETAETERALE
and safety, advertising, labelling and WAREAR KRB ER -
privacy matters relating to products
and services provided and methods of
redress.
KPI 6.1 Percentage of total products sold or Not applicable KPI6.1 |EEXEEREREETEALR | TiEM
shipped subject to recalls for safety and FHEREAMAERKNE S
health reasons. Lt o
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

RE - gRELARS (H)

General —RIKE
disclosures Related sections RERE ESGHRER
and KPIs Description in the ESG report MigE i g TRES
KPI 6.2 Number of products and service related | Commitment to KP1 6.2 |BZEBNEMRRBHERFE|EPHEAE
complaints received and how they are customers BUAREE T -
dealt with
KPI 6.3 Description of practices relating to Intellectual property KPI 6.3 |t ERREMBERS | MBERE
observing and protecting intellectual BRI o
property rights.
KPI 6.5 Description of consumer data protection | Data security KPI 6.5 |fillEBEEERRERILBE | 8ELE
and privacy policies, how they are Ko UARMBERTRERT | LEBRE
implemented and monitored. b
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption EBEB7: RES
General Information on: Anti-corruption —MWHEE | BB IEEE c $R BEFR | RER
Disclosure (a) the policies; and SRR -
(b) compliance with relevant laws and (a) % &
regulations that have a significant (b) BTFHHRITAEBEATE
impact on the issuer relating to HIABRAE R AR BIH B R o
bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding | Comprehensive KPIB7.1 | REERAINE FHITALEEE | GREEX
corrupt practices brought against the issuer | performance REWEFRENBESHFARM | KR
or its employees during the reporting period BB RFRER -
and the outcomes of the cases.
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and | Anti-corruption KPI B7.2 | fillfr & E M REBHRIEF - | REF
whistle-blowing procedures, how they are REBRTRERFE -
implemented and monitored.
Aspect B8: Community Investment [BEB8: HEHRE
General Policies on community engagement to Commitment to the —MEEE | BB AR 2 R AR BT | ¥R A
Disclosure understand the needs of the communities | community EHEFENRREERTD | &H
where the issuer operates and to ensure SERMEFZEOBE -
its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for FY2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on November 24,
2014 as an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. The Group is a leading global online game
publisher for China-based game developers, with fast-growing in-house
development capabilities for mobile games.

The activities and particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are shown
under Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. An analysis of the
Group’s revenue and operating profit for the year by principal activities is
set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in
this annual report and Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the year, which includes a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group,
an analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key performance
indicators, particulars of important events affecting the Group during
the year, and an indication of likely future developments in the
Group’s business, could be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement”, “Management Discussion and Analysis” and “Corporate
Governance Report” in this annual report. In addition, a discussion on
relationships with its key stakeholders is included in the section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report”. The review and
discussion form part of this directors’ report.

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2020
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
EEemE (E)

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The consolidated results of the Group for FY2020 are set out on pages
113 to 119 of this annual report.

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of any final
dividend for FY2020 (FY2019: nil).

There is no arrangement in which a Shareholder has waived or agreed to
waive any dividends.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company currently does not have any pre-determined dividend
payout ratio. The amount of dividends actually distributed to the
Shareholders will depend on the Company’s earnings and financial
condition, operating requirements, capital requirements and any other
conditions that the Directors may deem relevant and will be subject to
approval of the Shareholders. The Board has the absolute discretion to
recommend any dividends.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from May 28,
2021 to June 2, 2021, both days inclusive, and during which period
no share transfer will be effected, for the purpose of ascertaining
shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the 2021 AGM to be
held on June 2, 2021. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the
2021 AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company’s share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than
4:30 p.m. on May 27, 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
EEemE (E)

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on page 14 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property and equipment of the Group during
FY2020 are set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements on
page 173 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is highly aware of the importance of environment protection
and has not noted any material non-compliance with all relevant laws
and regulations in relation to its business including health and safety,
workplace conditions, employment and the environment. The Group
has implemented environmental protection measures and has also
encouraged staff to be environmental friendly at work by consuming the
electricity and paper according to actual needs, so as to reduce energy
consumption and minimize unnecessary waste. For further details of
the Group’s environmental policies and performance, please refer to the
section of “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” in this annual
report.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
EEemE (E)

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during FY2020
are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements on pages
195 to 196 of this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
during FY2020 are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 197 to 198 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at December 31, 2020, the Company’s distributable reserves were
US$33.2 million.

BORROWINGS

As at December 31, 2020, the Company did not have any bank
borrowings.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during FY2020.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or the
laws of Cayman lIslands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders.
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE IPO

The net proceeds from the IPO amounted to approximately US$35.4
million after deducting share issuance costs and listing expenses. During
FY2020, the net proceeds from the listing were utilised in accordance
with the proposed applications set out in the section headed “Future
Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus, with the balance
unutilised amounting to approximately US$11.3 million. The balance of
fund will continue to be utilised according to the manner as disclosed
in the Prospectus. The Group held the unutilised net proceeds in
short-term deposits with licensed institutions in Hong Kong. In 2021, the
Company will use the proceeds raised from the IPO in accordance with
its development strategies, market conditions and intended use of such
proceeds. Details are set out in the following table:

Net amount
available as at Actual net

December 31, amount utilised

BERLRBERSRRFEAR

ARRRERR

R EMSFURFERI54AEE

BN BETRAR ETRX) - R -2

BEE  ETAT

BRIBFEEBBEARTNARE

RIARREE RS FIEMS | —HprE e R T
A MABBRIBREROB11.3BEET ° FIAE
HREBRERRERREZ AEHA - FEEKRD
RS RIRFRIAE BERE T RN BB
B 2% ARAHREEZERRE 5
BRARERARBEEHSTIENEERE  BAZ

farage o ¥ = i
LB - FIE5R

Unutilised
amount as at
December 31,

BThE:

Expected timeline for
utilising the remaining

2019 during FY2020 2020 net proceeds of
BE-E-NF BE-E-Z2F
tTZA=+—-B Z—B-EHEEE tZA=+—-B BAKTHENR
AHEARE BRBAFR HAREBAESE FEORBERYY
Usb’ 000 Usb’ 000 UsSD’ 000
FTErn FTErx FTEx
Investment 7,436.8 7.1 7,429.7  Expected to be fully utilised on or
before June 30, 2022
KE BEHR —_Z-_—F A=1H
S BIEHEA
Development and research 5,882.7 1,974.4 3,908.3  Expected to be fully utilised on or
before December 31, 2022
8 B T HER-_T__F+-RA=1—H
S BIEHEA
Expansion of online game business 2,656.3 2,656.3 —  Fully utilised
BREBESRE BEEEEHMA
Marketing and advertisement - - —  Fully utilised
e BEEEEHA
Working capital and other general 1,288.2 1,288.2 —  Fully utilised
corporate purposes
EEEEREM—REXAR BEEEEHA
Total 17,264.0 5,926.0 11,338.0
st
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Note: The expected timeline for utilising the remaining net proceeds is based on the
best estimation of the future market conditions made by the Group. It will be
subject to changes based on the current and future development of the market

conditions.

DIRECTORS

During FY2020 and up to the date of this annual report, the Board
consists of the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. LU Yuanfeng (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. HUANG Guozhan
Mr. HUANG Degiang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Imma LING Kit-sum
Mr. LI Yi Wen
Mr. LU Qibo

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from
each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules, and considers all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND THE SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the
Group as at the date of this annual report are set out on pages 19 to 25
in the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior Management” in
this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a specific term of one to three years commencing from
the date of the respective service contracts, which may be terminated
by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either the
executive Director or the Company.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed an
appointment letter with the Company for a specific term of one to three
years commencing from the date of the respective appointment letters,
which may be terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either of the Director or the Company. Under the respective
appointment letters, each of the independent non-executive Directors is
entitled to a fixed Director’s fee.

The appointments of the Directors are subject to the provisions of
retirement and rotation of Directors under the Articles.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered into any
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries (excluding
contracts expiring or determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation).

CONTRACT WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance was entered into between the Company or
any of its subsidiaries and the Controlling Shareholders or any of its
subsidiaries during FY2020 or subsisted at the end of the year and no
contract of significance for the provision of services to the Company
or any of its subsidiaries by a Controlling Shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries was entered into during FY2020 or subsisted at the end of
the year.
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DIRECTOR’S INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than disclosed in the section headed “Significant Related Party
Transactions” in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements
contained in this annual report, no transaction, arrangement and contract
of significance to the business of the Group which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or any entity
connected with such a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during FY2020.

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the Group
are decided by the Board with reference to the recommendation given
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the five highest
paid individual in the Group are set out in Notes 34 and 24 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report respectively.

For FY2020, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any Director or
any of the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the
Directors has waived any emoluments for FY2020.

Except as disclosed above, no other payments have been made or are
payable, for FY2020, by our Group to or on behalf of any of the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During FY2020, none of the Directors or their respective close associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in a business that
competed or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group, other than being a director of the Company and/or
its subsidiaries.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS
PURSUANT TO THE LISTING RULES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company does not have any
other disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20, 13.21 and 13.22 of the
Listing Rules.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

On November 24, 2017, each of the Controlling Shareholders entered
into the deed of non-competition (“Deed of Non-competition”) in
favor of the Company, pursuant to which the Controlling Shareholders
have irrevocably, jointly and severally given certain non-competition
undertakings to the Company. Details of the Deed of Non-competition
are set out in the section headed “Relationship with our Controlling
Shareholders — Deed of Non-competition” in the Prospectus.

The Controlling Shareholders confirmed that they have complied with
the Non-competition Deed for FY2020. The independent non-executive
Directors have conducted such review for FY2020 and also reviewed the
relevant undertakings and are satisfied that the Deed of Non-competition
has been fully complied with.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the Directors’ service contracts and appointment letters, no
contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Group was entered into or in
existence as at the end of the year or at any time during FY2020.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During FY2020, other than the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme as set out
in the section under “Post-IPO Share Option Scheme” and consolidated
financial statements, the Company has not entered into any equity-linked
agreement.
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MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For FY2020, Guangzhou ZYK instituted legal proceedings (the “Legal
Proceedings”) against Qianhai Huanjing in relation to the losses and
damages sustained by Guangzhou ZYK as a result of the unilateral
termination by Qianhai Huanjing of the IP Licensing Agreements. Hearing
of the Legal Proceedings by the Guangzhou Intellectual Property Court
has been scheduled on April 2, 2021. Details of the Legal Proceedings
are set out in the announcements of the Company dated May 18, 2020
and March 8, 2021.

Save as disclosed above, the Group was not involved in any material
legal proceedings during FY2020.

LOAN AND GUARANTEE

During FY2020, the Group had not made any loan or provided any
guarantee for loan, directly or indirectly, to the Directors, senior
management of the Company, the Controlling Shareholders or their
respective connected persons.

POST-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On May 27, 2017, the Company adopted the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme approved by the resolutions of our Shareholders. The purpose
of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is to attract, retain and motivate
employees, Directors and other participants, and to provide a means of
compensating them through the grant of options (“Options”) pursuant
to the terms of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme for their contribution
to the growth and profits of the Group, and to allow such employees,
Directors and other persons to participate in the growth and profitability of
the Group.

Our Board has appointed The Core Trust Company Limited as the trustee
(“Trustee”) for the administration of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
and to hold the Shares which may be granted under the Options through
Epic City Limited (“Nominee”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Trustee.
The Trustee shall act in accordance and cooperate with our Board for
the purpose of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. Our Company will
use Shares held by the Nominee and new Shares to be allotted by us to
satisfy the Options upon exercise.
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Existing Shares held by the Nominee

The Shares which may be transferred from the Nominee upon exercise
of all Options to be granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
shall not exceed 149,999,973 Shares (i.e. being the Shares held by the
Nominee representing 7.5% of the enlarged issued share capital of our
Company as of the Listing Date). Options lapsed in accordance with
the terms of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme shall not be counted
for the purpose of calculating this limit. For the avoidance of doubt,
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules only applies to the grant of options over
new shares or other new securities of a listed issuer or its subsidiaries.
For the Options to be satisfied by transfer of the existing Shares from
the Nominee to the relevant participants of the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme upon exercised, as there will be no new Share allotted by the
Company to satisfy these Options, such grants of Options were not and
will not be governed by Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

New Shares to be issued by our Company

The new Shares which may be issued by our Company upon exercise of
all Options to be granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and
other share option schemes of our Company (and to which the provisions
of the Listing Rules are applicable) shall not exceed 200,000,000 Shares,
(i.,e. 10% of the aggregate of the Shares in issue on the Listing Date
(“Scheme Mandate Limit") and as of the date of this annual report).
Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme shall not be counted for the purpose of calculating this
Scheme Mandate Limit.

As of the date of this annual report, 200,000,000 Shares are available for
issue, which representing 10% of the total issued Shares.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon the exercise of
the options granted to or to be granted to each eligible person under the
Share Option Scheme (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in
issue.
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An Option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme at any time during the period to be determined
by our Board at its absolute discretion and notified by our Board to each
grantee of the Options (the “Grantee”) as being the period during which
an Option may be exercised and in any event, such period shall not be
longer than 10 years from the date upon which any particular Option is
granted in accordance with the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. Options
may be vested over such period(s) as determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion subject to compliance with the requirements under
any applicable laws, regulations or rules.

The exercise price (“Exercise price”) shall be such price as determined
by our Board in its absolute discretion at the time of the grant of the
relevant Option (and shall be stated in the letter containing the offer of
the grant of the Option), but in the case that any Share would be allotted
and issued to a Grantee upon the exercise of an Option in accordance
with the terms of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, the Exercise Price
shall not be less than the higher of (a) the closing price of the Shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant, which must be a Business Day, (b) the average closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for
the five (5) Business Days immediately preceding the date of grant, and
(c) the nominal value of a Share. For the avoidance of doubt, in the case
that the Share would be transferred from the Trustee to a Grantee upon
the exercise of an Option in accordance with the terms of the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme, the Exercise Price shall be determined by the
Board, as it may think fit taking into account the Grantee’s contribution to
the development and growth of the Group.

A summary of the terms of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme has been
set out in the section headed “D. Share Incentive Scheme” in Appendix IV
of the Prospectus.
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On February 15, 2018, the Board approved to grant Options from the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme to eligible employees for their past
contribution to the success of the Group, and to provide incentives to
them to further contribute to the Group, the details of which are set out in
the announcement of the Company dated February 20, 2018.

The Options are conditionally vested upon satisfying specified service
vesting condition, which is mutually agreed by the employees and
the Company. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to
repurchase or settle the Options in cash.

On February 15, 2018, 49,498,610 Options, which are to be satisfied
solely by the Shares held by Epic City Limited when they are exercised,
were granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. No new
Share will be allotted to satisfy such Options. The vesting period of the
Options is three years and the vesting schedule is 33.33% after twelve
months from the grant date, 33.33% after twenty-four months from the
grant date, and 33.34% after thirty-six months from the grant date. The
Exercise Price of the Options granted is HK$0.0074 per Share (in respect
of 21,419,696 share options), or US$0.0074 per Share (in respect of
28,078,914 share options) (equivalent to HK$0.0579 per Share based on
the exchange rate of HK$1.00 to US$0.1279). As no new Shares will be
allotted by the Company to satisfy the Options, the grant of the Options is
not governed by Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The options granted vested as follows:

33.33% vested
Further 33.33% vested
Remaining 33.34% vested

On the 1st anniversary of the date of grant
On the 2nd anniversary of the date of grant
On the 3rd anniversary of the date of grant

No Option has been granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
to a Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company
or an associate of any of them (as defined in the Listing Rules) since its
adoption and up to December 31, 2020.
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The Company has not granted any Options to be satisfied by new Shares
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. Details of movements of the
number of the Options to be satisfied by existing Shares held by the
Nominee under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme for FY2020 are set
out below:
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—A—H HMRFEER BHRFEER BHRFER ERTESERT
8 RATEE iR 88 KB ROBLEHNBEIL) TEE
39,977,019 3,335,966 - 212,758 36,428,295 HK$0.0074 or US$0.0074
(1.82%)  0.0074/#7C3£0.00743% 7T
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
EEemE (E)

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE IN SECURITIES

As at December 31, 2020, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which (a) were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which he/
she was taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or
(b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in
the register referred to therein; or (c) were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as
follows:

Interest in Shares or Underlying Shares of our
Company

ERBSITBRAERESNE

EDK ekt

?,;

¢+ A=1+—B ARAEFL&ES
ﬁﬁl BRARARAEEE (ERERESLYE
1'%1§\J%XV*B)H§H§? - HBERO REFTEA (a)RiE
EFMPEROIEXVEFTRFE8NEBEMEAR
ﬂ&ﬁé‘ﬁ“ﬁﬁ(@?E*E%F‘“%&EﬂfﬂlﬂﬂE’]MS{ %
SIS REANERIORE) (D) IREBEEFSFR
HEEPIFE 3521 BCAZIGPIENERLRMT
(C)MARIFBZRETRIZAMEG AR R LI X r s sk
KB :

N

m]n\\

A1 7] B 40 20 AR BA AR 4 B R

Approximate
percentage of the

Number of ordinary Company’s issued
Name of Director Nature of Interest shares interested" share capital
BEEREREN EARR BB BT
EEHE ERME ZEREAO BRAENMAOED
Mr. LU Yuanfeng® Interest in controlled corporation; interest of 947,958,387 (L) 47.40%
spouse; interest held jointly with
another person
Re R U S A @ REGEEER  BEER  BE - ALTHE
$ B
Mr. HUANG Guozhan® Interest in controlled corporation; interest held 947,958,387 (L) 47.40%
jointly with another person
HmEDESEA® SEHEEER HE - AT HRABENER
Mr. HUANG Degiang® Interest in controlled corporation; interest held 947,958,387 (L) 47.40%

jointly with another person
HIBREE® Tt EERERS HE - AT HRABENER

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2020



DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
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EERRE (K)

Notes:

(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

(2) Under the SFO, Mr. LU Yuanfeng is deemed to be interested in all Shares
held by LYF Digital Holdings Limited, a company which is wholly owned by
him. Mr. LU Yuanfeng is also deemed to be interested in all Shares held by (i)
Ms. LUO Simin as Ms. LUO Simin is the spouse of Mr. LU Yuanfeng; and (ii)
Mr. HUANG Guozhan and Mr. HUANG Degiang as they are parties acting in
concert.

(3) Under the SFO, Mr. HUANG Guozhan is deemed to be interested in all Shares
held by (i) LXT Digital Holdings Limited, a company which is wholly owned by
him; and (ii) Mr. LU Yuanfeng, Ms. LUO Simin and Mr. HUANG Degiang as
they are parties acting in concert.

(4) Under the SFO, Mr. HUANG Degiang is deemed to be interested in all Shares

held by (i) HDQ Digital Holdings Limited, a company which is wholly owned by
him; and (ii) Mr. LU Yuanfeng, Ms. LUO Simin and Mr. HUANG Guozhan as
they are parties acting in concert.

Interest in associated corporation

e

(1

(2

3)

4)

FRILIEZALTRBEOHIEFR -

RIEEHFRBEGED - ERE L EHIEANLYF
Digital Holdings Limited (% & & # A A ) FiiEE
R P HEA R o FEIRIE ST A IR AR (1) 582
BT (BRBERBHLTAERESLENREB) : &
(NEBE A REEA A (BREER—BITEA
T/ ENRHRMPEEEE o

RIBEEH RSN - FEE L EWR B ()LXT
Digital Holdings Limited(#2&#AMAR]) : &
(PEREE A BEBHL T RFEEREE (ARES
BBITBAL) R OPEEER -

RIEE S REERA - BEBTERBR /R ()HDQ
Digital Holdings Limited(#2&#AMAR]) : &
(iPEIRIE ST & - BB T REBEELE (BRES
BRITBAL) R HROPHEEER -

RAEEE B RS

Approximate
percentage of

Capacity/nature Number of shareholding
Name of Director Associated Corporation of interest Shares interest
EENE HEER B ntE RHHBE BAORER DL
Mr. LU Yuanfeng LYF Digital Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 100 100%
BRI 5T A LYF Digital Holdings Limited EnfiEA
Mr. HUANG Guozhan LXT Digital Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 100 100%
HEEE A LXT Digital Holdings Limited BEmEBA
Mr. HUANG Degiang HDQ Digital Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 100 100%
=EREL HDQ Digital Holdings Limited ExnHEBA
Note: B3
(1)  Under the SFO, a holding company is regarded as an “associated (1) BEEFFRIAEE - ZEIFEE R BB

corporation.” As of December 31, 2020, LYF Digital Holdings Limited, LXT
Digital Holdings Limited and HDQ Digital Holdings Limited held 27.64%,
2.85% and 4.91% of our issued share capital, respectively, and thus are our
associated corporations.

E| - #EZ-T-ZTF+-A=+—H8 ' LYF Digital
Holdings Limited * LXT Digital Holdings Limited }z
HDQ Digital Holdings Limited % 5lI# 8 ® M2 %
IR A 27.64% + 2.85%[24.91% + FUIL R H A
HEREEE o

BHREBHEEERAT

—TTFFR
.|.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
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Save as disclosed above and in the section headed “Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme” and to the best knowledge of the Directors, as at
December 31, 2020, none of the Directors or the chief executive of
the Company has any interests and/or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he/she was taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein or which were
required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

As at December 31, 2020, the following corporations/persons had
interests of 5% or more in the issued shares of the Company according to
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company under section

336 of the SFO:

BEXRITERARBERBRESS ] —HRES
REBEEMAMN R_T_TE+_A=+—H"
BEARFEERRSTRABR AR R KE B
EE(EERFZ LB GIEXVELR) D - 48
Bk RESH A REE %&%E%W%Mﬂh
TRESDMAME AR NE A (BERER

RHERERPINR - RE IR S EA R
B) - RBEES M ERDIE 352 FALAZGHI T

BRELMR RARBRE
e s &SR A -

EFRIZBAE AR T KRR

FERRRESFHED

RZEZZEFF+ZRA=+—8 ' BAARREE
&Hﬂﬁ1l*1§|l%3 6IRATFEN R T MRS -
INTER ATBEARRRE EHITRME% A L
s

Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s

Number of ordinary issued share

shares interested™ capital
Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest mEERN ERDRE BT
RREE,EH BEME ZERHE® BRENBNE D
Mr. LU Yuanfeng® Interest in a controlled corporation; 947,958,387 (L) 47.40%
interests of spouse; interest held
jointly with another person
BERIE L ED SEGEE RS BB — AT
HKREFHANER
LYF Digital Holdings Limited Beneficial owner; interests held 947,958,387 (L) 47.40%
jointly with another person
LYF Digital Holdings Limited EnEBA HE-ATHABAENER
Ms. LUO Simin® Interest in a controlled corporation; 947,958,387 (L) 47.40%

interests of spouse; interest held

jointly with another person
REHEERER  IBER B3

HEAFHAOER

BRBHLL®
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)

EEERE (8

Number of ordinary

Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
issued share

shares interested™ capital

Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest BREEEN ERATERT

RREE,EH ERiME ZERHA® RANBMOE DL

Angel Age Limited Beneficial owner; interests held 947,958,387 (L) 47.40%
jointly with another person

Angel Age Limited EnEBA HE-ATHABAENER

Mr. HUANG Guozhan® Interest in a controlled corporation; 947,958,387 (L) 47.40%
interest held jointly with another person

BERA AW REHEERS - BE— AT HREBANER

LXT Digital Holdings Limited Beneficial owner; interests held 947,958,387 (L) 47.40%
jointly with another person

LXT Digital Holdings Limited g - ATRRABENER

Mr. HUANG Degiang® Interest in a controlled corporation; 947,958,387 (L) 47.40%
interest held jointly with another person

BEARKEO REEERR  BE - ATHAKENES

HDQ Digital Holdings Limited Beneficial owner; interests held 947,958,387 (L) 47.40%
jointly with another person

HDQ Digital Holdings Limited EnlEA HE-ATHABENER

7Road Holdings Beneficial owner 294,144,901 (L) 14.71%

FLRBEER BERERA

The Core Trust Company Limited® Trustee 146,087,189 (L) 7.30%

The Core Trust Company Limited® A

Epic City Limited® Nominee for another person 146,087,189 (L) 7.30%

Epic City Limited®

S—ATHRABA
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
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Notes:

(1M

(2

®)

4)

®)

(6)

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

Under the SFO, Mr. LU Yuanfeng is deemed to be interested in all Shares
held by LYF Digital Holdings Limited, a company which is wholly owned by
him. Mr. LU Yuanfeng is also deemed to be interested in all Shares held by (i)
Ms. LUO Simin as Ms. LUO Simin is the spouse of Mr. LU Yuanfeng; and (ii)
Mr. HUANG Guozhan and Mr. HUANG Degiang, as they are parties acting in
concert.

Under the SFO, Ms. LUO Simin is deemed to be interested in all Shares
held by Angel Age Limited, a company which is wholly owned by her. Ms.
LUO Simin is also deemed to be interested in all Shares held by (i) Mr. LU
Yuanfeng as Mr. LU Yuanfeng is the spouse of Ms. LUO Simin; and (ii) Mr.
HUANG Guozhan and Mr. HUANG Degiang, as they are parties acting in
concert.

Under the SFO, Mr. HUANG Guozhan is deemed to be interested in all Shares
held by (i) LXT Digital Holdings Limited, a company which is wholly owned by
him; and (ii) Mr. LU Yuanfeng, Ms. LUO Simin and Mr. HUANG Degiang as

they are parties acting in concert.

Under the SFO, Mr. HUANG Degiang is deemed to be interested in all Shares
held by (i) HDQ Digital Holdings Limited, a company which is wholly owned by
him; and (ii) Mr. LU Yuanfeng, Ms. LUO Simin and Mr. HUANG Guozhan as

they are parties acting in concert.

The Core Trust Company Limited, being the trustee of Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme, directly holds the entire issued share capital of Epic City Limited,
which holds Shares underlying the options to be granted under the scheme for

the benefit of eligible participants pursuant to such scheme.

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the Directors, as
at December 31, 2020, no person had registered an interest or a short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO.
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(1

(2

3)

4)

(5)

(6)

B bSO EEE S

FEILIRTZALREDFOER

REBEFEFRBERD - FEREEEHRBRLYF
Digital Holdings Limited (¥ 2 & # AR EDFEH
Z2EBRGPEA R o ERE T AE TR B ()5
Bzt (HRBER Lt AEEENE) ()=
BUHAEERERBREE (AREER—BITHAL)
HENRHRDPEAER

RIEFEFRBAEE - BBBH LR AN Angel
Age Limited( 2 EH BN LR FHEHNE A+
AR - REHXTRERAR()ERELE (A
REERIE L £ BB L BB R (i) EBREERE
TRk E (BRESFA—BITPHAL)FENEIR
DA °

RIBEEH RSN - FEE L EWR AR ()LXT
Digital Holdings Limited (i & & B KA A]) K (i)
RIS A - SRR ML T RERALEE (ARESA
—BAPADBENEBROPES S -

RIEE S LB ERA - BEBTERB/R()HDQ
Digital Holdings Limited (i & & B KA A]) K (i)
RIS A - BRBH LT RERRLEE (ARESA
—BIAPADBENEBROPES R -

The Core Trust Company Limited (Bl & /X AR &
BRI BN Z LA ) EEIF B Epic City Limited
M2 B EITIRA - MEpic City Limited AR EZ AT
ERAER2EENFIRIFARBZT R LN
BB S R HIR 1D

REBEMARA R-T-ZF

= —=

TZA=+—8  TEEMATHEAEARRRES
FRHEHRDIFE336FFENELMALESEOAR
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, at no time during FY2020
was the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of Shares in, or debt securities including debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During FY2020, the Group’s largest customer accounted for 20.8% of the
Group’s total revenue. The Group’s five largest customers accounted for
69.2% of the Group’s total revenue.

During FY2020, the Group’s largest supplier accounted for 38.0% of the
Group’s total purchases. The Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
70.1% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as defined under
the Listing Rules) or any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of
the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
has any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers or the
Group’s five largest customers.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION OF HOLDERS
OF LISTED SECURITIES

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to the
Shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

BEROIEERZH

BRERRHBEERBRESSS - AAF - HEK
NESEMHBERREER T TP RFENE
MEHEE M2 HEEEEBEEART
SEMEMEABBRNDHETES (BREERS

FTEREBRER

RIZB-THRFEAN  FAEENZAFFHERE
BB A20.8% - REBE T KRE P15 A& E &
A69.2% °

REZZB-ZHHRFEAN - AEBEORAREEER
SERIBAERE38.0% - REEN O AHERIEARE
B REE4RRET0.1% °

MEESIETAREHEA (ERR EMARRD K
FABERERMRANEEARR D BETREASZNE%
MR R A BN AR BN AT, H#EE E

§¥FF¥
BEmEm °©

%ﬁ%%%ﬁk%ﬁﬁ@%ﬁ%
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at December 31, 2020, the Group had 175 employees (December
31, 2019: 187), 63 of which were responsible for game development and
maintenance, 84 for game operation and offline events organisation,
and 28 for general administration and corporate management. The total
remuneration expenses, excluding share-based compensation expense,
for FY2020 were approximately US$4.1 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 8.9% as compared to FY2019. The Group enters into
employment contracts with its employees to cover matters such as
position, term of employment, wage, employee benefits and liabilities for
breaches and grounds for termination.

Remuneration of the Group’s employees includes basic salaries,
allowances, bonus, share options and other employee benefits, and is
determined with reference to their experience, qualifications and general
market conditions. The emolument policy for the employees of the
Group is set up by the Board on the basis of their merit, qualification
and competence. We provide regular training to our employees in order
to improve their skills and knowledge. The training courses range from
further educational studies to skill training to professional development
courses for management personnel.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group’s employees in Hong Kong have all participated in the
Mandatory Provident Fund in Hong Kong. The employees of the PRC
subsidiaries are members of the state-managed retirement benefits
scheme operated by the PRC government. The employees of the PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to this retirement benefits scheme is
to make the required contributions under the scheme.

Details of the pension obligations of the Company are set out in Note 24
to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for FY2020 are set
out in consolidated financial statements contained herein. The related
party transactions did not constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Board, as at the date of this annual report,
the Company has maintained the public float as required under the Listing
Rules.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance) in relation to the Director’s and officer’s liability insurance is
currently in force and was in force during FY2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company recognizes the importance of good corporate governance
for enhancing the management of the Company as well as preserving
the interests of the Shareholders as a whole. The Company has adopted
the code provisions set out in the CG Code as its own code to govern its
corporate governance practices.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the
relevant code provisions contained in the CG Code during FY2020, save
for deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code for FY2020.
Please refer to the section headed “Board of Directors” in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 38 to 41 of this annual report for details.

The Board will continue to review and monitor the practices of the
Company with an aim to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance.

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 37 to
52 of this annual report.

BB S X3
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
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DONATIONS

Since the COVID-19 Outbreak in early 2020, a series of precautionary
and control measures have been and continued to be implemented
across China and other countries in the world. To shoulder our social
responsibilities and offer humanitarian support, the Group has promptly
launched an assistance scheme in response to the COVID-19 Outbreak.
Under this scheme, the Group has mobilised its global subsidiaries to
procure medical masks, protective gowns and other medical supplies and
has donated the same to medical institutions, government bodies, and
charitable organisations in countries in the world.

Save as disclosed above, during FY2020, the Group did not make any
charitable donations.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for FY2020 have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment at the forthcoming 2021 AGM.

There has been no change in auditor of the Company since the Listing
Date.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

For FY2020, the Company has complied with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Company.

On behalf of the Board
LU Yuanfeng
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, March 30, 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB HRE

To the Shareholders of Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Digital Hollywood Interactive
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 113 to 224, which comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 2020;

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
December 31, 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International
Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants (IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is summarised as follows:
. Revenue recognition — estimates of lifespan of in-game virtual items

with reference to expected playing period of paying players in the
Group’s online game service
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

BAZBE®RE (&)

Key Audit Matter
BRESE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNEFNMEEFERENSHE

Revenue recognition — estimates of lifespan of in-game
virtual items with reference to expected playing period of
paying players (“Player Relationship Period”) in the Group’s
online game service

WAER -2 BESENEEERRSET KB ERSERH
(IKBES]) - A EEERBEANERF

Refer to Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements
FBLHA B IRERITES ©

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Group’s
revenue from online games amounted to USD17,537,512,
representing 99.9% of the Group’s total revenue. It was
mainly derived from the sales of in-game virtual items.
The amount of associated contract liabilities amounted to
USD1,765,490, as at December 31, 2020, representing
15.8% of the Group’s total liabilities as at that date.
BHE_Z_TF+_A=+—HIEFE " EEERARABEL
BV A /17,637,612 7T » (5 EEERAKRAR9.9% » WA
TEREBHERMEREA R -Z-EF+-A=1+—H#H
BOEHNBESIER1765490F T ' 16 ESENZANES
E15.8% °

We understood, evaluated and validated the key controls in
relation to the recognition of revenue from in-game virtual
items, including oversight exercised by management in
assessing the Player Relationship Period and computing
the monthly revenue of game virtual items performed by
management; inspection of evidence of management’s
review; testing of the integrity and system logic of data and
information for supporting the determination of the Player
Relationship Period, on a sample basis.

BT R FHEFIERE B R XELEJ&FE%LE\E’JLI&U\ZEE
B BREEENENRBEDATEEBERBANEAK
i”ﬁlﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬂmﬁ*g'*AQEEEFL%T%FW\J B AR
FRARBELHETTRBERPINEERENN TBEERFER

BT -

We discussed with management and evaluated their
judgements and estimations made in determining the Player
Relationship Period for each game. We also assessed the
accuracy of the management’s judgements and estimations by
comparing to historical patterns on a sample basis.
BMBRERENw - WAB T RENGEEEE TR AESR
FTYE Y 2 SRR o B APIIREE B LA 7 =L B e fE VR L B
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

BAZBE®RE (&)

Key Audit Matter
BRESE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNEFNMEEFERENSHE

The Group’s in-game virtual items are categorised as both
consumable virtual items and durable items. Revenue
derived from consumable items in its online game service
are recognised once they are consumed. Revenue derived
from durable virtual items in its online game services are
recognised ratably over the lifespan of durable virtual items
with reference to Player Relationship Period (defined in Note
2.19), on a game by game basis. If the Group does not have
the ability to differentiate revenue attributable to durable
items from consumable items for a specific game, the Group
recognises revenue from both durable and consumable
items for that game ratably over the Player Relationship
Period. During the year ended December 31, 2020, all in-
game virtual items were treated as durable items by the
Group.

HEEENEREREARER/HRREREA LB EERE
B oo kB H BRI ER TS A H R ARE A B9 WA TY A K #E i B
R REEWEBEBREANARERBENKRA - THAZRE
BEAERE - 2ZMKEEE (& RMEE2.19) KO A 4R E

BANGEASGARLOIER - Wt XEEEEBmE - E5E
BEDRBRATIREMBEBAELEREEBER B BE&E

MEREER U BEERERA - RPIERKAMALERREA
MEHBRA - RBE_Z-_TF+_A=+—RLLFE FH
BREFEATE BEXERAMARER -

The determination of the Player Relationship Period for
relevant game virtual items requires significant judgement
and estimates. It is made taking into account all known and
relevant information available to the Group at the time of
assessment. Thus, specific audit focus was placed in this
area.

SRR E R B AEE I RBAE - AE L E R R
MU ERE EEBETIHEERAGNERERHE
e B b EE R R EET BT ES o
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We also recalculated the contract liabilities balance based on
the respective Player Relationship Period of each game on a
sample basis.

BPE AR - RESEZRS BN NKBERBENTE
TEREBEER -

Based on the above, we found that the significant judgement
and estimates involved in determining the Player Relationship
Period adopted by management in the revenue recognition
of in-game virtual items of the Group were supported by the
evidence we obtained.

HERALEE  RMEREEEETY SSEOBEERE
BEER AR RANITRAERAMEZ EXAE LG - 5
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BB ()

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the

in doing so,

consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BB ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BB ()

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the those charged with governance, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BB ()

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Fong Wan Huen.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, March 30, 2021

@ Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2020
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEERER

As at December 31,2020 P —Z-ZF+ - F=+—H

2020 2019
—z-e2s —EN\&F
Note usb usD
B 5E ES ET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E YN 6 1,743,556 1,975,917
Right-of-use assets EREEE 7 1,633,824 1,843,078
Intangible assets B EE 8 418,830 1,862,822
Prepayments and other receivables 5‘51‘1‘ R K b MR 15 3,714,391 3,881,573
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISTE B 13 - 11,779
Financial assets at fair value through AR EBEFEEESE
other comprehensive income FTAE M2 E A
SREE 9 1,164,245 963,185
8,674,846 10,538,354
Current assets RBEE
Contract costs BRI A 5 616,740 771,402
Trade receivables B 5 EWRIE 14 1,282,604 2,234,622
Prepayments and other receivables TE A 3R e E A FE IR 15 13,783,691 20,471,647
Short-term deposits EHER 16 5,000,000 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReNREEED 16 26,914,401 25,320,274
47,597,436 48,797,945
Total assets HWEE 56,272,282 59,336,299
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Equity attributable to owners AAREEABGER
of the Company
Share capital %N 17 2,000,000 2,000,000
Shares held for the Share Option Scheme MERE EIR ARG 17 (144,224) (147,560)
Reserves (e 18 39,569,808 38,104,404
Retained earnings REB&F 3,679,904 7,318,884
Total equity R 45,105,488 47,275,728

-

R
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)
AHEEAER (R)

As at December 31,2020 R —Z-ZTF+ - A=+—H

2020 2019
—z-e2s —EN\&F
Note usbD uUsD
ihg=2 ES e
Liabilities =L
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Lease liabilities HEaE 1,623,045 1,800,872
Deferred income tax liabilities BEEMBHAaE 13 - 5,757
1,623,045 1,806,629
Current liabilities k=R
Trade payables B SRR 20 3,866,255 3,095,087
Contract liabilities aHlaE 5 2,448,797 3,508,007
Lease liabilities HEAE 7 295,702 270,123
Other payables and accruals EMEMNZIEREREA 21 2,721,422 3,057,942
Current income tax liabilities BHAF SR e’ 211,573 322,783
9,543,749 10,253,942
Total liabilities HweE 11,166,794 12,060,571
Total equity and liabilities BREXRAE 56,272,282 59,336,299

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with LA & O & B B (& 3R e RS I a0 P S — OB EE -

the accompanying notes.

The financial statements on pages 113 to 224 were approved by the FENMIE 224 BN B RECHESTEN T = —

Board of Directors on March 30, 2021 and were signed on its behalf. FZA=Z+HAMAETRAREE -
Director Director
EZ =

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2020



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BftEElER

For the year ended December 31, 2020 HiE—ZT =%

FH-A=+t—RHIFE

2020 2019
—EC-EF —E-NF
Note uUsbD usbD
B 5E EH ET
Revenue N 5 17,550,312 17,918,989
Cost of revenue A 23 (8,389,947) (9,522,439)
Gross profit E7 9,160,365 8,396,550
Selling and marketing expenses HE REHMX 23 (5,419,249) (4,145,546)
Administrative expenses 1TERF X 23 (4,850,805) (5,700,502)
Research and development expenses R 23 (1,877,748) (2,365,790)
Net impairment losses on financial assets imﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ}gﬁé}%gﬁ 23 (527,229) (1,384,675)
Impairment of investment in an associate NBEE R RIRIRE 2 RE 23 - (652,596)
Other (losses)/gains, net Hth (B18), W= F58 22 (34,232) 307,106
Operating loss REEE (3,548,898) (5,545,453)
Finance income ZURi 3N 25 224,209 57,075
Finance costs IR IDF 25 (114,026) (114,612)
Finance income/(costs), net IS (AR F 5 25 110,183 (57,537)
Loss before income tax BRETBRATEE (3,438,715) (5,602,990)
Income tax expense PR 26 (200,265) (158,816)
Loss for the year FREE (3,638,980) (5,761,806)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hib2mEWKE A (EE)
Item that may be reclassified subsequently AREREREN ER
to profit or loss BamMIEE
— Currency translation differences - EBmEER 599,596 (75,831)
Item that may not be reclassified subsequently HigxNeEHHEE
to profit or loss BaMIEE
— Changes in fair value of investment in —DLAnBEAEEHEH
equity securities at fair value through AR A 2 E U ERH)
other comprehensive income RABHZER
A ElEE 201,060 (1,685,994)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRAZHEEGEEE (2,838,324) (7,523,631)
PEHREEBEEFRAT —T_TFFH @
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Continued)

afftzERER (F)

For the year ended December 31,2020 HZ - Z-TF+-A=+—HILtFE

2020 2019
—EEF —E-NEF
Note usbD uUsbD
B 5 EH ET
Loss attributable to: DT R
Owners of the Company AATHEA (3,638,980) (5,761,806)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to: DTREEEEEREALE
Owners of the Company RAREER A (2,838,324) (7,523,631)
Loss per share BREE (USKREWSIR)
(expressed in USD cents per share) 27
— Basic — &R (0.20) (0.31)
— Diluted —#% (0.20) (0.31)
Dividends [iEdS8 28 _ _

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

EOEREBR

For the year ended December 31,2020 HEZ — T —_ZF+_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RATEE AEL
Shares
held for
the Share
Share Option Retained
capital Scheme  Reserves earnings Total
BB RES A
BE  BEZRS e REEF @t
Note usbD usbD usbD usD usD
Bk En En En ESH En
Balance at January 1, 2020 R-E-ZF
—A—-Bf&R 2,000,000 (147,560) 38,104,404 7,318,884 47,275,728
Loss for the year FRERE - - - (3,638,980) (3,638,980)
Other comprehensive income H 2 EK S
— net gain from changes in fair -ROABEHER
value of financial assets at fair HEB T AEM
value through other ZENENEE
comprehensive income EENDAEE
BEhaFE - - 201,060 - 201,060
— currency translation differences —EWBEER 18 - - 599,596 = 599,596
Total comprehensive gain/(loss) ER2EKE(BE)
for the year E - - 800,656 (3,638,980) (2,838,324)
The Share Option Scheme R 2
— exercise of share options — TR - 3,336 12,068 - 15,404
— value of employee services - EERBKEE - - 652,680 - 652,680
Balance at December 31, 2020 R-Z-ZF
+ZA=1+-HHEH 2,000,000 (144,224) 39,569,808 3,679,904 45,105,488

BREBHEEERAT
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

BOfEZZER (H)

For the year ended December 31,2020 HZ - Z-TF+-A=+—HILtFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AAREB AElL
Shares
held for
the Share
Share Option Retained
capital Scheme Reserves earnings Total
HERE B
B mEZRG R REEF &t
Note usb UsD UsD UsD UsD
fiE S = = T ey
Balance at January 1, 2019 RZE-h#F
—B—HEE 2,000,000 (150,000) 38,282,476 13,144,180 53,276,656
Change in accounting policy SEHPKE - - - (83,490) (63,490)
Balance at January 1, 2019, restated —Z-NE-A—H 2,000,000
e K& (150,000) 38,282,476 13,080,690 53,213,166
Loss for the year FREE - - - (5,761,806) (5,761,806)
Other comprehensive loss Hin2EER
— net loss from changes in fair -RARBEHER
value of financial assets at HE# AEM
fair value through other FEBENER
comprehensive income EENRRER
BEERFE - - (1,685,994) - (1,685,994)
— currency translation differences - BlmEEE 18 - - (75,831) - (75,831)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FR2HEEEALE - - (1,761,825) (5,761,806) (7,523,631)
Transaction with owners in their HBEBA (UEBAEHR)
capacity as owners MRS
The Share Option Scheme g B
— exercise of share options — TR R - 2,440 6,319 - 8,759
— value of employee services —EER%ERE - - 1,577,434 - 1,577,434
Balance at December 31, 2019 RZE-IF
+T-A=1+—-AWEe 2,000,000 (147,560) 38,104,404 7,318,884 47,275,728

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BOHRETRER

For the year ended December 31,2020 HEZ — T —_ZF+_A=+—HIFE

2020 2019
—EEF —E-NEF
Note uUsbD usbD
B 5E EH ET
Cash flows from operating activities REKLETHNESR
Cash generated from/(used in) from operations #&L%&f15 /(FrfA)HE4E 29 6,998,573 (5,821,374)
Interest received 2HFE 6,045 21,651
Interest paid BAF & (114,026) (114,612)
Income tax refund R B TSR - 133,630
Income tax paid EATFTEH (326,513) (456,224)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEEMRE(FA)
operating activities REFHE 6,564,079 (6,236,929)
Cash flows from investing activities RERETHNRERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment EEWX  BELEE (3,332) (265,825)
Purchases of intangible assets EEEPAE (48,767) (518,239)
Placement of short-term deposits FHE R (5,000,000) -
Net cash used in investing activities REZBMARSEE (5,052,099) (784,064)
Cash flows from financing activities REMETBNRESR
Exercise of share options 1TE R AR A 10,587 1,335
Payment for IPO costs EPNWNGE: S I3 NEEN (36,400) (19,327)
Principal elements of lease payments HENRB AR KHD (292,297) (234,772)
Net cash used in financing activities RETEMARSFEE (318,110) (252,764)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRBESEEYEM
cash equivalents (R2) 5 1,193,870 (7,273,757)
Cash and cash equivalents at FUNRELRESZEY
beginning of year 25,320,274 32,598,242
Exchange gains/(losses) on cash and RekReEEYEN
cash equivalents Weak /(518) 400,257 (4,211)
Cash and cash equivalents at end ERNBRERBELESEY
of the year 26,914,401 25,320,274

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in L EAHESReERIEEBENAOM T —0HE:E -
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on November 24, 2014 as
an exempted company with limited liability. The address of the
Company'’s registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the development, operations and publishing of web-based games
and mobile games business (“Game Business”) in North America,
Europe, The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and other
regions.

On December 15, 2017, the Company completed its initial public
offering on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “IPO”).

The financial statements are presented in United States Dollars
(“USD”), unless otherwise stated, and have been approved for issue
by the Company’s Board of Directors on March 30, 2021.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap.622. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost basis, except for the financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income which is measured at fair value.

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2020

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4 below.

2.1.1 New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The following amendments to standards have been
adopted by the Group for the first time for the financial
year beginning on or after January 1, 2020:

2 FESHBEHBE®

21 RBEE )

RELTT A BIFR M 5 S R B 68 75
WERERERETEEZNGFA - &
NERKEEERERAARBENEBR
BREPERAE - P RESHBRBA
BHEMEE  RERHRER LGS
REHMBHRERMEBEANDE - 1
TXMIFE4HE -

241 AEBERGZ AT RSB ERATE
AMERTAARER T -_FF—A—
B 32 1% B 26 HO B IR | IR AR

Conceptual Framework for Revised conceptual framework for financial reporting
Financial Reporting 2018
— N\ FEBRESHELR RIERTHI ISR EBRIER
IFRS 3 (Amendment) Definition of a Business
BB B 75 3R 5 R 35 (1ERThR) E i 0hat
IAS 1 and IAS 8 (Amendment) Definition of Material
RE T ERIE 15 RBIR SRR 85%R BENER
(EEThR)
IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 (Amendment) IBOR Reform and its Effects on Financial Reporting

BB @mEEREN - RS ERFEI9R N RITHEFEN XL ELEHMBRENTE

B 8 15 s R 7 5% (B RThR)

Amendments to IFRSs effective for the financial year
beginning on or after January 1, 2020 do not have a
material impact on the Group’s accounting policies and
did not require retrospective adjustments.

RIE-TF—A— B BRI BFEE L
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 New standards, amendments to existing standards
and interpretations not yet adopted

FESHHERE @

21 RBEE )

212 WA FTER) - BB AR
MIER] Mt g

Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after
RTHBRHH 2%
RENFERRER

IFRS 3 (Amendment)

BB RS RIS (B3R

IAS 37 (Amendments)

BIRR @RI 375 (BThR)

IAS 16 (Amendments)

IR & ERIE165% (BETHR)

IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and IAS 41

B BREERNE1R - ERABEREER
F95% - HIREHIRELERF 165 RER
SHERZE415R

IAS 1 (Amendments)

EIRR &5t RE 15 (1B3TMR)

IFRS 17

BB EENE1TH

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (Amendments)

BB 5 REERE 105 RER &5 ER
F28%; (£5THR)

Amendment to IFRS 3 on Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

B DIER 2 R E BUIR B S i 5 B 3SR BET
Amendment to IAS 37 on Cost of FqulIIlng a Contract
RETER NN REER LR EITHAE

Amendment to IAS 16 on Proceeds before Intended Use
HEERBAFTE TR IR G HERF 1657

Annual improvements 2018-2020 cycle

R \FERCTRERBERYE

Amendments to IAS 1 on Classification of liabilities as
current or non-current
REEESEARYIIRYH RS ER S 1K NELT
IFRS 17 Insurance contracts.

BRI B REENZITRRBEH

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

BEEEEBANTHARCE Y EEYER A

January 1, 2022

“2--F-A-H
January 1, 2022
“E-"%-RA-H
January 1, 2022
—Z--%-RA-H
January 1, 2022
“2--F-A-H

January 1, 2023

“Zo=%-A-H
January 1, 2023
—E-=F-A-H

To be determined

@
s

The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the impact of these new or revised standards,
and amendments, which are relevant to the Group’s
operations. According to the preliminary assessment
made by the directors, no significant impact on the
financial performance and positions of the Group is
expected when they become effective.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBEH#BE s
POLICIES (Continued)

22 WA A
221 BHARR

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between Group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
transferred asset. When necessary, amounts reported
by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the
Group’s accounting policies.

(a) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control
Transactions with non-controlling interests that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions — that is, as transactions with
the owners of the subsidiary in their capacity as
owners. The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired
of the carrying amount of net assets of the subsidiary
is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

2.3 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognise the investor’'s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The
Group’s investment in an associate include goodwill identified
on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in
an associate, any difference between the cost of the associate
and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBEH#BE s
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Associates (Continued) 2.3 &N T ()
The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is REEBEGWEENBREREF2EK
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive mRNIER - MEEGEKEENHEMS
income, and its share of post-acquisition movements in other Al=EHATEMEEKZANER
comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive W ZAE A WREEEE L AEEE o i
income with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying REBEREBMERTNEESHNLBEBR
amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses HBeE ks (BEENEME
in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, IR GIA) » BRSBTS R —
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does FEE RIFEDRRZBLELREL
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or VAT S TE B AT S E R RBIERRR ©
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.
The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is AEBRESREAHETRABEAER
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is HERIARBEAANKREDRNE -
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of WA AEESERESHETE A%
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount &N E R A I el & FE R H AR (B 2 FE Y
of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the EZHE URAHEEWRETRANTERA
amount adjacent to ‘share of profit of investments accounted EmEARNELBERT ] S ERZ
for using equity method’ in the consolidated statement of SR o

comprehensive income.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream NEBEERE QA 2 HA LR R T
transactions between the Group and its associate are RGEEMNBEEZRAEBENMFEHREA
recognised in the Group’s financial statements only to the R AR EERBE R AN
extent of unrelated investor's interests in the associates. ERARR - REBREBE T AL - BRI
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction a?ﬁﬁé%?ﬂ#ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ@ﬂﬁﬁ@* }FBU
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. ERlER - BEE ARIN ST EREERS
Accounting policies of associates have been changed where fEL &) LMET%EE$EI%ZWE’]BZ
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by —

the Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are OB N B A IR E A A W s S
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive BREMH2EREER AR -

income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as
the executive directors that make strategic decisions.

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
Consolidated financial statements are presented in
USD, which is the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where
items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to cash
and cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income within “finance
income or costs”. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within “other (losses)/gains, net”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ESFEEHE @

POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 SMEHBE )

ESEINS)
FIERBERREREENINEE
BEHEEER(EPHEREEBE
economy) that have a functional currency different IRECHERBNER)  EEERME
#ﬁﬂ&T@ﬁﬁL#%iﬁg

presentation currency as follows: 3

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies (c)
The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary

from the presentation currency are translated into the

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet item
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income item are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at
the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the statement of comprehensive income during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their costs over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold improvements Shorter of estimated useful lives
or remaining lease term

Office equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Computers 3 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within “other (losses)/gains, net” in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Intangible assets

(a)

Game intellectual properties and licenses

Under certain exclusive games arrangements entered
between the Group and the game developers, the Group
pays upfront license fees to the game developers as
the Group obtained the games developed by those
game developers. The Group recognises the upfront
license fees as intangible assets. This intangible
assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the
expected economic life, ranging from 2 to 3 years. These
amortisation are recorded in cost of revenue (where the
games are commercially launched) or administrative
expenses (where the games are not yet commercially
launched).

In some other circumstance, the Group pays the upfront
license fees to game developers as the Group is entitled
a right to operate third party developed games for certain
period of time in certain countries. The Group recognises
the license fees as intangible assets at historical cost
upon the games commercially launched. Licences have a
finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost of licences over
their estimated useful lives of 2 to 5 years. Amortisation
is expensed to cost of revenue (where the Group is a
principal) or offset against the revenue (where the Group
is an agent).

Computer software

Acquired computer software stated at historical cost less
amortisation. Acquired computer software licenses are
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire
and bring to use the specific software, and are amortised
over their estimated useful lives of three years.

2 FESHBEHBE®

7T E/VEE

(b)

BHREBHEEERAT

(a)

TR AR S A Al

IRIBR S B B B P B A AT SL Y
TEBRERLH - AEERIISE
J58 5 25 72 ) 25 O 2 BB [R) R S B2 R
RBERXNATEFAE - REEK
RIEF A BARBIVEE - B
WEER2EIFHRMEEFH
RESEEE - ZSHEE AR
AR (fin 305 B 2 TE =3P ) 31T
BFISE (fif ik i R IE 34

RETHEMBERT - REBERESR
EREERBAERERREES
=TRENERERBERRAER
SN BIHRTAIE o BBEIE B
o AR SR BIRE 2 B R A B
RBBLEE - FUEERTHA
PR 8 3 AR AR R AT 8H 5
R - BB EETEARTA
A R2FESFNAFHRA
DEERA o BIHEWAKAA X
HURAEEREIEA) - HERA
B3 (MAKERRIE) o

B

Fﬁﬁ% B S5 AR SR S AR R A 8
fR - PTIBS M EREHRT A IZBER

EHERRER M REMEENKAET

NERE - WREGHB=FNTBEF
HREE -

.|.

ZETFFH



+

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESHBEHBE®

2.7 BEEE )
(c) Research and development expenditures (c) THERZ

2.7 Intangible assets (Continued)

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense
as incurred. Costs incurred on development projects
(relating to the design and testing of new or improved
products) are capitalised as intangible assets when
recognition criteria are fulfilled. These criteria includes:
(1) it is technically feasible to complete the game product
so that it will be available for use; (2) management
intends to complete the game product and use or sell
it; (3) there is an ability to use or sell the game product;
(4) it can be demonstrated how the game product will
generate probable future economic benefits; (5) adequate
technical, financial and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the game product are
available; and (6) the expenditure attributable to the game
product during its development can be reliably measured.
Other development expenditures that do not meet those
criteria are recognised as expenses as incurred. During
the year ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, there
were no development costs meeting these criteria and
capitalised as intangible assets.

Development costs previously recognised as expenses
are not recognised as assets in subsequent periods.
Capitalised development costs are amortised from
the point at which the assets are ready for use on a
straight-line basis over their useful lives.

Research and development expenses consist primarily
of (i) salary and benefits for the Group’s research
and development personnel, and (ii) the technology
outsourcing payment to third-party companies.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, all research
and development expenditures were recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income as the recognition
criteria for capitalisation have not been fulfilled (2019:
same).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBEH#BE s
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Prepaid royalty fees 2.8 ATREE

The Group licenses online games from game developers and
pays royalty fees to game developers as sharing of proceeds
earned from selling in-game virtual tokens (‘Game Tokens”)
and other virtual items (Note 2.19). Royalty fees are either paid
in advance and deferred on the consolidated balance sheet as
prepaid royalties or accrued according to the licensed period.
These royalty fees are expensed to cost of revenues (where
the Group is a principal) or offset against the revenues (where
the Group is an agent).

At each balance sheet date, the Group evaluates the
recoverability of prepaid royalty fees to determine amounts that
it deems unlikely to be realised through revenues generated
from the games. This evaluation considers multiple factors,
including the term of the agreement, forecasted demand, game
life cycle status, game development plans, and current and
anticipated game revenue levels, as well as other qualitative
factors such as the success of similar games. To the extent
that this evaluation indicates that the remaining prepaid
royalty payments are not recoverable, the Group records an
impairment charge to administrative expenses in the period
that impairment is indicated.

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible
assets not ready to use are not subject to amortisation and
are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.10Investment and other financial assets

2.10.1 Classification

The Group’s management has assessed which business

models apply to the financial assets held by the Group
and has classified its financial instruments into the
appropriate IFRS 9 categories, namely:

. those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through profit or loss or other comprehensive
income (“OCI”), or through profit or loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the Group has made
an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition
to account for the equity investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income (‘FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt instruments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

2.10.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IESHBEEHBEZEs
POLICIES (Continued)

210 RERREMESREE @)

210Investment and other financial assets
(Continued)

2.10.3Measurement 2103572

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Group
currently only classifies its debt instruments at amortised
cost, as these assets are only held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in
profit or loss and presented in “Other (losses)/gains,
net”, together with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in
the statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBEH#BE s
POLICIES (Continued)

210Investment and other financial assets 210 RERHEMMEMEE ()

(Continued)

2.10.3Measurement (Continued) 210352 (48)
Equity instruments #am T A
The Group subsequently measures all equity investments REBEEBEREARBEFEMEE
at fair value. Where the Group’s management has @mTA - - RALSEEREDEEN
elected to present fair value gains and losses on Hh2HEWAT 2/ EETEN
equity investments in OCI, there is no subsequent AREEAE - AJHERBUETER
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit RERBAK AR BEREENS
or loss following the derecognition of the investment. HAREHZ EAKERDEHERE
Dividends from such investments continue to be RO ERER - REZEREA
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the FR S BT IBas R AE MUK
Group’s right to receive payments is established. A e
Changes in the fair value of financial assets measured BAnBEFABRRNERMEEZ
at FVPL are recognised in “Other (losses)/gains, net” in AREBEEEY E2EKRREEXHN
the statement of comprehensive income as applicable. [Efh (E1B), /558 ] NiER
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on (WiEA) - RARBEA=HES
equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported it AHME2ERENERREZ
separately from other changes in fair value. WEEE (MREBERE) Tg

HARBENEGESH DTN -

2.10.4Impairment 2104 B 1E
The Group assesses on a forward looking basis 7N 5% B Ji2 A S 1) R AT A B L DA
the expected credit losses associated with its debt AR SIBR B B T AR FaE
instruments carried at amortised costs. The impairment FEEBE - fTERNRERETUA
methodology applied depends on whether there has been MMEERBEREEILM -

a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified MESHEWRFIEMS - XEEK
approach permitted by IFRS 9, that is to measure the loss FR B 5 B 75 R 45 22 R 28 9 SR BT ¢ BT
allowance at the amount equal to lifetime expected credit KIRSL 7% - BNTE ¥ 4R MR B
loss at initial recognition and through its life of the asset. HEEAESH B UEER2
The Group uses practical expedients when estimating HEREERENSHEITEBHER
life time expected credit loss on trade receivables, which & - AFTE S EKRIENSmTER
is calculated using a provision matrix where a fixed ZEEER  ARBEHAYVESER
provision rate applies depending on the shared credit risk WEE 2R DERBEERG
characteristics of the trade receivables. - HPREBESHEIGIEN DR

EERBSEMERETEEE -

In assessing the shared credit risk characteristics of A E S EEFIEN D h{EEE
the trade receivables, the Group takes into account MBRIFHER  AREZEAERERE
reasonable and supportable information that is available BmEBAMND TN ERKA KA
without undue cost or effort. This includes information NERESHER - tBIEBTE
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of %~ B AT R AR IR AS B AR S TEDR
future economic conditions. EEH -

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ZE€HEEHMEw
POLICIES (Continued)

21MHHEMITA

2.11 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

2.12 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from platforms or payment
channels for proceeds earned from selling Game Tokens and
other virtual items (please refer to Note 2.19). If collection of
trade and other receivables is expected in one year or less (or
in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

2.13Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand and deposits at call with
banks, and other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Share capital and shares held for the Share

Option Scheme

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new ordinary shares are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

The consideration paid by Share Scheme Trust (see Note 17)
for acquiring the Company’s shares, including any directly
attributable incremental cost, is presented as “Shares held for
the Share Option Scheme” and the amount is deducted from
total equity.

When Share Scheme Trust transfers the Company’s shares to
the awardees upon vesting, the related costs of the awarded
shares vested are credited to “Shares held for the Share
Option Scheme”, with a corresponding adjustment made to
“Share premium”.

2.15Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
tax. Income tax is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly

in equity.

In this case, the tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries and an associate, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there
is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is
an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

217Employee benefits

(a)

Defined contribution plans

The Group’s companies incorporated in the PRC
contribute based on certain percentage of the salaries of
the employees to a defined contribution retirement benefit
plan and other defined contribution social security plans
organised by relevant government authorities in the PRC
on a monthly basis. The government authorities undertake
to assume the retirement benefit obligations payable and
other social security payables to all existing and future
retired employees under these plans and the Group has
no further obligation beyond the contributions made.
Contributions to these plans are expensed as incurred.
Assets of the plans are held and managed by government
authorities and are separate from those of the Group.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet
date.

Employee entitlements to sick and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

2.18 Share-based payments

The Group operates the Share Option Scheme (as defined
in Note 17), which is an equity-settled shared based
compensation plan under which share awards are granted to

employees as part of their remuneration package
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Share-based payments (Continued)

The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the share-based awards is recognised as an
expense over the vesting period, which is the period over
which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied,
and credited to share premium under equity. The total amount
to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of
the share-based awards granted:

- including any market performance conditions;

- excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions; and

- including the impact of any non-vesting conditions.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of share-based awards that are
expected to vest based on the non-marketing performance
and service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision
to original estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

If the terms of a share-based award are modified, at a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified. An additional expense is recognised for
any modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial
to the employee and other qualifying participants, as measured
at the date of modification.

2.19 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for
the provision of services in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities and is recorded net of value-added tax.

The Group recognises revenue in the accounting period in
which the services are rendered. Depending the terms of the
contract and the laws that apply to the contract, the services
may be rendered over time or at a point in time.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition (Continued)

If contracts involve the sale of multiple services, the transaction
price will be allocated to each performance obligation based on
their relative stand-alone selling prices. The services provided
by the Group under each contract are integrated and treated as
one performance obligation.

(a)

Game publishing service revenue

The Group is a publisher of online games developed
by third party game developers or its own. The Group
licenses online games from game developers and earns
game publishing service revenue by making a localised
version of the licensed games and publishing them to
the game players through distribution platforms, include
major social networking websites (such as Facebook),
online application stores (such as Apple Inc.’s App
Store (“Apple App”) and Google Play installed in mobile
telecommunications devices), web-based and mobile
game portals in certain countries and regions (collectively
referred to as “Platforms”), including the Group’s websites.
The games licensed to the Group are operated under a
free-to-play model whereby game players can play the
games free of charge and are charged for the purchase of
Game Tokens or other virtual items via payment channels,
such as the various mobile carriers and third-party internet
payment systems (collectively referred to as “payment
channels”).

(i)  Principal Agent Consideration
Third party developed games
Proceeds earned from selling Game Tokens and
other virtual items are shared between the Group
and game developers, with the amount paid to game
developers generally calculated based on face value
of Game Tokens or other virtual items determined by
game developers, after deducting certain deductible
fees, multiplied by a predetermined percentage for
each game. The deductible fees are predetermined
and negotiated game by game, including the fees
paid to the payment channels and the Platforms, as
well as the credit allowable for deduction for each
game.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a) Game publishing service revenue (Continued)
(i)  Principal Agent Consideration (Continued)
Third party developed games (Continued)

1)

The Group acts as Agent

With respect to the Group’s game licenses
arrangements entered into during the years
ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, the
Group considered that the (i) game developers
are responsible for providing the game product
desired by the game players; (ii) the costs
incurred by the game developers to develop
the games are more than the licensing costs
and game localisations costs incurred by the
Group; (iii) game developers have the right to
determine the pricing of in-game virtual items
and the specification, modification or update of
the game proposed by the Group. The Group’s
responsibilities are publishing, providing
payment solution and market promotion
service, and thus the Group views game
developers to be its customers and considers
itself as the agent of game developers in the
arrangements with game players. Accordingly,
the Group records the game publishing service
revenue from these licensed games, net of
amounts paid to game developers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

Game publishing service revenue (Continued)
Principal Agent Consideration (Continued)
Third party developed games (Continued)

(1)

1)

The Group acts as Agent (Continued)

Games operated directly by the Group

Games operated directly by the Group are
in the form of self-operation on its own
websites and cooperation with Platforms,
which the Group is responsible for determining
Platforms and payment channels, hosting and
maintenance of game servers for game running,
providing customer service as well as marketing
activities. For games self-operated by the
Group, payment channels are responsible for
payment collections related to the games. For
games cooperated with Platforms, Platforms
are responsible for distribution, platform
maintenance, paying player authentication and
payment collections related to the games.

As the Group is responsible for identifying,
contracting with and maintaining the
relationships of Platforms and payment
channels, commission fees paid to Platforms
and payment channels are included in cost
of revenues and presented on a gross basis.
The Group considers it is the primary obligor
to game developers for the reasons identified
above as it has been given latitude by game
developers in selecting Platform and payment
channels for its service to game developers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

Game publishing service revenue (Continued)
Principal Agent Consideration (Continued)
Third party developed games (Continued)

(1)

1)

The Group acts as Agent (Continued)

Games operated directly by the Group
(Continued)

Different from the above analysis, for games
cooperated with Facebook if it had been
specified by game developers and Apple
App, the game developers are fully aware
of Facebook and Apple App’s roles and
responsibilities. The Group considered that
Facebook, Apple App and itself provide
services to the game developers together,
as the Group does not have the latitude in
selecting and negotiation with Facebook and
Apple App and does not have the primary
responsibility to game developers for the
service provided by them, commission charges
by Facebook and Apple App are deducted from
revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

Game publishing service revenue (Continued)
Principal Agent Consideration (Continued)
Third party developed games (Continued)

(1)

1)

The Group acts as Agent (Continued)

Games subcontracted to Platforms

Certain games are subcontracted to Platforms
to operate directly. For such subcontracted
games, Platforms are responsible for
determining secondary Platforms and payment
channels, hosting and maintenance of game
servers for game running, providing customer
service as well as marketing activities. The
Group’s responsibilities are delivering games to
Platforms, and thus the Group views the game
developers to be its customers and considers
itself as the agent of game developers in the
arrangements with Platforms, as the Group
does not have the primary responsibility to
game developers for the service provided
by these Platforms. Accordingly, the Group
records revenue on a net basis, amounts paid
to game developers and revenue-sharing
amounts paid to Platforms or third party
payment vendors are deducted from revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2 FESHBEHBE®

POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition (Continued) 219 W AR ()
(a) Game publishing service revenue (Continued) (a) BERETTARTSUA (8)
(i) Principal Agent Consideration (Continued) () FEEAE(E)
Third party developed games (Continued) BE=FREOER (&)
2) The Group acts as Principal 2) HKEEEFEA

During the years ended December 31,
2020 and 2019, there was a game license
arrangement under which the Group takes
primary responsibilities of further game
development and updates, game operation,
including determining Platforms and payment
channels, providing customer services, hosting
game servers, if needed, and controlling pricing
and game and services specifications during
the license period. The Group bears the cost
incurred to further develop the game. Under
this type of game license arrangement, the
Group considers itself as a principal in this
arrangement. Accordingly, the Group records
the online game revenue from this third party
licensed game on a gross basis. Commission
fees paid to Platforms and payment channels
and amortisation of license fees paid to third
party game developer are recorded as cost of
revenues.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2 FESHBEHBE®

POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

Game publishing service revenue (Continued)
Principal Agent Consideration (Continued)
Third party developed games (Continued)

(1)

2)

The Group acts as Principal (Continued)
Self-developed games

The Group sometimes enters into license
arrangements under which the Group takes
primary responsibilities of game development
and game operation, including determining
Platforms and payment channels, providing
customer services, hosting game servers, if
needed, and controlling pricing and game and
services specifications. The Group bears the
cost incurred to develop the games. Under
this type of agreements, the Group considers
itself the principal. Accordingly, the Group
records the online game revenues from these
games on a gross basis. Commission fees
paid to Platforms and payment channels and
amounts paid to licensor are recorded as cost
of revenue.

The Group self-develops mobile games.
Revenues derived from self-developed games
are recorded on a gross basis as the Group
acts as a principal to fulfil most obligations
related to the mobile game operation.
Commission fees paid to Platforms and
payment channels are recorded as cost of
revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a) Game publishing service revenue (Continued)
(i) Timing of revenue recognition
Third party developed games
1)  The Group acts as Agent
Games operated directly by the Group
For the purposes of determining when services
have been provided to the respective players,
the Group has determined the following:

— Consumable virtual items represent items
that are extinguished after consumption
in the form of fixed charges levied on
each round of games played. The paying
players will not continue to benefit from
the virtual items thereafter. Revenue is
recognised at a point in time (as a release
from contract liabilities) when the items
are consumed and the related services
are rendered.

— Durable virtual items represent items that
are accessible and beneficial to paying
players over an extended period of time.
Revenue is recognised ratably over the
average life of durable virtual items for
the applicable game, which the Group
makes best estimates to be average
playing period of paying players (“‘Player
Relationship Period”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESHBEHBE®

2.19 Revenue recognition (Continued)

219 W AR ()

(a)

Game publishing service revenue (Continued)

(i) Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

Third party developed games (Continued)

1)

The Group acts as Agent (Continued)

Games operated directly by the Group
(Continued)

The Group estimates the Player Relationship
Period on a game-by-game basis and
re-assesses such periods semi-annually. If
there is insufficient data to determine the
Player Relationship Period, such as in the
case of a newly launched game, it estimates
the Player Relationship Period based on other
similar types of games developed by the Group
or by third-party developers until the new game
establishes its own patterns and history. The
Group considers the games profile, target
audience, and its appeal to players of different
demographics groups in estimating the Player
Relationship Period.

If the Group does not have the ability to
differentiate revenue attributable to durable
virtual items from consumable virtual items for
a specific game, the Group recognises revenue
from both durable and consumable virtual
items for that game ratably over the Player
Relationship Period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESHBEHBE®

2.19 Revenue recognition (Continued) 219 W AR ()
(a) Game publishing service revenue (Continued) (a) BERETTARTSUA (8)

(i) WA ()
E=FRERE (&)

(i) Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)
Third party developed games (Continued)

1)

The Group acts as Agent (Continued)

Games subcontracted to Platforms

Revenue of games subcontracted to Platforms
are recognised ratably over the Player
Relationship Period, for (i) the Group has a
continuous obligation to game developers to
coordinate Platforms for providing service to
game players, and (ii) the Group does not
have the ability to differentiate revenue from
games subcontracted to Platforms attributable
to durable virtual items from consumable virtual

1)

REEEERIE (B)
DETFENEE
DBETFEMEEE
ARDUR BHEANE L
DI T ARER - EARG)A
SEHBERREEASR
FEAEENHAREE
MRERRBOFE
Ko (i) A S B AL
BB FRBEERY M
T AR E Y

items for a specific game. o BT FameE
A o

2)  The Group acts as Principal 2) AEEEZEFEA
Revenue of third party developed games when REEEZEEADRHE
the Group acts as a Principal are recognised ME=HRBEEBKRA
ratably over the Player Relationship Period I R B R HA R SR i
or as the durable virtual items are consumed, BEERYREERAR
which is similar to the policy of third party RO F AR - B8
developed games operated directly by the L AAREEREERE
Group when the Group acts as an Agent BERGEE - RA%E
mentioned above. BRI SRR ©

Self-developed games B F a5 E

Revenue of self-developed games are recognised
ratably over the Player Relationship Period or as the
durable virtual items are consumed, which is similar
to the policy of third party developed games when
the Group acts as a Principal mentioned above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b)

Licensing revenue

The Group authorises third parties to operate its online
games. The Group receives additional up-front license
fees from certain third-party licensee operators who are
entitled to an exclusive right to operate the Group’s games
in specified geographic areas. Revenue from licensing
agreements is recognised when the game contents have
been delivered to the third party licensees and when the
Group has no further remaining obligations. Depending
on the terms of the respective agreements, revenue is
recognised either by point in time, whereas fixed and
non-refundable upfront payments are received from the
licensees upon commence of the license periods; or
ratably over the license period when the Group is required
to continue to provide services over the license periods.

Advertising revenue

The Group provides advertising placement for a specified
period on the interface of online games. The Group
recognises revenue ratably over the period during which
the advertising services are provided.

Contract liabilities and contract costs

For game publishing service revenues, contract liabilities
primarily consist of royalty fees received in advance from
customers, and the unamortised revenue from sales of
Game Tokens and virtual items for web-based games and
mobile games, where there is still an implied obligation
to be provided by the Group. Such contract liabilities
will be recognised as revenue when all of the revenue
recognition criteria are met. For licensing revenue,
contract liabilities represent the unamortised balance of
the initial license fee paid by licensees where there is
still an implied obligation to be provided by the Group
and they will be recognised as revenue when all of the
revenue recognition criteria are met.

Contract costs are mainly related to contract acquisition
costs, which primarily consist of unamortised commission
costs charged by distribution platforms. The Group
recognises contract costs in relation to commission
charged by distribution platforms, which meet contract
acquisition cost criteria as an incremental cost of
acquiring a customer contract. They are capitalised
as contract acquisition costs and amortised over
the respective Player Relationship Periods, which is
consistent with the pattern of recognition of the associated
revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Leases

The Group leases various offices. Rental contracts are typically
made for fixed periods of 1 to 9 years. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not
impose any covenants, but leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset
is available for use by the Group. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance
cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The right-of-use asset
is depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the
lease term on a straight-line basis.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net
present value of the fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be determined, the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that
the lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary
to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic
environment with similar terms and conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ZE€HEEHMEw
POLICIES (Continued)

220/ E (@)
EREAERNANE  BEUNTE

2.20 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the

following: 1A :
+  the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability - HESEMUSIHESE
+  any lease payments made at or before the commencement « REBBESZAIMENEAEE

R RS WE RO TE & 5

date less any lease incentives received

Payments associated with short-term leases are recognised on
a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

2.21Interest income

Interest income mainly represents interest income from bank
deposits and is recognised using effective interest method.

2.22 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.

2.23 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
strategy seeks to minimise the potential adverse effects on the
financial performance of the Group.

Risk management is carried out by the senior management of
the Group and approved by the Board of Directors.

(a) Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to Renminbi
(“RMB”), EURO (“EUR”) and Hong Kong dollar
(*HKD”). Foreign exchange risk arises when future
commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities and net investment in foreign operations.
The finance department of the Group is responsible
for monitoring and managing the net position in
each foreign currency. The Group currently does not
hedge transactions undertaken in foreign currencies
but manages its exposure through constant
monitoring to limit as much as possible the amount
of its foreign currencies exposures.

The Group has certain investments in foreign
operations particularly in the PRC, Spain and Hong
Kong, whose net assets are exposed to foreign
currency translation risk. Currency exposure arising
from the net assets of the Group’s foreign operations
considered not material therefore no separated
sensitive analysis is included.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(1)

(1)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2020, if USD had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against RMB with all
other variables held constant, post-tax loss for the
year would have been approximately USD172,000
(2019: USD50,000) higher/lower, respectively,
mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses
on translation of RMB-denominated receivables and
payables.

For the year ended December 31, 2020, if USD had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against EUR with all
other variables held constant, post-tax loss for the
year would have been approximately USD94,000
(2019: USD62,000) lower/higher, respectively,
mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses
on translation of EUR-denominated cash and cash
equivalents.

The cash and cash equivalents, receivables and
payables of the Group’s Hong Kong entities are
denominated in HKD, which is pegged against USD,
and are not therefore subject to significant foreign
currency risk.

Interest rate risk

Other than interest-bearing bank deposits and
short-term deposits, the Group has no other
significant interest-bearing assets. The directors
of the Company do not anticipate there is any
significant impact to interest-bearing assets resulted
from the changes in interest rates, because the
interest rates of bank balances are not expected to
change significantly.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3 HM¥EBRER @

3.1 B EEE 9

(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) TR ()
(iii) - Price risk (iii)  1E15E
The Group’s exposure to equity securities price AEEEHARNEEBMRFE
risk arises from investments held by the Group and WEEEBBERANDERIE
classified in the balance sheet as at FVOCI (Note "‘Hﬁfﬁufgﬂﬁ“@f‘fk
9). The investments are made either for strategic Hih 2 HKRAIREMESE
purpose or for the purpose of achieving investment B A% 7R 78 5 B A% EL e (P 5
yield. Each investment is managed by senior 9) ZFREERKBEM
management on a case by case basis. SEIIRE WA ﬁﬁf’EHj &
HEREHEEREEERE
RIEREIE
Sensitivity analysis is performed by management EREETERESN - A
to assess the exposure of the Group’s financial A EEY B EEREY
results to equity price risk of financial assets at WIRAAEBEFEEHEZE
FVOCI. If equity prices of the respective instruments ATAREMEEEENEHE
held by the Group had been 5% higher/lower as ENRAERRR - MAS
at December 31, 2020, the other comprehensive @Pﬁﬁﬁ1l%JIﬁE’]H§$1ﬁ
income would have been approximately USD58,000 BRZZEZTF+_A=+
(2019: USD48,000) higher/lower. —BH,%K5%  B|EtEE
W B $4758,0005%
L (ZZF—NF : 48,0003
7T) °
(b) Credit risk (b)y FER

ﬁ%@ﬁ&éﬁﬁﬁ%&fﬁ’"ﬁ%ﬁ
LEMERFIAEBHNEER

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its cash
and bank deposits, trade and other receivables.

é\o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BHREREREG®

3.1 B EEE 9

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERR (8
(i)  Risk management (i) EREHE

The carrying amounts of each class of the above
financial assets represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.
To manage this risk arising from cash and bank
deposits, the Group only transacts with reputable
commercial banks which are all high-credit-quality
financial institutions in the PRC and Hong Kong.
There has been no recent history of default in
relation to these financial institutions.

Individual balances of trade receivables exceeding
10% of the Group’s total trade receivables as at
December 31, 2020 accounted for approximately
58% (2019: 68%) of the Group’s total trade
receivables.

Trade receivables and certain other receivables at
the end of each reporting period were due from the
Platforms and payment channels in cooperation
with the Group. If the strategic relationship with
the Platforms and payment channels is terminated
or scaled-back; or if the Platforms and payment
channels alter the co-operative arrangements; or
if they experience financial difficulties in paying
the Group, the Group’s game development
receivables might be adversely affected in terms
of recoverability. To manage this risk, the Group
maintains frequent communications with the
Platforms and payment channels to ensure the
effective credit control. In view of the history
of cooperation with the Platforms and payment
channels and the sound collection history of
receivables due from them, the directors of the
Company believe that the credit risk inherent in the
Group’s outstanding trade receivable balances due
from the Platforms and payment channels is low.

PEHREBHEEGRART T _TFEFIR @

NERBEREENKREE
BAEEmEESREESR
BMEsAEERR - BERE
B3R e RRITERSIZAE
B AREBEERGRTFER
AEBEEEESREEY
ARHFEEMNHERTR
5 o ZE T BT
R IR R FCER ©

RZEZ_ZTF+_HA=+—
B A5 E S ERKEHE
HAAEEE S ERGIER
HW10%  HAEBE FE
R B EE4)58% (T — N
F :68%) °

REREHROE S B
A RETHAEKRIRET)E
U AR L E AR F & R
RRBHORIR » WEF G R
NRRBORMB R L
kAR EER ¢ ST B R
RREBEREFELH - M
WEEMAKEERT A
2l B0 < N S =g i3 34
e 3 FE W sk oA &y AT W [m] 1 A
EXATHEE - BEEM
B - AREEEF SRR
RERFEZBE  BRA
BEEEES - EREF S
ENRRENBERIERRA
1% S5 YR FE M SR IB B 3B 1 UK
PRBRE - AARIEEN
EAREEEUFE RAHR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(1)

(1)

Risk management (Continued)

For other receivables not due from payment
channels, management makes periodic collective
assessments as well as individual assessment on
the recoverability of other receivables based on
historical settlement records and past experience.
The directors of the Company believe that there
is no material credit risk inherent in the Group’s
outstanding balance of other receivables.

Impairment of financial assets

Cash and bank deposits

To manage this risk, the Group only makes
transactions with state-owned banks and financial
institutions in the PRC and reputable international
banks and financial institutions outside of the PRC.
There has been no recent history of default in
relation to these banks and financial institutions. The
expected credit loss was immaterial.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach
to measuring expected credit losses which uses
a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables, which is calculated using a provision
matrix (including the use of internal and external
data sources) where a fixed provision rate applies
depending on the shared credit risk characteristics
of the trade receivables.

In assessing the shared credit risk characteristics of
the trade receivables, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(1)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

On that basis, the loss allowance as at December
31, 2020 and 2019 was determined as follows for
trade receivables:

3 HM¥EBRER @

3.1 B EEE 9

(b) EERR (8
(i) 2FEERE (&)
B S EWEIE (&)
BRUHEE W -_TER
—E-NF+=ZA=+—H
HESHEYGRIEE T TH

B IR
Category 1* Category 2* Category 3* Category 4* Total
F-8 ok b EmE* “@ir
Expected loss rate BHERE 5% 30% 50% 100%

Loss allowance as at RZTZTF+ZA

December 31, 2020 =+—AREREE 66,366 10,870 4,676 3,448,108 3,530,020
Loss allowance as at RZZ-N%5+=HA

December 31, 2019 =t+—HREREE 116,733 2,643 10,548 2,816,648 2,946,572

*

The Group’s loss allowance categories of trade

receivables are as follows:

Category 1 — Highest grade, lowest credit risk

Category 2 — Medium grade, low credit risk

Category 3 — Poor standing, high credit risk

Category 4 — High likelihood of default, very high

credit risk

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach
to measuring expected credit losses which uses
a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables.

AEEE 5 R UGRIAN B
BEBERDT

F—E-&5&3  RE
EERR

FEE - hEER - EE
Rk

FE=E-EER BEE
BB

EIE - SRR
ERRMEERR

7N 5 [ e O B S A S
AIFERMILITE - U2
HHESEE  EPitmE
B 5 FE M BIAE A 2 BT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(1)

MEEMRERE®

3AM%@@E§@)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERR (E)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (ii) C‘ﬁyﬂﬁéx/ﬁ & (&)
Trade receivables (Continued) B 5 EWETE (&)
The closing loss allowances for trade receivables RZZEZZTFR_T—NF
as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 reconcile to the TZA=+—HESERKR
opening loss allowances as follows: ENFREBERBBRFIE
BEEHROT
Trade receivables
g 5 EWFE
2020 2019
—E-BF —TAF
usbD USD
ES ET
Opening loss allowance as at January 1 B—A—BEFEERE 2,946,572 1,635,576
Receivables written off during the year F A ] U E i s A
as uncollectible FEYRIE (20,567) (73,679)
Provision for trade receivables g 5 IR 513,351 1,384,675
Currency translation differences BEmE TR 90,664 -
Closing loss allowance as at December 31 R+ _-A=+—HWEX
EriE s 3,530,020 2,946,572
Impairment loss on trade receivables are presented féf S EWKIBERREEE T

as net impairment loss within operating profit.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against the same line item.

Other receivables

Impairment on other receivables is measured as
either 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime
expected credit losses, depending on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition.
risk of a deposit or receivable has occurred since

If a significant increase in credit

initial recognition, the impairment is measured as
lifetime expected credit losses. Based on the Group’s
assessment on other receivables, impairment
provision of USD96,759 was made as at December
31, 2020 (2019: USD78,347).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk

The Group aims to maintain sufficient cash and cash
equivalents. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying
businesses, the Group’s finance department maintains
flexibility in funding by maintaining adequate cash and

cash equivalents.

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

3 HM¥EBRER @

3.1 BEKREZE @
(c) RBHELER

ARBEERKENORERAS
ZEY - MmN EREBH DR
U AREOYHHEBRIEEN
MRS RASEEY  WEHAS
B -

TREREEAEAHHMA DT
4 4000 5 47 2K SR B LB 2 B4R 51
BRI LS BB - RVRE
MEEARNAMRRLRE -

Between Between
Less than 1 year and 2 years and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
SME  1EZ2E 26F5% 5N L @it
usD usD usD usD usD
EYH EYH EYH EYH EYH
At December 31, 2020 R-Z-EF
+=ZA=+-H
Lease Liabilities HEAE 400,122 392,087 1,186,477 281,746 2,260,432
Trade and other payables and B 5 REMEMRZKE
accruals (excluding salary M &R (TRE
and staff welfare payables EffEHeRkET
and taxes payable) BRI REMHE) 5,192,840 - - - 5,192,840
5,592,962 392,087 1,186,477 281,746 7,453,272
At December 31, 2019 RZE-NF
+ZA=+-H
Lease Liabilities HEAE 382,980 373,452 1,100,327 643,411 2,500,170
Trade and other payables and B o REMEMFE
accruals (excluding salary MEER (TR
and staff welfare payables ERNEZHeRET
and taxes payable) BRI REHTIE) 4,666,865 - - - 4,666,865
5,049,845 373,452 1,100,327 643,411 7,167,035

BHREBHEEERAT
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in
order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

The Group monitors capital (including share capital and capital
reserves) by regularly reviewing the capital structure. As a part
of this review, the directors of the Company consider the cost
of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares
or sell assets to reduce debt. In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, the Group’s capital risk is low.

3.3 Fair value estimation

The Group’s financial instruments are carried at fair value
as at balance sheet dates, by level of the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs are
categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as
follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (level 2).

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).
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AHEBREM T (H)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BHREREREG®

3.3 AABEMAE @

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

No asset instruments carried in level 2 or level 3 for the year
ended December 31, 2020 and 2019. The following table
presents the Group’s financial instruments that are measured
at fair value using level 1 inputs:

BE_Z_ZTHFER_T-AFT A=
T—HLEFEE ITEEE_FEAF=R
HKEEETA - TRINTAKEERS
—RBAERAAEBEFENSRT

A :
As at December 31,
R+t=A=+—H
2020 2019
—ECERF —E-NF
usD usb
EP EYH
Financial assets TREE
— Financial assets at FVOCI (Note 9) —BAABEFEAHEEHTA
Hib2EWEN SR EE
(KI=E£9) 1,164,245 963,185
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets R ERmEEEN SR TAN AL BE
is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet dates. R EERINmEREE ﬁi 1
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and &Eﬁv&m,ﬁﬂ—ﬂﬁéx%ﬁﬁ N
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry T TEERE . TERKE ﬁ*rﬂ%ﬁa

group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions
on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in level 1.

g ﬁﬁ%%%fjgiff%ﬁ%%?ﬁ@¥ﬁﬁﬂ§ i
LREHELENTISR S - AIWSHER
AR RAKEMBAENEREERM
WIS HENEENEAE - ZETA
FAE—RA -

TECRFEFR
.|.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market is determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required
for evaluating the fair value of a financial instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include:

. Dealer quotes for similar instruments;
. The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the
present value of the estimated future cash flows based on

observable yield curves; and

. Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis,
are used to determine fair value for financial instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based

on historical experience and other factors, including expectations

of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

41 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the

future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,

seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and

assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a)

Estimates of the Player Relationship Period in the
Group’s game development

As described in Note 2.19, the Group recognises
revenue from durable virtual items ratably over the
Player Relationship Period. The determination of Player
Relationship Period in each game is based on the
Group’s best estimate that takes into account all known
and relevant information at the time of assessment. Such
estimates are subject to re-evaluation on a semi-annual
basis. Any adjustments arising from changes in the Player
Relationship Period as a result of new information will be
accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting
estimate.

B S EHha & K

fhET R FI B & F5HE T UART i - WIABELRK
Hp A& (BRERLBERTEHRAEMHNE
EIEH) RAKIE

4.1 ARG RER

RE B R R AR R - RIBE
& MUELNGR AR AR
BRAERAR - RATEESI AR T — @
MBRFEEAHEERABNKREEET
ERRABNB RBRRABOT

(a) HAKEERFAZEBEFIIR
FR AR HIR (A AT
GAPRE2.19P I - REB R IR
FEIR L DI FE R T R R B m e
WA - SEBEENITREEATIR
EARENSEGFEE - ERE
RN ERAECMRERER -
ZEMF Y EEMFE R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (Continued)

41 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The group uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the group’s past history existing market
conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions
and inputs used are disclosed in the tables in Note 3.

Current and deferred income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current and deferred tax assets
and liabilities in the period in which such determination is
made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5

(a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers

WA 7 EER

(a) REAEFAWHRAZHF

Year ended December 31,

BE+-A=+—-HLEFE

2020 2019

—EEH —T-NEF

usbD USD

Ep ey

Online game revenue PWER BRI A 17,537,512 17,807,719
Licensing revenue SEEION 10,417 101,962
Advertising revenue EEWA 2,383 9,308
17,550,312 17,918,989

Timing of revenue recognition, by category:

BARRE D Z WATERE RN

Year ended December 31,

BE+-A=+—-HLEFE

2020 2019

—z-=2f —T-nE

uUsD usD

£5 £

Over time S ERS 17,550,312 17,918,989
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts

with customers (Continued)

For management purpose, the executive directors of the
Company consider that the Group generates revenue primarily
from the provision of online game services. The executive
directors of the Company review the operating results of the
business as one segment to make strategic decisions about
resources to be allocated. Therefore, the executive directors
of the Company consider that there is only one segment of the
Group.

The Group has a large number of game players, no individual
game players generated revenue which exceeded 10% or more
of the Group’s revenue for the year ended December 31, 2020
(2019: same).

The revenue generated from top five largest revenue collection
platforms, accounted for 69% (2019: 64%) of the Group’s
revenue for the year ended December 31, 2020.

Company A was the Group’s game licensor. The revenue
generated from the games licensed by Company A accounted
for 20% (2019: 22%) of the Group’s revenue for the year ended
December 31, 2020.

Company B was one of the Group’s game licensors.The
revenue generated from the games licensed by Company B
accounted for 11% (2019: 14%) of the Group’s revenue for the
year ended December 31, 2020.

Revenue from games licensed by a single company or group
which exceeded 10% totally accounted for 31% (2019: 36%) of
the Group’s revenue for the year ended December, 2020.

Besides that, no revenue from games licensed by a single
company or group exceeded 10% or more of the Group’s
revenue for the year ended December 31, 2020 (2019: same).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(b) Segment assets

Non-current assets other than financial instruments and
deferred income tax assets, by country:

WARDEBER &)

(b) ZHREE

BEERENDNERADEE (EMTAR

EIEFTIS TR B RERRSN)

As at December 31,

R+=A=+—8

2020 2019

—EEF —T-NEF

usD usD

EH ET

BVI RBRELZES 3,500,000 4,801,266
The PRC e 3,570,988 4,022,920
Hong Kong aBE 366,352 680,660
Other locations H bt 2h 73,261 58,544
7,510,601 9,563,390
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(c) Assets and liabilities related to contracts
with customers

The Group has recognised the following assets related to
contracts with customers:

(c) EEFENFHANEER
&

5 WARDIBER

i

AEEEBRBATEREFPSNEABNE
=

As at December 31,

R+=A=+—8
2020 2019
—B-EE —ZE-NF
usbD usbD
E3 ET
Contract costs — unamortised BRIKA — BEITF AU
commission cost charged by REESHA SRR
distribution platforms 616,740 771,402

The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to
contracts with customers:

AEECHBUATATPANEHNEA

& :

As at December 31,

R+=—A=+—8
2020 2019
—B-E —Z-NF
usbD UsSD
ES ET
Contract liabilities — unamortised BREE - HERRBEEER X
revenue from sales of Game Tokens TF 0 18K A 0 B X R I R
and virtual items for web-based Fr 15 0 R S5 UL A
games and mobile games 1,765,490 2,850,210
Contract liabilities — royalty AHBE — FEANEA REE
fees received in advance 413,307 377,380
Contract liabilities — unamortised BRBE - VPFHIERAY
balance of the initial license fee RS A R 270,000 280,417
Total current contract liabilities A& B ERE 2,448,797 3,508,007
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WARZEER @

(Continued)

(c) Assets and liabilities related to contracts (c) EEFEXNEHEMNEERE
with customers (Continued) &)
The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised TRINTRAREEHNEROBAS Z
in the current reporting period relates to carried-forward LESLENANEERR  URBEZD
contract liabilities and how much relates to performance HRFFEERITHNEHNETE] -

obligations that were satisfied in a prior year:

As at December 31,

R+=A=+—8
2020 2019
—EC-EF —ZT-hF
usbD usbD
EP ET
Revenue recognised that was included i ABIWIE KB EEHKH D ERKA
in the contract liability balance at the
beginning of the period
Online game revenue AER R A 2,857,371 3,055,101
— Unamortised revenue from sales — REHEHAREHKA 2,850,210 3,041,248
— royalty fees — REE 7,161 13,853
Licensing revenue LS PN 10,417 101,962
2,867,788 3,157,063
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(c) Assets and liabilities related to contracts
with customers (Continued)

The Group has recognised contract costs in relation to
commission costs charged by distribution platforms. The
following table shows how much of the costs recognised in the
current reporting period relates to contract costs.

5 WARDIBER

(c) EEFEHNEBMNEERE
& (@)

REBERBETF B RRNME AR
RAHKA - TRIIRNARE AR
RHKABZ LEADRAAR -

As at December 31,

R+=A=+—8
2020 2019
—B-EF —ZT-hF
usbD usbD
E3 ET
Asset recognised from costs incurred RtTZA=+—HEBRESAOMESE
to contain a contract at 31 December BRAMBERNEE 616,740 771,402
Amortisation recognised as commission 7 HiRRER A & 5 S ## 8E
charges during the period (Note 23) (P 5E23) 6,116,321 7,020,942
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6 YxX- BERRE

Office Leasehold Motor
equipment Computers improvements  vehicles Total
ROERE B HEVERE AE @t
usb usb usb usb usb
EYH EY E EYH E

Year ended December 31,2020 HZE-E-FF+-A=1+—-HLEE
Opening net book amount FOEmFE 27,578 105,873 1,751,519 90,947 1,975,917
Additions WE - 3,332 - - 3,332
Disposals & - (573) - = (573)
Depreciation charge (Note (a)) WEER (Mik(a)) (23,216) (48,284) (268,750)  (21,827) (362,077)
Currency translation differences SHBEESE 614 1,180 125,163 - 126,957
Closing net book amount EREAFE 4,976 61,528 1,607,932 69,120 1,743,556
At December 31, 2020 R-EZBF+-A=+-H
Cost KA 111,657 439,123 2,320,486 109,137 2,980,403
Accumulated depreciation ZEiE (106,681)  (377,595) (712,554)  (40,017) (1,236,847)
Net book amount REFE 4,976 61,528 1,607,932 69,120 1,743,556
Year ended December 31,2019  HEZ-ZE-h&E+-A=+-BLEE
Opening net book amount FUEETE 43,479 142,376 1,921,273 - 2,107,128
Additions NE 2,237 29,947 115,808 109,137 257,129
Depreciation charge (Note (a)) FEER (M) (17,857)  (65,440) (268,380)  (18,190)  (369,867)
Currency translation differences ERHEEE (281) (1,010 (17,182) - (184713)
Closing net book amount FREMFE 27,578 105,873 1,751,519 90,947 1,975,917
At December 31, 2019 RZZB-NE+ZA=+-H
Cost B 112,065 425,983 2,175,076 109,137 2,822,261
Accumulated depreciation 2EME (84,487)  (320,110) (423,557)  (18,190)  (846,344)
Net book amount REFE 27,578 105,873 1,751,519 90,947 1,975,917

(a) Depreciation charges were charged to administrative expenses during
the year ended December 31, 2020 and 2019.

(a) REBEZZT-_TFR-FT-NAFIT+ZA=+—
HIEEE  WEBRAATHEAX -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Sle ABEBHEME (R)

7 LEASES 7 HE
(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (a) TEHEEEBRERNS
balance sheets -6
The consolidated balance sheets show the following amounts EHEEAGBRITUTHEEREN
relating to leases: ©F

As at December 31,

R+=-—BA=+—8H
2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-NF
usb USD
EYH EP
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Properties I 1,633,824 1,843,078
Lease liabilities HEaE
Current BN &R 295,702 270,123
Non-current JERNER 1,623,045 1,800,872
1,918,747 2,070,995
There was no additions to the right-of-use assets during the REE-_ZE_TEF+_A=+—H1t
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: USD68,093). FE FREEETYEEN(ZZE—AN

% : 68,093%7T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

7 LEASES (Continued) 7

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income show
the following amounts relating to leases:

HEw

(b) géﬁéﬁﬂﬁlﬁ‘é%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ@%

EHEERERIIRATEREGEN
TR

Year ended December 31,

BE+-A=+—-BHLEFE

2020 2019
—BE-EF —E-NF
usbD USD
EY EV
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets TREEENTTERS
Properties LIES 313,095 289,512
Interest expense (included in finance costs)  # B (G ABFEAA) 114,026 114,612
Expense relating to short-term leases HEHRHEERENMY
(included in administrative expenses) GTATTHRAX) 25,055 33,411

The total cash outflow for leases during the year ended
December 31, 2020 was USD425,178 (2019: USD359,761).

REBEE_FT-_TF+_A=+—HL
FE LHEEZHESsRLLER
425,178% 70 (Z T — L4 : 359,7613%
JL) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Sle AGHEIISSRERMEE (4)

8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 8 BEEE
Game
intellectual
properties Computer
and licenses software Total
R A
RErAfE B4 #ast
UsD uUsD uUsbD
EYH EYH E3
Year ended December 31, 2020 BE—_ZE_FTH
+=ZA=+—HLFE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 1,849,360 13,462 1,862,822
Additions NE 213,000 5,745 218,745
Amortisation (Note (a)) By (M3 (a)) (469,254) (7,041) (476,295)
Impairment charge (Note (b)) ER X (Mi3E(b)) (1,197,113) = (1,197,113)
Currency translation differences EmE s 10,186 485 10,671
Closing net book amount FRIEEFE 406,179 12,651 418,830
At December 31, 2020 R-B=-ZEFE+=-A=+—H
Cost AR 3,700,214 51,079 3,751,293
Accumulated impairment Z2:HRE (1,328,335) - (1,328,335)
Accumulated amortisation St (1,965,700) (38,428) (2,004,128)
Net book amount BREFEE 406,179 12,651 418,830
Year ended December 31, 2019 BE-_FE—h=E
t=A=t-ALEE
Opening net book amount FYIREFE 2,294,452 21,872 2,316,324
Additions NE 341,846 — 341,846
Amortisation (Note (a)) i (s (a)) (655,724) (8,130) (663,854)
Impairment charge AR (128,920) - (128,920)
Currency translation differences ERnE =R (2,294) (280) (2,574)
Closing net book amount FRIEEFE 1,849,360 13,462 1,862,822
At December 31, 2019 R-B—-hhE+=-A=+—8H
Cost R AN 3,463,798 42,176 3,505,974
Accumulated impairment 2:HEE (128,558) - (128,558)
Accumulated amortisation RETEEEY (1,485,880) (28,714) (1,514,594)
Net book amount REZEE 1,849,360 13,462 1,862,822

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

8

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

(a)

Amortisation charges were expensed in the following categories
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income:

8

BIEE @
(a) BWBEARAHSEURENRIUTE
RIST8 :

Year ended December 31,

BE+-A=+—-BHLEFE

2020 2019

—E-EHF —T-NEF

usbD UsD

Ep =7

Cost of revenue AN 319,143 475,991
As a reduction to revenue YE B AR 150,111 179,733
Administrative expenses 1TERAX 7,041 8,130
476,295 663,854

Of total impairment charge, during year ended December
31, 2020, Shenzhen Qianhai Huanjing Network Technology
Co., Ltd. (“Qianhai Huanjing”), the licensor, had expressly
and unilaterally terminated a series of intellectual property
licensing agreements entered into with the Group, which these
agreements had an original expiry date of 30 June 2023. As
a result, the Group was not able to use the related intellectual
properties and recorded a full provision of impairment charge
amounted to USD1,179,747 which respect to the carrying value
of the unamortised upfront license fee during the same period.

(b) HRERXAES REE-_ZT_TF
TZA=+—HLEEFE  REAFINE
AEARPERRARAR (A8
) BAMEMEE S R I EAREER T
W EEAMBERRERS  MZEH
EHNREEBREMAE T _=ZFR A=
T8 - Bt AEEREEE AR
EERE - 0B B BRI 3E oK 0 8 A AR A
ERNEREESS2BRENBHB
1,179,747 T °
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

Classification of financial assets at FVOCI

Financial assets at FVOCI comprise:

Equity securities which are not held for trading, and which the Group
has irrevocably elected at initial recognition to recognise in this
category. These are strategic investments and the Group considers
this classification to be more relevant.

During the year ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Group did
not have any investment in debt securities.

Equity investments at FVOCI

Equity investments at FVOCI comprise the following:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

BAREBEFEEESEHTA
HizrHKENWEmMEE

AAEBEFEEEHEHFAH
EHBENEREEZSE

A%Fﬁﬁgﬂﬁ“éﬁﬁ]\ﬁ@%ﬁw
CREERRE

& ¥

H+>““T

W 1E R & B AL E D R0 TR T Al
1388 A LL B B N BE R B IR AN RE 55 = b 578
FNEEIERE  MASRERRUESNERE
Y] °

RBE-Z-ZF+-_A=+—RLFE &
EIIEEHF%“ ESKE o

B0 AMEEH BB AR
o El SR AR E
BRAnBEASAEEHFTAREMEEKED
BRAREBFBATRE

As at December 31,

R+=A=+—8
2020 2019
—EIEF —T—NF
usbD usD
£ ET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Listed securities LTS
FingerTango Inc. (Note (a)) BRREBIERER AT (M) 1,164,245 963,185
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

9 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (Continued)

Equity investments at FVOCI (Continued)

(a) The Group acquired approximately 0.6% of common stocks
of FingerTango Inc., a company listed in Hong Kong which
is principally engaged in the development, operation and
publishing mobile game business in the PRC.

The following table presents the changes in financial assets at

BRAREBEFTEEESFHTA
Htt2EKWEMEREE @)

BRAAEBEITEEHEEHTAH

2 EWBFENRERE &)

(a) AEEDKEELHBERERADN
0.6% M EER - ZAFEES L
TR B BT - BRI R
BT o

TREJEARBEAEEHLEEHTA

FVOCI: Ht2EK=ENeREELEH -
As at December 31,
R+=A=+—H

2020 2019

—BECEF —E-NF

uUsD usD

E3 ET

As at January 1 EA H— 963,185 2,670,518
Gain/(loss) recognised in other Hith 2 ﬁuﬁl SHERM U (E18)

comprehensive income 201,060 (1,707,333)

As at December 31 R+=ZA=+—8 1,164,245 963,185
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

10 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORIES

10 REREAITNEMTA

As at December 31,

R+=—B=+—8H
2020 2019
—E-BE —E—NEF
uUsD UsD
EPH e
Financial assets EMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost REER AT ENSREE
— Trade and other receivables — B MEMEWIE CTEE
(excluding prepayments and deposits) T EZS) 8,811,602 16,157,394
— Cash and cash equivalents - REeRREEEY 26,914,401 25,320,274
— Short-term deposits — BHATF K 5,000,000 -
40,726,003 41,477,668
Financial asset at FVOCI BEAnBAEFTEEHESHTA
Hih2ERENSBHEE
— Investment in equity securities — RBRAEBHFIEE 1,164,245 963,185
Financial liabilities cHEeRE
Liabilities at amortised cost REHEN AT ENRE
— Trade and other payables and accruals — B REMENKIBMNESTER
(excluding salary and staff welfare (TBRiEENHeRETER
payables and taxes payable) N IEHFIIE) 5,192,840 4,666,865
Lease liabilities HEa’ 1,918,747 2,070,995
7,111,587 6,737,860
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 11 KRB ARKIKRE
Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Group as at December 31, AEER-Z-ZFR-_T-NF+_A=1
2020 and 2019 are set out below: —HAMBRARFEET ¢

Issued and Equity interest

Place and date of paid-in capital/ held as at
incorporation/ Kind of legal registered December 31,  Principal activities and
Company Name establishment entity capital 2020 and 2019  place of operation
b S 23
R=B-NE
By ERTRES +-A=+-8
NAER BB E R AE ERERER E%/3ARMER FENRE IEXBREEHH
Directly owned
EREAR
Digital Hollywood International ~ BVI/November 25, 2014 Limited Liability usb100 100% Investment holding/BVI
Limited (‘Hollywood BVI") Company
Digital Hollywood International ~ #£BE %S / BREMAT 10057 REER / RBRIES
Limited ([ Hollywood BVI]) —Z-mF
+—F=f%R
Proficient City Limited (‘PCL”) BVI/January 25, 2011 Limited Liability UsD50,000 100%  Operation of web-based and mobile
Company games/Global markets, mainly in
North American market
Proficient City Limited ([PCL)) ~ ABEZ#S / BREMAT 50,0005 7C BEMERTHEE 20mE  £2
—E——F ElETS
—A=t+aA
Proficient City Hong Kong Hong Kong/December 17, Limited Liability HKD10,000 100%  Investment holding/Hong Kong
Limited (‘PCL HK") 2018 Company
Proficient City Hong Kong B/ ERELRT 10,0007 RERR /B
Limited ([PCL HK]) —Z-N\F
+ZAt++H
Angame Inc. ("Angame”) BVI/July 5, 2005 Limited Liability Usb100 100%  Operation of mobile games/mainly in
Company Malaysia
Angame Inc. ([ Angame ) RBRELES/ BEREMLAF 1003 7T LETHEE/ TEESRAS
—ZZRE+TATA

PEHREBHEEGRART T _TFEFIR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Sle ABEBHEME (R)

11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)y 11 R B R RINKRE @)

Issued and Equity interest

Place and date of paid-in capital/ held as at
incorporation/ Kind of legal registered  December 31,  Principal activities and
Company Name establishment entity capital 2020 and 2019  place of operation
R-B-%F
k=B-N§
KL BRTRES +-A=+-B
DEER RIL%RAH ERERER g5/ EMER BENRE IEEBREEHE
Indirectly owned
BiEEs
Game Hollywood Hong Kong Hong Kong/December 5,  Limited Liability HKD1 100%  Operation of online games/mainly in
Limited (‘Hollywood HK”") 2014 Company Hong Kong, Taiwan and Vietnam
Game Hollywood Hong Kong BE/Z2-NET BREAAHA 1587 LEMGES/ T2EEE AERY
Limited ([ Hollywood HK]) —AnA 3
Now To Play Game Limited Hong Kong/March 29, Limited Liability HKD10,000 100%  Operation of web-based game overseas/
(“Now To Play Game”) 2011 Company mainly in North American market
Now to Play Game Limited e/ _E—F BREERA 10,0007 7T BEFERE /B FEELEDS
([Now To Play Game]) =A=thB
BMNEREENFRERAR The PRC/May 13,2015 Limited Liability USD2,000,000 100%  Technical support services/the PRC
(Guangzhou You Lai Company
Information Technology
Company Limited,
“Guangzhou You Lai")
BMERERMEERAA mE/-T-RF BREARAT 2,000,0005 7 Rifi xRS/ PE
(TEMER]) LA+=H
IRBELEERBEERAR The PRC/July 17,2015 Limited Liability RMB2,000,000 100%  Investment holding/the PRC
(Beijing You Tang Information Company
Technology Company
Limited, “Beijing You Tang")
FREEEEMBERR HE/ ZE-hF BREMARE  AKR%2,000,0007 REER
(MHEmEE]) tA++H
EMEREZEENRERA The PRC/March 6, 2013 Limited Liability RMB1,000,000 100%  Development of mobile games/the
(Guangzhou Zhang Ymg Company PRC
Kong Information Technology
Company Limited, “Zhang
Ying Kong")
BMEREESREBER, hE /= BREALE  AR¥1,000,0007 RETRES/ TE
(1£mE]) ZAKA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)y 11 R B R RINKRE @)

Issued and Equity interest

Place and date of paid-in capital/ held as at
incorporation/ Kind of legal registered  December 31,  Principal activities and
Company Name establishment entity capital 2020 and 2019  place of operation
RZZZ2F
R=Z-n%
FRRL, ERTRES +=B=t-H
DEER BB RAE TEEREER g5/ EMESR BENRE IEXBREEHH
EMFEAEREHRIEARADLE  The PRC/June 12,2010  Limited Liability RMB1,270,000 100%  Marketing and technical support
(Guangzhou Suiyue Niandai Company service/the PRC
Software Technology
Company Limited,
“Guangzhou SYND”)
ENRAEREMHREERAR  +E/Z2-%F BREMARF  AR¥1,270,0007 mHEEHEREN RS/ FE
(TEMmEAER]) ~ATZA
ERBRESREERAR The PRC/November 14,  Limited Liability RMB1,000,000 100%  Investment holding/the PRC
(Beijing You Lai Information 2014 Company
Technology Company
Limited, “Beijing You Lai")
FREREEMEERAA HmE/ ZF-RF EREERAR  AK1,000,0007 RERR,/$E
(MR T—A+TmA
Notes: The Company has set up a structured entity, Epic City Limited(“Share M ARARBERY —K&BIEEREpic City
Scheme Trust”), solely for the purpose of administering and holding Limited (IR EIEE]) - EREEER
the Company’s shares for the Share Option Scheme (Note 17), the HEXRRAISBEREASFENORS (M5
Company has the power to direct the relevant activities of Share 17) » ARRBEERBRODFTEEEMAERE
Scheme Trust and it has the ability to use its power over Share ) WHgHEROTEETERRNUTE
Scheme Trust to affect its exposure to returns. Therefore, the assets ERRER - At - BROFTEIETINEERE
and liabilities of Share Scheme Trust are included in the Group’s BEEHINAERMEERER - MEMBFAEHR
balance sheet and the shares it held are presented as a deduction in T ASERE AR A ST B 45 B BV AR (9 251 B R
equity as shares held for the Share Option Scheme. Ao
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

12 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet are as

12 REFERTNIRE
RABEERERNEROSENT :

follows:
As at December 31,
R+=—BA=+—8H
2020 2019
—E-EBH —T-NEF
usbD uUsD
E3 ET
Associate i /NG|

Set out below are the details of the associate of the Group. The
associate as listed below has share capital consisting solely of
registered capital, which is held directly by the Group.

Details of investment in an associate as at December 31, 2020 and

LA 5 A S B & A RO E R o T SO 51 R
BRAMBRAESEEMRA - FRFEMERAR
MAREEESE -

RZBZZEFR-_FT-—NF+-_A=+—8R

2019: —REFERRINIRE RIS
Place of business/ % of ownership Nature of the ~ Measurement
Name of entity country of incorporation interest relationship method
BEEER EEnY EMALER FEREEBDLL(%) BEME FEAE
FBEERAERAF (Shanghai Jiying Technology The PRC 20 (ii) and (iii) Equity
Company Limited, “Shanghai Jiying”) (i)
PERERHRARAR ([ LERED () i 20 (ii) B (i) #n

(i) Shanghai Jiying is principally engaged in the production and
operation of virtual reality recreational machines.

(ify  The Group has designated a member in the Board of Directors
which enables the Group to exercise significant influence
in Shanghai Jiying through the participation in operational,
investing and financing actions. Consequently, Shanghai Jiying

has been accounted for as an associate.

Shanghai Jiying is a private company engaged in the game
operation and there is no quoted market price available for its

equity.

(iii) There were no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s

interest in the associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

12 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 12 REFE R RINRE &)

Movement of investment in associate is analysed as follows: REFERRIRIRENZ BTN T -

Shanghai Jiying
LBERE

Year ended
December 31,
2020

Year ended
December 31,
2019

LHEFE IEFE

usbD USD

EH eV

At beginning of the year £ - 640,233
Impairment charge (Note (a)) RERZ (M) - (652,596)

Currency translation differences BmEERE - 12,363

Carrying value FREE - -
(a) During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Group assessed the (a) REE_Z-NAF+_A=+—HILEFE K

performance of Shanghai Jiying and considered the related investment SEFE LEEBENRE - YRREHRER
AErE - B R E AR EBRESFED

EEVERERE -

to be irrecoverable and therefore, the entire amount of the investment in
associate was fully provided for.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Sle ABEBHEME (R)

13 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 13 IRIEFREH
The analysis of deferred income tax assets and liabilities is as BLEMERNEERBRNDFTAT :
follows:

As at December 31,

R+=—B=+—8H
2020 2019
—E-EHF —T-NEF
usbD UsD
EPH e
Deferred income tax assets: EEFRIS T EEE ¢
— to be recovered within 12 months — B 128 A Rk E — 11,779
Deferred income tax liabilities: REFTBRAE -
— to be recovered after more than 12 months ~ — ¥ #B:8121E A & U @ - -
— to be recovered within 12 months — #1218 A Ak E - (5,757)
- (5,757)
Deferred tax assets — net EER T E R - 6,022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

13 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Movement in deferred income tax assets without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax

jurisdiction is as follows:

13 IEZEMEH @)

EEFRSHAEENEE (N5 A —HH% DA

R AR AR EE) T

Contract
liabilities Provisions Total
ARERE BE et
UsD UsD UsD
EH EP0 E0
Year ended December 31, 2020 BE_Z_ZTHF
+-—HA=+—-HLEFE
At beginning of the year REH 11,779 - 11,779
Charged to the income statement Mk B W& (11,902) = (11,902)
Currency translation differences R ME =R 123 - 123
At end of the year RER - - -
Year ended December 31, 2019 BE_Z—-NF
+—HA=+—-HLEE
At beginning of the year REH 73,357 100,518 173,875
Charged to the income statement 31k & % (61,108) (100,797) (161,905)
Currency translation differences BB E =5 (470) 279 (191)
At end of the year RER 11,779 - 11,779
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Sle ABEBHEME (R)

13 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 13 IEEFRFH )
Movement in deferred income tax liabilities without taking into RIEFBHBENEE (T RE—RB A
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax R ANRAERIEL) T -

jurisdiction is as follows:

Changes in
fair value
of financial
Contract assets at
costs FVOCI Total
RAREE
STEEHZE
STAHMEE
U 5 By &
EEZAR
BRI BEEZE st
usbD usbD uUsbD
EYH EYH E
Year ended December 31, 2020 BE-E-=F
+ZA=+—-HLEE
At beginning of the year REA (5,757) - (5,757)
Credited to other comprehensive FFAE M2 E RS
income
Credited to the income statement sF AU =R 5,817 - 5,817
Currency translation differences BRI R (60) = (60)
At end of the year RER - - -
Year ended December 31, 2019 BE-_Z—-h#E
+ZHA=+—HLEE
At beginning of the year REH (34,682) (21,339) (56,021)
Credited to other comprehensive FFAE M2 ER R
income - 21,339 21,339
Credited to the income statement FFAMER R 28,867 - 28,867
Currency translation differences B BmE 58 - 58
At end of the year RER (5,757) - (5,757)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

13 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

13 IEEFREHR @

Deferred income tax liabilities of USD586,000 (2019: USD590,000)
as at December 31, 2020 have not been recognised for the
withholding tax and other taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries established in the PRC.
Such amounts are permanently reinvested. Unremitted earnings
totalled USD11,726,000 (2019: USD11,794,000) as at December 31,
2020.

As of December 31, 2020, the Group did not recognise deferred
income tax assets of USD998,000 (2019: USD624,000), in respect
of deductible temporary differences and cumulative tax losses
amounting to USD6,989,000 (2019: USD4,563,000) in total, as it
is uncertain that future taxable income will be available in those
subsidiaries against which the tax losses can be utilised. Of the
tax losses amounting to USD2,880,000, tax losses amounting to
USD16,000, USD6,000, USD393,000 and USD709,000 will expire in
2022, 2023, 2024 and 2025, respectively. The remaining tax losses
amounting to USD1,756,000 have no expiry date.

14 TRADE RECEIVABLES

MR-ZE-_TE+-_A=+—R0 TERETHE
Fh B BK 32 RO BT BB A B A Ak BB L B R FE A 9 FB 3T
Tt I H A B B R RIE ST A5 71 & 15586,000 %
Tt (ZZ— % : 590,000%7T) - BELED
BAEKABRE RZEZTF+_A=1—
HHAREE H & 5|4 £511,726,000E 0 (=ZF
— A4 11,794,000 7T) ©

RZZ_TF+-_A=+—8" zxy%ljtﬂﬁ%
AR E R = 2 A #£6,989,000% T (=

— N4 : 4,563,000 7T) mz%fmi%%%aﬁﬁ
RIEIE R T & E 998,000 T (— T — N 4F -
624,000%70) AT TEEZENE R A
B AR IR FE AR B a2 AF FA B A B 18 T DA 8 ©
£ %8 42,880,000 TR EEEF - B
&51816,000%E 7T - 6,000 7T - 393,000 7T
K&709,000E TN R T =__F - =
ZFECCENER-TAFEH BT
7 E5181,756,000 = T EE| I E -

14 B 5 BWRIE

As at December 31,

R+=—A=+-A8

2020 2019

—BE-EF —E-NEF

usbD uUsD

ES ET

Trade receivables (Note (a)) B S W FIE (it (a)) 4,812,624 5,181,194
Less: allowance for impairment of trade o B S BB TERE RS (T (b))

receivables (Note (b)) (3,530,020) (2,946,572)

1,282,604 2,234,622

EREHEEBRL

TECRFEFR
.|.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

14 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a) Trade receivables are arising from the development and (a)
operation of online game business. The credit terms of trade
receivables granted to the Platforms and third party payment
vendors are usually zero to 120 days and zero to 30 days,
respectively. Aging analysis based on invoice date of the gross

trade receivables at the respective balance sheet dates is as AT
follows:
As at December 31,
R+=—A=+—H
2020 2019
—EIRF —E-NF
usbD uUsD
EH ET
0-30 days 0Z30H 497,510 866,395
31-90 days 31290H 397,996 1,026,677
91-180 days 91%2180H 631,658 451,415
Over 180 days @180 H 3,285,460 2,836,707
4,812,624 5,181,194
(b) As at December 31, 2020, trade receivables of USD3,530,020 (by RZZ=ZZTF+-_A=+—H BFE

14 B S EWFIE @

B 5 BRI B AR SR R
REE - T FERE=TNFRB 4
EENE SRR EREIRARTE S A
ZE120HRTE30H - REBBHE
BENE S RBUSAAEEZAYNE

(2019: USD2,946,572) were impaired. Movements on the
Group’s provision for impairment of trade receivables are as
follows:

I F 183,530,020k T (=T — NF :
2,946,5723 1) BIRE - AEELE S
JEMGR BRI ERTER B 2 E 8T ¢

As at December 31,

R+=A=+-—8

2020 2019

— —ThE

usbD USD

ES EL

At beginning of the year REW] 2,946,572 1,635,576

Provision for trade receivables B SRR 513,351 1,384,675
Receivables written off during the VBRI T U Bl i P 6F A 35 B9

year as uncollectible FEU R IE (20,567) (73,679)

Currency translation differences BB E =R 90,664 -

At end of the year PR 3,530,020 2,946,572
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

14 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)

(Continued)

The provision for impaired receivables has been included in
“Net impairment losses on financial assets” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Information about the impairment of trade receivables and
the Group’s exposure to credit risk, foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk can be found in Note 3.1.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

14 EZENRFIE

(b)

(c)

(%)

ERENERFANBEESAAHD
i EEN [ EREERERBEFEIA
R o

BHE D EWTORRE R A S E P
WEERR - SNERRRFERRNE
Kt AT2RIRESA -

AEENE HREFIBENREET AT
FIEHEHE -

As at December 31,

R+=A=+-8

2020 2019

SEE —T-nE

uUsD usD

£7 £7

usD xET 3,040,456 3,566,235
RMB AR 1,730,854 1,575,905
HKD BT 41,314 39,054
4,812,624 5,181,194

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the fair value of trade
receivables approximated their carrying amounts.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date
is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned
above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

(d)

BHREBHEEERAT

RZZEZTFR=_ZT—NF+ZA=+
—A ERERRBHAAEBERERR
HEERS -

AEERBE A PAXNRARNEERR

AR EFERI KRN REE - A%
B E A AR R E RS -

4

ZETFFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

15 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

15 B R EMEWRRIE

As at December 31,

B+=—A=+—8
2020 2019
—E-BE —E—NEF
uUsbD uUsD
EPH e
Included in non-current assets FAEREBEE
Prepayment for equity investments (Note (a)) A ETER X (KisE(a)) 3,550,000 3,550,000
Prepayment for game development TERL TR R 98,540 268,518
Prepayment for license fees (Note (c)) FET 8 AR (HEE(c) - 700
Deposits e 65,851 62,355
3,714,391 3,881,573
Included in current assets SFARBEE
Receivables relating to payment channels BB R E 8 EUGROE (MR (b))

(Note (b)) 7,427,108 13,825,857
Prepaid royalty fees (Note (c)) TEfThRAEE (MisE(c)) 6,185,258 6,343,579
Prepaid advertising charges FENEEER 51,934 107,466
Prepaid server rental expenses TR RREEERS 14,590 95,188
Deposits (to be recovered within 12 months) &% (#1218 A RUkE) 2,911 2,642
Others HAh 101,890 96,915

13,783,691 20,471,647
17,498,082 24,353,220

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

15 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

(a)

(c)

Two prepayments for equity investments:
Prepayment of USD50,000 was for the right to equity purchase
of certain shares of a company engaged in game operation.

On April 20, 2018, Hollywood BVI made a prepayment to
purchase the shares to be issued by Nouveau Capital Partners
Corp. (“Nouveau”), which was established with limited liability
in accordance with the laws of BVI, and it is principally
engaged in investment holding, at a total consideration of
USD3,500,000. As at the date of this report, to the best of the
Directors’ knowledge, Nouveau held approximately 16.27% of
the issued share capital in Bright Idea Life Company Limited
(FBAEERNDBR2AR], “Bright Idea Life”). Bright Idea Life is
a company established with limited liability in accordance with
the laws of Taiwan district, which is principally engaged in the
provision of cultural and art promotion services via multimedia,
animation, games and virtual reality technologies. The right to
purchase of the shares will be effective when the Investment
Commission in Taiwan approves this transaction. Pursuant
to the arrangements, Hollywood BVI has the right to require
Nouveau to refund all the initial aggregate principal amount of
USD3,500,000 in the condition that the conversion cannot be
executed due to relevant approval cannot be obtained from
Investment Commission in Taiwan.

Receivables relating to payment channels mainly represent
the balances in PayPal and Skrill (formerly Moneybookers), for
cash collection from game players for games operated on the
Group’s websites.

As at December 31, 2020, prepaid royalty fees mainly
represent the prepayments of approximately USD6,185,000 to
certain game developers. During the year ended December 31,
2020, impairment totalling USD91,699 (2019:USD1,381,954)
was made for certain prepaid royalty fees and license fees as
the corresponding games were taken offline during the year
ended December 31, 2020 (Note(23)).

15 FRNRKREMEYRFRIR @)

(a)

(b)

(c)

BHREBHEEERAT

FRIR IR A% B B FART AR -
REE-RUFEREENQRE TR
10 HO A HE R B ) TR 350,000 7T

R-ZT—)\FEMA=-+H  Hollywood
BVI3LEE E FNouveau Capital Partners
Corp.([Nouveau] ' —RIREEBE
THEEERIEZNEREETRY
BRRF]) BITHWRMDIELERNR - 42
K {E/%3,500,000% 7T - HEAMER
B - MEEAA - NouveauFBTEA L
ERHDBR AR ([TEAEE]) B8#1T
BRAR#I16.27% - THEEE A —KIBE
BEEEZENIMNARAG  FERS
FRZIFE  BE  EELKERRER
TR pt s R B E RS - £ 82K
BZEGHAERIBERSE  BERMHH
R EER - RIBAARHE  WRXK
BERREREZEENEEBILEMS
st L 77 - BlHollywood BVIA#
ZkNouveauREIE &V A HE5E
3,500,000 °

FBANHRRENERFEBEZER
PayPal } Skrill (A1#&Moneybookers) A
AR - DRRAEBE AL 2 EN
i F TR MR AR & o

R-ZZE-ZTF+=-_A=+—8  FBfFR
BEEFE2HERS TESFAEPBMNNR
1H#76,185,000% 7 - REE-T-F
F+-—A=+—BLFE COHETHE
RHIREE RSFEERIEL 491,699
FEL(ZZE—NF 1,381,954 1) 1
BE RESEBEERCREE_2=
TFEF+-A=F+—BUHEFET#H -

—TTFFR
.|.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

S AGHES RN ()

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS

16 RERBREEEYREREX

As at December 31,

R+=—BA=+—8H

2020 2019

t ot 33 —T-NF

usb USD

ES EL

Cash at banks HITRE 26,914,401 25,320,274
Short-term deposits (Note (a)) REIE R (FisE(a)) 5,000,000 -
31,914,401 25,320,274

(a) The effective interest rate for the short-term deposits with
original maturity dates over three months as at 31 December
2020 was 0.45% (2019:Nil).

Cash and cash equivalents and short-term deposits are
denominated in the following currencies:

(a)

R-EBE-_ZTF+_A=+—HEIHA
BBE-EANEHERNERFNERS
0.45% (ZZ—NF : ) »

BeRBReSEWAREHRERIAT
FIEHEEHE -

As at December 31,

R+t=-—HA=+-8H

2020 2019

—E-EHF —ZT-NF

usD uUSsD

E$ E

usD ES 9,005,958 2,720,068
RMB N 1,032,341 1,402,565
HKD BT 18,697,015 18,963,565
EUR o 3,179,087 2,234,076
31,914,401 25,320,274

The conversion of USD denominated balances into foreign
currencies and the remittance of such foreign currencies
denominated bank balances and cash out of the PRC
amounted to USD7,189,017 (2019:USD1,363,158) are subject
to relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.
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ASMNESHER A£87,189,017F L (=&
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

17 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARES HELD

17 BARMEBRESTEFEENR

FOR THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The total authorised share capital of the Company comprises
4,000,000,000 ordinary shares (2019: 4,000,000,000 ordinary
shares) with par value of USDO0.001 per share (2019: USDO0.001 per
share).

As at December 31, 2020, the total number of issued ordinary
shares of the Company was 2,000,000,000 shares (2019:
2,000,000,000 shares) which included 144,224,041 shares (2019:
147,560,007 shares) held under the share incentive scheme. They
have been fully paid up.

A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital and
shares held for the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

il

AN R R 4805 E IR AN B 4E4,000,000,000 A%
L@ (ZZF— N4 : 4,000,000,000% i@
M) - MEKREER0.001ET (T :
Fh%0.00137T) °

R-ZE-_ZTFE+-_A=+—8 ARADEH
TE B4 A2,000,000,0000 (—F—H
% :2,000,000,0000%) - BIEF D B EF
1A H144,224,041 ety (T — N4
147,560,007 %) ° 2250 B HUBIRK

AARRARGBRES B HEORMN 2
BT -

Shares held

Number of for the Share

shares in issue Share capital Option Scheme

MEBRESE

ERTROEE &N FEORG

uUsD usD

E ESH

(Note (a))

(MtzE(a))
At December 31, 2020 RZEZTF+=A=+—H 2,000,000,000 2,000,000 (144,224)
At December 31, 2019 RZZE—NF+=—A=+—8H 2,000,000,000 2,000,000 (147,560)

PEHREBHEEGRART T _TFEFIR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Sle AGHEIISSRERMEE (4)

17 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARES HELD
FOR THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(Continued)

(a)

According to the written resolutions of all the members of the
Company dated November 2, 2015 and capitalisation issue
dated November 24, 2017, an aggregate of 150,000,000
ordinary shares were authorised and reserved for the issuance
to the employees, directors of the Group and other persons
pursuant to the share incentive scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) adopted by the Company.

The Company has appointed Core Trust Company Limited
as the trustee to assist with the administration and vesting
of options granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.
On May 27, 2017, the Company allotted and issued shares
to Share Scheme Trust, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Core
Trust Company Limited, which are or will be used to satisfy
the options upon exercise. The shares held by Share Scheme
Trust are presented as a deduction in equity as shares held for
the Share Option Scheme.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Share Scheme
Trust transferred 3,335,966 ordinary shares of the Company
(December 31, 2019: the Share Scheme Trust transferred
2,439,966 ordinary shares of the Company) to the grantees
exercising of the awarded shares (Note 19).
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17%$&ﬁﬁ&%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%&
()

(a)

REBHA-Z—AF+-—AZBAR
AEERENETMRARELBAR-E
—tF+ A TEBEMNERCET
& #£150,000,000 i % i it B & K4 &
R ARE A D BRI 2B 5+ 3
(MEkwEtE ) BT TAKENER
BEERHEMAL

KRAAEZfECore Trust Company
Limited/EA S AUGBHER REBIR
BRERET AR A ERE - N T —
tEFRAZ+T+HR - KAFA2RKRGE
%1zt (Core Trust Company Limited
MWEEMBEAR) REREITRG - A
VA S FR A R B AR R E T T R N T
B o R EEERFA R M AR E R
EETEIFENRN 25| AR -

REBEE-_ZT-TF+_A=1+—HLF
E - RO EEEE RTEESERRG
Ry A #5:823,335,966 R A A E B
B(ZE—HE+_A=+—8: &H
SHENEFE D 2,439,966 LA N Al
%) (FIzE19) ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

18 RESERVES 18 f#fE
Share-based Currency
Share payment Statutory translation Other
premium reserves reserves difference reserves Total
NRHBHER
RGBE HWERERE EERE EBREZE AthiiE @t
usb usb usb usb usb usD
E in in in in Ee
Balance at January 1, 2020 R-B-2%-f-H
s 35,803,000 4538203 045312 (934257)  (2338,754) 38,104,404
The Share Option Scheme BRET 2 = = - - - -
- Exercise of share options ~{TiE ik 401,651 (389,583) - - = 12,068
- Value of employee services - EEREEE - 652,680 - - = 652,680
Net loss from changes in fair value of BALEEGEEAEY
financial assets at fair value through AR ARG SR
other comprehensive income EENAREEED
BEFE - - - - 201,060 201,060
Currency translation differences SRMERE - - - 599,596 - 599,596
Balance at December 31, 2020 RZIEZEE
+oASH-BMEE 36205551 4801300 045312 (334,661)  (2,137,694) 39,569,808
Balance at January 1, 2019 R-B-h%-A-H
ket 35,603,166 3,245,184 945,312 (858,426) (652,760) 38,282,476
The Share Option Scheme EREE
- Exercise of share options -7 kiE 290,734 (284,415) - - - 6,319
- Value of employee services - @Eﬁﬁﬁ%fﬁ - 1577434 - - - 1577434
Net loss from changes in fair value of BRAGEEHEAAEY
financial assets at fair value through FARMZERENS R
other comprehensive income BEMRABEED
EiEEE - - - - (1685994)  (1,685,094)
Currency translation differences ERMERE - - - (75,831) - (75,831)
Balance at December 31, 2019 RZB-hE
+ZB=1T-BHEs 35,893,900 4,538,203 945,312 (934,257)  (2,338,754) 38,104,404

BHREBHEEERAT

ZETFFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

18 RESERVES (Continued)

(a) In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC and the Articles of Association of subsidiaries located
in the PRC, it is required to appropriate 10% of the annual
statutory net profits after offsetting any prior years’ losses
as determined under the PRC accounting standards, to the
statutory surplus reserve fund before distributing the net
profit. When the balance of the statutory surplus reserve fund
reaches 50% of the share capital, any further appropriation is
at the discretion of shareholders. The statutory surplus reserve
fund can be used to offset prior years’ losses, if any, and
may be converted into share capital by issuing new shares to
shareholders in proportion to their existing shareholding or by
increasing the par value of the shares currently held by them,
provided that the remaining balance of the statutory surplus
reserve fund after such issue is no less than 25% of share
capital.

19 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

On February 15, 2018, 21,419,696 and 28,078,914 shares options
were granted under the Share Option Scheme, with exercise price
of HKD0.0074 and USDO0.0074 per share, respectively. The vesting
period of the share options granted is three years and the vesting
schedule is 33.33% after twelve months from the grant date, 33.33%
after 24 months from the grant date, and 33.34% after 36 months
from the grant date respectively.

The directors have used the Binomial option-pricing model to
determine the fair value of the share options as at the grant date.
Key assumptions, such as risk-free interest rate, expected volatility
and dividend yield, are required to be determined by the directors
with best estimates. The risk-free interest rate, expected volatility
and dividend yield were assessed to be 2.65%, 54.58% and 0%,
respectively.
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18 % @

(a) MREBHBESBBEARERREZNTERA
WM B ARMESERAR - ROk
s AT - AP RR R B4R
EENEAEEFERER  SFEE
EAENM10%EEXERBRATEE
EAEREB AR EREIRANE50%
B 2R EHE - PEEHRBRRBIER
E e AERABRABEE R ARNEHEESF
EmEE (mE) N ERRRRER
P £ 91 1) B 3R B 1T 8 A 4 B8 38 BN 1 5 B
A5 A BB (A h B8 RS BN - M
BETEREEBBABENAERITFE
A 25% e

19 ARG HERIK

RZZE—NE-A+HHB 21,419,696 &
28,078,914 17 g AR 4 7 BIAR IR BB AR 51 &I
o 1TEED R AEER0.0074% 7T 120.0074
EL o FIBEHERENEBESHA=F " m
EEERNARBRHANET-—EAKREE
33.33% ' REHBHE-TUREARERS
33.33% ' kRELAHR=TNEALERB
33.34% °

ERCEA AR EEUREERRE
REREEMNAAEE - EFEUKEBER
EEERRNE - BEKRE RS ERETER
& o MERFIE - FHENE KW R D FIFT
732.65% ~ 54.58% 0% °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

19 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 19 URGBAEBRTR @
Movements of the number of share options outstanding and their MARITEBRENE B Z 8 RZEHERERNE
related weighted average exercise prices are as follows: BT EEN T ¢
2020 2019
ut- St 222 —Z-NE

Average Number of Average Number of

exercise price shares under exercise price shares under

per share option the option per share option the option

SHBRETIITER BREATROBE SHEWETOTEE BREETRNHE

As at January 1 USD0.0047 39,977,019 USD0.0046 42,655,123
®-A—H 0.0047% 7T 0.0046%7C
Exercised USD0.0046 (3,335,966) USD0.0036 (2,439,966)
[EEd 0.0046 % 7T 0.0036 7T
Forfeited USD0.0074 (212,758) USD0.0074 (238,138)
2RI 0.0074% 7% 0.0074%7T
As at December 31 USD0.0047 36,428,295 USD0.0047 39,977,019
W+=B=+-H 0.0047 %7 0.0047%7T
Vested and exercisable at 31 December USD0.0047 22,357,406 USD0.0048 11,697,615
Rt=A=+-AEREBRATE 0.0047%7 0.0048% 7T

PEHREBHEEGRART T _TFEFIR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

20 TRADE PAYABLES

20 EZEARIR

As at December 31,

R+=—A=+—H
2020 2019
—EIRF —ZET-hnF
uUsbD uUsD
EY SV
Third parties E=7 3,866,255 3,095,087

Trade payables primarily related to the revenue sharing collected
by payment channels and Platforms which is payable to cooperated
game developers according to respective cooperation agreements.
The credit terms of trade payables granted by the vendors are
usually 30 to 90 days.

The aging analysis of trade payables based on invoice date is as

B 5 RN SRR E B BN FORE N F & AT
WADBSEEW  FHSERBREBEEWAE
W T EEEEFEE - RIGHERET
ME RN FREES R B30E90R -

BHRNFIANRES T REERAH) M

follows: T
As at December 31,
R+=B=+—H

2020 2019

g Jomg 23 —T-NEF

usbD usD

EH ET

0-90 days 0Z90H 573,828 754,509
91-180 days 912180H 602,035 675,408
181-360 days 181£360H 1,179,648 867,897
Over 360 days HiE360H 1,510,744 797,273
3,866,255 3,095,087
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B ORI RME ()

20 TRADE PAYABLES (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are
denominated in the following currencies:

20 ESENARE @

REENE RN FANEREEDIATIIES

B -

As at December 31,

R+t=A=+—H

2020 2019

—ECERF —E-NEF

usbD usb

E ETT

usD ETT 3,737,235 3,028,167
RMB AR 129,020 66,920
3,866,255 3,095,087

As at December 31, 2020, the fair value of trade payables
approximated their carrying amounts (2019: same).

21 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

R-ZB-FBEFE+-_A=+—0 BHEMNKE
WAABEAEE@MERE (ZE— % : M

R) -

21 HENRERESER

As at December 31,

R+=A=+—8

2020 2019

—EC-EF —ZT-hF

usbD uUsbD

E3 ET

Other taxes payable H b pE ST IR 194,094 420,665
Salary and staff welfare payables Ef#HekEIEHN 1,200,743 1,065,499
Accrued professional service fees EETHEERBE 524,651 683,134
Advertising payables ENESE 215,784 284,467
Rent payable EAEe 178,763 162,583
Others HAh 407,387 441,594
2,721,422 3,057,942

BREPEEFRAR —T

+
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

21 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

(Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s other payables and accruals
are denominated in the following currencies:

21 HENRERESER @

A& E e E A RN IR R B R B B AREE TS

AT EREFHE

As at December 31,

R+=A=+-—8
2020 2019
—ECERF —E-AF
usbD USD
Ex ET
(UR]] E 1,092,671 1,519,987
RMB AR 1,619,175 1,530,336
EUR BT 9,576 7,619
2,721,422 3,057,942
As at December 31, 2020, the fair value of other payables R-E-ZF+-RF=+—08  EtEMNKE
approximated their carrying amounts (2019: same). MAnBEEHLKREAEMES (ZZ—14F 8

@) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

22 OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET

22 Hitp (B518), WHEFE

Year ended December 31,
BE+-A=1+—HLEE

2020 2019
—E-BF —E—NEF
uUsbD uUsD
EY SV

Other gains Hg gz
Reversal of contract liabilities (a) AHBERE () 352,537 -
Government grant BT A AL 70,964 134,333
Foreign exchange gains, net FE 54 W o )5 58 - 125,890
Others Hib 41,382 47,279
464,883 307,502

Other losses HigsiE
Foreign exchange losses, net bE 5 B 1R F 58 (497,069) -
Others Hith (2,046) (396)
(499,115) (396)
Other (losses)/gains, net Hit (&518)  WE B8 (34,232) 307,106

(a) During the year ended 31 December 2020, one of the games
operated by the Group was terminated and therefore, the
Group bore no further obligation to the game players of such

game.

(a) MBE_Z-_THFF+_A=+—HLF
B REBEEMES —FTERBEK
1k B AEETBYEZREEOTTR

AEE—SEE -

PEHREBHEEGRART T _TFEFIR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B Ot R R M = ()

23 EXPENSES BY NATURE 23 BUHBETHREX
Expenses included in cost of revenue, selling and marketing FTARK - HEREHME - TBAX - HE
expenses, administrative expenses, research and development ¥ - @& EREREREREARNEE QR
expenses, net impairment losses on financial assets and impairment W& 2 BERNREZ AT

of investment in an associate are analysed as follows:

Year ended December 31,

BE+-A=+—-BHLEFE

2020 2019
—EEH —ZE—-hF
uUsbD uUsD
EPH =7
Commission charges by Platforms and third  F& RE=HNAREERER
party payment vendors IR REER 6,116,321 7,020,942
Employee benefits expenses (Note 24) EERAMAE (H5E24) 4,797,454 6,105,823
Impairment charge BRI X
— Impairment of trade receivables (Note 14)  — & ZEUFERE (H:E14) 513,351 1,384,675
— Impairment of prepayment for royalty — e B R ET R B T FURE
fees and license fees (Note 15) (MI5E15) 91,699 1,381,954
— Impairment of investment in an —REEEREINIRE ZRE
associate (Note 12) (FIzE12) - 652,596
— Impairment of intangible assets (Note 8) -\ EERE (:Es) 1,197,113 128,920
— Impairment of other receivables — Hih IR IERE 13,878 78,347
Advertising expenses and technical BEERAZ R RS &
service fee 4,086,918 2,281,479
Servers rental expenses RREAER 1,334,050 1,479,562
Depreciation and amortisation e Ry 1,001,356 1,143,500
Auditors’ remuneration ZEAN N &
— Audit services — BT IRH 442,400 532,400
— Non-audit services — JEEA IR 6,300 6,300
Other professional service fees Hib ZERBE 708,251 514,404
Royalty fees hi i & 165,669 362,590
Office charge BRATER 169,196 198,349
Travelling and entertainment expenses EIRRIREEF 64,323 82,161
Office rental expenses PAEHERT 25,055 33,411
Tax surcharges Bt 12,606 16,448
Other expenses HEmx 319,038 367,687
21,064,978 23,771,548
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

24 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 24 EERAMAX

Year ended December 31,
BE+-A=1+—HLEE

2020 2019

—E-EH —E-NF

uUsbD uUsD

E ET

Wages and salaries TERHS 3,744,508 3,735,655

Share-based payments (Note 19) AR D AERR AT (FHFE19) 652,680 1,577,434

Pension costs — defined contribution plans BESHRAE — ATEMHKEE

(Note (a)) (Hf3E(a)) 55,451 400,476
Other social security costs, housing benefits ~ Efbit @ REXAX « (EEREF KX

and other employee benefits EhiE BT 344,815 392,258

4,797,454 6,105,823

(a) Pension costs — defined contribution plans

(a) EEEHA — REHRKEE

Employees of the Group’s companies in the PRC are required AEEFRAFNESAL2ELRES

to participate in the social security, including a defined
contribution retirement scheme administered and operated by
the local municipal government. The Group contributes funds
which are calculated on a fixed percentage of 14% of the
employees’ salary (subject to a floor and cap) as set by local
municipal governments to each scheme locally to fund the
retirement benefits of the employees.

According to certain promulgations published by Ministry of
Human Resource and Social Security of the PRC on February
20, 2020 and June 22, 2020 respectively, the Group’s
subsidiaries operating in the PRC were qualified as “Small and
medium-sized enterprises” and are entitled to be exempted
from contributing to the social security, including the defined
contribution retirement scheme, from February 1, 2020 to
December 31, 2020.

AR RO TRAEEREENAE
HFCRIREE - REBBERTIIRMTT
TRERESEFIARERREF
14%MBEEE N (RETRELRS
B)FE  AREEMERKENEHRE

RIEFBEADERMEGREILD BN
ZEZTF_AZFTHEZZEZEER
AZ+ZH#HHETES  A5EHE
FREEENMHBRARFTEFNEEIN
B RZTZTF_A—HE=ZTZ=
TFEF A=+ —HEHEREHRE
SRR - HPpRREATEHICRAETE -

PEHREBHEEGRART T _TFEFIR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

24 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 24 EEEAMEX®@®

(Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year ended December 31, 2020 include nil
director (2019:nil). The emoluments payable to the remaining 5
(2019:5) individuals for the year ended December 31, 2020 is

(b) EERSHMAL

BE_T_FTF+_A=+—HLLF
- $%IE’]£%?%’%MA$IT’7
RER(ZZE-hF B -BE_T—
ZET-A=+—HILFE  EBHHT

as follows: 582 (ZZF—NF :5%8) ALHFH MM
-
Year ended December 31,
BE+-—A=+—HLEFE
2020 2019
—ECEH —ThF
uUsbD usbD
EH ET
Wages and salaries TERE® 220,625 242,031
Pension costs — defined
contribution plans BEZEMA — REHRREE 1,247 17,675
Other social security costs, housing Hib g RERAE - FEEF &
benefits and other employee benefits HEtiEBRF 9,988 18,960
Share-based payments VAR (7 B EL R 3R 444,792 893,944
676,652 1,172,610
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

24 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

(Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

24 EEEABEXZ®

(b) EEESFMAL @)

FENFLATEHE

Number of individuals
A
Year ended December 31,
BE+-A=+—HLEE

2020 2019
—E-EHF —T—NF
Emolument band FNE =

Nil — HK$1,000,000 £ —1,000,000/& 7T 1
HK$1,000,000 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,000 7T —2,000,000/%5 7T 4 4
HK$2,000,000 — HK$3,000,000 2,000,0007& 7T —3,000,000/% 7T - -
HK$3,000,000 — HK$4,000,000 3,000,0007% 7T —4,000,0007% 7T - -
5 5

During the year ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, neither
directors nor the five highest paid individuals received any

emolument from the Group as an inducement to join, upon

joining the Group, leave the Group or as compensation for loss

of office.

REBEE-ZT_TFR-_FT-NF+=A
=+—HIFE BMEEFIHEES
FMWATHAEEBKREEMEEH - (ER
MAREBEONFEERE - ITRIMAREEH
WH - tERBEER A S E S B E AR
B -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SOt Rk (&)
25 FINANCE COSTS, NET 25 B ARER
Year ended December 31,
BE+-A=+—HLEE
2020 2019
—EZEHF —E-NF
uUsD UsD
ES ET
Finance income B A
Interest income F A 6,045 21,651
Foreign exchange gains, net bE 5 W s 558 218,164 35,424
224,209 57,075
Finance costs B B A
Interest expense FERZ (114,026) (114,612)
(114,026) (114,612)
Finance costs, net R AN 110,183 (57,537)
26 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 26 FRi5FHiBEX
The income tax expense of the Group for the years ended December REBREZ T _ZEFLK_ZT—NF+=A
31, 2020 and 2019 is analysed as follows: =t+—BUEFENMEHAISTMT
Year ended December 31,
BE+-A=+—HLEE
2020 2019
—E-EF —T—NF
usbD USD
E EL
Current income tax BVERFT 1S E
— Overseas withholding income tax — BINEHFER 194,180 203,037
— PRC and Hong Kong —HEBERES - (177,259)
Deferred tax (Note 13) RIERITE (M15E13) 6,085 133,038
200,265 158,816
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

26 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Cayman Islands income tax

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of Cayman lIslands and accordingly, is exempted from
Cayman Islands income tax.

British Virgin Islands income tax

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the BVI, the company
incorporated in BVI are not subject to any income tax.

Hong Kong profits tax

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of
16.5% on the estimated assessable profits for each of the
years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019.

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax for the years ended
December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2020 are calculated in
accordance with the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. Under
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HKD2 million
of profits of qualifying corporation are taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HKD2 million are taxed at 16.5%. The profits of
corporation not qualifying the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The PRC Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”)

The income tax provision of the Group in respect of operations
in the PRC has been calculated at the tax rate of 25% on the
estimated assessable profits for the year ended December
31, 2020 and 2019, based on the existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

26 FIiSFHiEX @)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

BHREBHEEERAT

SRR MEHR

ARBRBREHRSHEBERRENRFSH
EEMRIMERRER IR - Bt
RARERLHNFASEBAEN -

KEELBEMEH

REBERBLELESHRLRP - RHE
B B2 2 B SRR M A SL ) 2 R B R BN T
AIFASH °

EBFEH
HE_ZT-_FTFR-F-NF+ZA=
T—HIEFE  BEHE16.5%%HaT
ERBEFHER B GRIBE -

HE-_T-NF+_A=+—HBERZ=Z
ZEF+ A+ —BLEFEE  BEF
ERBEDREMNSHMASGTE -
RBEFSHMES - AEREEGRER
8.25% KT R BLE N H2 A BB TAME
I - WiIR16.5% MR REM2 B BB T
A _ESBFIMTRIE - 46 S5 MR
B A B ) s T A R 12 16.5% 1) &
— B R INTIE o

PECEREHR ([REMSE
#1)
RBEEBBRAED - REREM - A&
B ERP RN EBTROMGHER
DEBE25%HBE_S_TFR_-F
—NF+-A=t+—BLEFENGE
AR FETHE o

—TTFFR
*.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

26 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Preferential EIT rate

Guangzhou You Lai was qualified as “Advanced Technology
Service Enterprises” in 2019 and was entitled to a preferential
income tax rate of 15% for the years ended 2020 and 2019.

Zhang Ying Kong was qualified as “Small Low-Profit
Enterprise” for the years ended 2020 and 2019 and was
entitled to a preferential income tax rate that was calculated in
accordance with the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. Under
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first RMB1 million of
profits of qualifying corporation are taxed 5%, and profits above
RMB1 million are taxed at 10%.

The PRC withholding income tax (“WHT?”)

According to the applicable the PRC tax regulations, dividends
distributed by a company established in the PRC to a
foreign investor with respect to profits derived after January
1, 2008 are generally subject to a 10% WHT. If a foreign
investor incorporated in Hong Kong meets the conditions and
requirements under the double taxation treaty arrangement
entered into between the PRC and Hong Kong, the relevant
withholding tax rate will be reduced from 10% to 5%.

During the year ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, the
Group does not have any plan to require its PRC subsidiaries
to distribute their retained earnings and intends to retain them
to operate and expand its business in the PRC. Accordingly, no
deferred income tax liability on PRC WHT was accrued as of
the end of each reporting period.

The Vietham WHT

The Group has subcontracted games to a platform operating
in Vietnam. According to the applicable the Vietnam tax
regulations, royalty fees generated from Vietnam are subject to
a 10% WHT.

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2020

26 FIiSFHiEX @)

(e)

(f)

(9)

BEELEREBR

BMBERN T —NFRE [ ® M
RGTHEIER  RZZZZFR=ZT
—NEFEAZF15%NERFEHE

ERENRZZE_TFR_TE-NFFE
FETNERFDE]  AIZHRFER
MRGIFTENEZAEHE - BEFE
MRS - & BHEBRS% T L s
FE1EBATRMNTIE  WIE10%H
MEMM1BEBTIA EFOFHE -

REIFEMAEH ([ '8 )

RBERNTERBESR - RPBEKZ
WARBL —ZTTNF-A—BZREL
B N A SN IR A E D IR UR — AR A
BM10% I TENTE o fin 5 F 8 FE M AL
TEHNEREE AT B EEE Z MR
VB ERBIROLZ IR TR LR
E o RIERBEIRREERE10%ERE
5% °

REBEE-_ZT_TFR_ZT-NF+=HA
=+—HIEFE  AEEWELATE
REEPBEMBEAR D RERE AR -
BEEREZERFARPRELE KA
REZER - At HEZHREHR - #©
R B TR 07 B B ) JE ST IR AE AT AR H
BfE-

g FEHIBE

AEBREEDET —EELREEED
Fa o RBEMUBHRBERN - B#E
EAENIREERBN10% M IERT -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SO B SRR MR (4)
26 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 26 FTEHBX )
(h) The Brazil WHT (h) EAEENH
The Group cooperates with a platform in Brazil. According to AEBE-FAEEANFEEEE - BRI
the applicable the Brazil tax regulations, income generated HRABAEBEEN - HEAEAEAHKA
from Brazil is subject to 10% remittance tax and 15% income TABIAN10% FE T 2 15% FTiS T - Bz
tax, which is withheld by the platform. FAEM -
The tax on the Group’s loss before tax differ from the A BB BB T AR B A B TR B A
theoretical amount that would arise using the statutory tax rate BLAEME25% S HNIEREHEEER
in the PRC of 25% as follows: U
Year ended December 31,
BE+-A=1t—HLEE
2020 2019
—E-EF ZE-NF
usbD USD
Ep e
Loss before income tax MRETEBAIEIE (3,438,715) (5,602,990)
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 25% B E25% T E M THIE (859,679) (1,400,748)
Effect of different tax rates available to HRARNERTRMER RS
different subsidiaries of the Group TRABENZE 314,905 854,247
Tax losses and temporary differences W AR FT S B B EE Y
for which no deferred income tax MGEERERER
assets was recognised 346,031 621,701
Effect of income tax rate changes FECE RS- i0p -2 - (122,312)
Income not subject to tax BARTRA (4,389) (25,386)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes RIS S A R AR 209,217 28,277
Overseas withholding income tax EHNEFIFTIS I 194,180 203,037
Income tax expense BB 200,265 158,816

PEHREBHEEGRART T _TFEFIR @
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

27 LOSS PER SHARE

Basic

Basic loss per share (“EPS”) is calculated by dividing the loss
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue less shares held for the Share
Option Scheme during the years ended December 31, 2020 and
2019.

27 BREE

X

REE_Z-_TFR_ZT—hhF+_A=+—
BIEFE  SREAEE ((SRER]) DK
NARHEE ATE(LEIBRR A BITR INE TS
LB EUR B B R B A R AT E -

Year ended December 31,

BE+-A=+—-HLFE

2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NF
ES e
Loss attributable to owners of the AT AEGEE (1)
Company (USD) (3,638,980) (5,761,806)

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue less shares held for the

B EATHY IR T 15 H R A BUR B
R RERT B A et (BI5E(a))

Share Option Scheme (Note (a))

— Basic EPS (in USD cents/share) — FREKEE (EILR)

1,855,371,418
(0.20)

1,850,176,135
(0.31)

(@) The EPS is determined based on that 1,855,371,418 (2019:
1,850,176,135) shares were the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue excluding the 144,628,582 (2019: 149,823,865) shares
which were the weighted average number held for the Share Option
Scheme for the year ended December 31, 2020, without taking into
account any shares which may be granted and issued by the Company
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.
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(a) BREBEENDRBERITNMEFHLBE
B8 451,855,371,418 1 (ZE— L5 :
1,850,176,135/) (TR EHE-T_TF
T A=+ BLEFERERENEZED
hniEF RS 144,628,582% (— T — N4 ¢
149,823,865/%) ) 5t H - EHR Pt RARFIR
PRI AR AR T B AT R I R B A TR AR D -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

27 LOSS PER SHARE (continued) 27

Diluted

The share options granted by the Company have potential dilutive
effect on the EPS. Diluted EPS is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue less shares
held for the Share Option Scheme outstanding by the assumption of
the conversion of all potential dilutive ordinary shares arising from
share options granted by the Company (collectively forming the
denominator for computing the diluted EPS). No adjustment is made
to loss/earnings (numerator).

BREE @

g

ARARRHNBRESSREBEBRAECHE(E
R o SEEEETISD BT S B hIRE T
B EORB B IR B A M BEITEIN BB
TEREMETE - MU DHRRAR TR ENBK
RFFELMMAECEELBRIOEER (5
HEKFEEREEBENS ) - BE &
M (F) WEIEHE -

Year ended December 31,

BE+-A=+—ALEE

2020 2019
g Jemg 23 —T-hEF
Loss attributable to owners of the RAREE AELEE (T
Company (USD) (3,638,980) (5,761,806)
Weighted average number of ordinary B BT E @R INE TSR
shares in issue less shares held BIRETT ERF ARG
for the Share Option Scheme 1,855,371,418 1,850,176,135
Adjustments for share options (a) IR EIEF R (a) — -
Weighted average number of ordinary Bt E B REE RN EmAR
shares for the calculation of diluted EPS N5 £ 1,855,371,418 1,850,176,135
— Diluted EPS (in USD cents/share) - SREEEE (EIL K (0.20) (0.31)

(@) The 36,428,295 (2019: 39,977,019) options granted and remained
unexercised are not included in the calculation of diluted loss per share
because they are antidilutive for the year ended December 31, 2020.

These options could potentially dilute basic loss per share in the future.

28 DIVIDEND 28

The directors of the Company did not recommend the payment of
any dividend for the year ended December 31, 2020 (2019: same).

(a) HREHmWARITHER 36,428,295 (ZF —
NEF £ 39,977,0191) BREHEBZ T —F
F+ZA=Z+—BILFERREFNE - FAit
R EEREEFER TS S SRRETE
R o ZEBREN KRR AT RS FFARER
&8 o

Hﬁ /%\
ARREBETEBKNEEZE_ZE-_FF+=-A
“+—BUEFEZEARE (ZZ—AF
) e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

29 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 29 BEREEN
(a) Cash generated from/(used in) operations (a) REmMEB (FTA)ERE

Year ended December 31,

BE+T-A=Z+-HLEE

2020 2019
“ECEF —T-NF
usbD usb
EYH EV
Loss before income tax MRETEBAIEE (3,438,715) (5,602,990)
Adjustments for: FATSEELAE
— Provision for trade receivables (Note 23) — B S RN IERE (M5T23) 513,351 1,384,675
— Impairment of investment in — REEREINIRE 2 RME
associate (Note 12) (MiFE12) - 652,596
— Impairment of other receivables — EtEYGRIERE 13,878 78,347
— Impairment of prepayment for royalty — REB RS EBRNIRE
fees and license fees (Note 15) (KF3E15) 91,699 1,381,954
— Impairment of intangible assets (Note 8) — EREERE (f:E8) 1,197,113 128,920
— Depreciation of property, plant and — ¥ BERERETE (H536)
equipment (Note 6) 362,077 369,867
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 7) — ERREENE (H:T7) 313,095 289,512
— Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 8) — B AERE (ixs) 476,295 663,854
— Loss on disposal of property, plant and - HEME  BERZERE
equipment (Note 6) (KizE6) 573 -
— Share-based payments — AR D AERET 652,680 1,577,434
— Interest income — FIEBWA (6,045) (21,651)
— Interest expense - FBH%Z 114,026 114,612
— Reversal of contract liabilities (Note 22) —&HBERE (HiT22) (352,537) -
— Foreign exchange gains/(losses), net —EHE (BE) F58 497,069 (125,890)
434,559 891,240
Changes in operating assets and liabilities REEERAEES
— Trade receivables — B S REMGRIE 527,684 (25,136)
— Prepayments and other receivables — B R E W FR0E 6,659,036 (6,725,432)
— Contract cost — AR 154,662 (76,006)
— Trade payables —BHEMNTIE 731,186 (39,320)
— Contract liabilities - &H8E (706,673) (298,292)
— Other payables and accruals — Bt FIERESER (801,881) 451,572
Cash generated from/(used in) operations mEmE /(AR 6,998,573 (5,821,374)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

29 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 29

(b) Net cash reconciliation

This section sets out an analysis of net cash and the
movements in net cash for each of the periods presented.

BEREBER @

(b) BEFHER

RERE DI % 2 AR ROB S FEA T

RESFESS -

Year ended December 31,

BE+-A=+—-HLEFE

2020 2019
—EEH —T-NEF
usbD USD
Ep e
Net cash REFHE
Cash and cash equivalents BehkIReEEY 26,914,401 25,320,274
Short-term deposits RHIF K 5,000,000 -
Lease liabilities HEaE (1,918,747) (2,070,995)
Net Cash B F8 29,995,654 23,249,279
Cash and cash equivalents and Re kB EEY REHFR
short-term deposits 31,914,401 25,320,274
Gross debt — fixed interest rates HBIETE — BEEME (1,918,747) (2,070,995)
Net Cash BeFr 29,995,654 23,249,279

PEHREBHEEGRART T _TFEFIR @
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

29 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 29 BEREER =)
(b) Net cash reconciliation (Continued) (b) REFHEHER @
Liabilities
from
financing
Other assets activities
MEED
HitEE BENEE
Cash and
cash Short-term
equivalents deposits Leases Total
REeRFALEEY BEER HE w@st
usb usb usb usb
En En En En
Net cash as at RZZB-hn&5-A—-8HW
January 1, 2019 BeFE 32,598,242 - - 32,598,242
Recognised on adoption RRBERE RS R HR
of IFRS 16 - - (2,266,806) (2,266,806)
Cash flows BehE (7,273,757 - 234,772 (7,038,985)
Acquisition - leases Yo - HE - - (68,093) (68,093)
Foreign exchange adjustments iEarakd (4,211) - 29,132 24,921
Net cash as at RZB-AE+-A=1-H
December 31, 2019 WREFE 25,320,274 - (2,070,995) 23,249,279

Net cash as at January 1, 2020 RZE-Z5-A-HW

ReRE 25,320,274 - (2,070,095) 23,249,279

Cash flows Rehe 1,193,870 5,000,000 292,297 6,486,167

Foreign exchange adjustments i 5 3% 400,257 - (140,049) 260,208
Net cash as at R-ZZB-BF+-A=1+-H

December 31, 2020 WESSE 26,914,401 5,000,000 (1,918,747) 29,995,654
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

30

31

32

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Key management personnel compensations

The compensations paid or payable to key management personnel
(including directors and CEO) for employee services are shown
below:

30

EDNCL P

FAREEE SR

HEERBENAENBREEEAL (21
ERENERNTE) WFBIIRAT

Year ended December 31,

BE+-A=+—-HLEFE

2020 2019
—E-EF —T—NF
uUsbD uUsD
E3 ET
Wages and salaries TERGS 201,092 229,658
Pension costs — defined BESNA — REHKETE
contribution plans 833 13,064
Other social security costs, housing benefits ~ Efbit € REXAX « (EEREF K%
and other employee benefits EtiEB R 7,933 11,971
209,858 254,693
COMMITMENTS 31 E&iE
Non-cancellable operating leases AAHERERE

From 1 January 2019, the Group has recognised right-of-use assets
for these leases, except for short-term and low-value leases, see
note 7 for further information.

BZZ-NF—A—B rEEEHZF
HE (EHREEEEERIN) HREAEE
B BRE—SENB2HMNET

As at December 31,

R+=A=+—H
2020 2019
g o33 —Z-hEF
usbD USD
EPH ET
Not later than 1 year TEM1E 11,063 7,589

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group is currently involved in a lawsuit of a series of intellectual
property licensing agreements against Qianhai Huanjing. The
outcome of this legal proceeding is undeterminable at the moment.
The directors do not expect that the outcome of this legal proceeding
will have a material adverse effect on the Group’s financial position
or results of operations.

32

HAREE

REBERE S Lt HRNEL)5E —E S MMERE
BREEGABFL - LIRRAMAER B RIRAE
E o BERRHIIAFL TG ARNEBNT BN
MBBERBELEEATMNZE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 33 A ARESESEXRLEBESE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

As at December 31,

R+=—A=+-—H
2020 2019
—ECEH —T-NF
uUsD USD
Ep e
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Financial assets at FVOCI BEAnBEFTEEEZEHTA
HEtn2ERENEmEE 1,164,245 963,185
Investments in subsidiaries RSB ARMEE 455,449 455,449
Prepayments FERTR 50,000 50,000
1,669,694 1,468,634
Current assets REBEE
Amount due from subsidiaries e BT B A FIFRIA 28,069,553 26,762,838
Prepayments and other receivables TEAT R e H At FE W R TE 56,229 51,622
Cash and cash equivalents RENBRESEED 17,696,213 18,461,072
45,821,995 45,275,532
Total assets HWEE 47,491,689 46,744,166
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EmRAafE
Equity E=
Share capital A& A< 2,000,000 2,000,000
Shares held for the Share Option Scheme PEERRERT EIR ARG (144,224) (147,560)
Reserves e 39,701,489 38,835,681
Accumulated losses R EE (3,103,672) (2,893,832)
Total equity R 38,453,593 37,794,289
Liabilities =L
Current liabilities REAE
Amount due to subsidiaries FES I B A R FIE 8,900,553 8,689,066
Other payables and accruals Hib R IE R ETE A 137,543 260,811
Total liabilities weE 9,038,096 8,949,877
Total equity and liabilities HmERRAE 47,491,689 46,744,166
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of AAFIMEEABEEEHESeR T ——4
Directors on March 30, 2021 and was signed on its behalf. Bt BiETRAEE .
£= )
Director Director
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(a) Reserve movement of the Company

B ALAFAEERBERRREEE

(&)

(a) XA EEE

Reserves
%
Share-
based
Accumulated Share payment  Fair value
losses premium reserves reserves Total
LR 5
HBEMR NREE
RitBE R RE i 1 Fohy
usbD usbD usbD usb usD
EYH EY Y EY Y
Balance at January 1, R-—E-_FEE—-H—H
2020 g3 (2,893,832) 35,893,900 4,538,203 (1,596,422) 38,835,681
Losses for the year FERNEE (209,840) = - - -
The Share Option Scheme 8 fiEs+ 2]
— Exercise of share — (TP R
options - 401,651 (389,583) - 12,068
- Value of employee —EERBEE
services - - 652,680 - 652,680
Change in fair value of BArRBETEEEED
financial asset at FVOCl s A Hih 2 EUEA SR
BEZAREBEZY - - - 201,060 201,060
Balance at December 31, N—ZFE_FF
2020 +=BA=t+—-R&% (3,103,672) 36,295,551 4,801,300 (1,395,362) 39,701,489
Balance at January 1, R-ZE-NE—-HF—A8
2019 g3 (863,570) 35,603,166 3,245,184 89,572 38,937,922
Losses for the year FEREE (2,030,262) — - - —
The Share Option Scheme 2
— Exercise of share — (TP R
options - 290,734 (284,415) - 6,319
— Value of employee — EERBEE
services - - 1,577,434 - 1,677,434
Change in fair value of BARLEBESERES
financial asset at FVOCl st A Hip 2 EUEM SR
BEZAREEED - - - (1,685,994) (1,685,994)
Balance at December 31, RN-—ZF—HF
2019 +=ZA=t+—-RA&H (2,893,832) 35,893,900 4,538,203 (1,596,422) 38,835,681
e
/|\
HHROEHEEFRAT —T-TFFH

+



+

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND HK LISTING RULES)

(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments

The remuneration of every director and chief executive for the
year ended December 31, 2020 is set out below:

4 EEEANEN=E (FBAAK

Bl (
(4

56622%) 55383f% - A A
BESAEER) R (5

622G E) R &EB LR AR
ERNHKE)

(a)

EERBSITRABHMHE

SEEEREBETRABRBE 2=
THE+-A=+—BIEFEOFHRG
mF -

Other
social
security
costs,
housing
benefits Pension
and other cost-defined

Directors’ employee contribution
Name fees Salaries(i) benefits plans Total
Hittte
RERA -
EERF
REMES BEERAF -
®E BEzwd #F2() BA  REMKGE @t
usb usb usb usb usb
Y EY EY Y n
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Lu Yuanfeng (Note ii) RER I 5% A& (B eEii) - 59,288 2,889 305 62,482
Mr. Huang Guozhan (Note iii) BB A (P aEiii) - 51,684 2,522 264 54,470
Mr. Huang Degiang (Note iv) BB LA (HsEiv) = 51,684 2,522 264 54,470
Independent Non-executive Directors B FHITEE
Ms. Imma Ling Kit-sum (Note vi) ERZLIE (HEvi) 12,894 - - - 12,894
Mr. Li Yi Wen (Note vi) FHE (Mekvi) 12,771 - - - 12,771
Mr. Lu Qi Bo (Note vii) ERUR S (vl 12,771 = = - 12,771
38,436 162,656 7,933 833 209,858
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND HK LISTING RULES) (continued)

(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

The remuneration of every director and chief executive for the
year ended December 31, 2019 is set out below:

4 EEEANEN=E (FBAAK
Bl (56$622F) 53831% - A A
(KEBEESNNHZER) RO (5
622GE) REB LHRAMKR
ERNERE) @

() EERBEETHRAENME
(&)
BREEELERITBRABREBE T —
NETZA=T—BIEFENFHF S
m

Other
social
security
costs,
housing
benefits Pension
and other  cost-defined

Directors’ employee  contribution
Name fees  Salaries(i) benefits plans Total
Hibit @
RIS -
EREFR
HifgE BEEHAK -

#4 20 H() B AREEGE s
usb usD usb usD usb
ey i i I ey

Executive directors BITES

Mr. Lu Yuanfeng (Note ii) RER I 5% A& (B eEii) - 59,415 4,153 4,494 68,062

Mr. Huang Guozhan (Note iii) HEE & (R FEi) - 51,793 3,909 4,285 59,987

Mr. Huang Degiang (Note iv) BiEm LA (H5iv) - 51,793 3,909 4,285 59,987

Independent Non-executive Directors B FHITEE

Mr. Darren Raymond Shaw (Note v) BRTE 4 52 A (P sEv) 13,087 - - - 13,087

Mr. Li Yi Wen (Note vi) FHE (Mekvi) 25,213 - - - 25213

Ms. Imma Ling Kit-sum (Note vi) ERZLIE (i) 25,213 - - - 25213

Mr. Lu Qi Bo (Note vii) ERUR & (MEvii) 3,144 - - - 3,144

66,657 163,001 11,971 13,064 254,693

PEHREBHEEGRART T _TFEFIR @
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI RME ()

34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND HK LISTING RULES) (continued)

(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Salary paid to a director is generally an emolument paid or
receivable in respect of that person’s other services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company or its
subsidiary undertakings.

(i) Mr. Lu Yuanfeng was appointed as director and re-designated as
executive director as well as chief executives of the Company and
chairman of the Board on November 24, 2014.

(iii) ~ Mr. Huang Guozhan was appointed as director and re-designated
as an executive director of the Company on November 2, 2015.

(iv)  Mr. Huang Degiang was appointed as director and re-designated
as an executive director of the Company on June 28, 2017.

(v) Mr. Darren Raymond Shaw were appointed as independent
non-executive directors of the Company on November 24, 2017
and resigned as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on July 5, 2019.

(vi) Mr. Li Yi Wen and Ms. Imma Ling Kit-sum were appointed as
independent non-executive director of the Company on November

24, 2017.

(vii) Mr. Lu Qi Bo was appointed as independent non-executive
director of the Company on October 3, 2019.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, no directors waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments (2019: nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

34 BENEFITS AND

INTERESTS OF

DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND HK LISTING RULES) (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by the
directors in respect of their services as directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries or other services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company or its
subsidiary undertaking during the year ended December 31,
2020 (2019: nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

During the year ended December 31, 2020, no payments or
benefits in respect of termination of directors’ services were
paid or made, directly or indirectly, to the directors; nor are any
payable (2019: nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

No consideration was provided to or receivable by third parties
for making available directors’ services subsisted at the end of
or at any time during the year ended December 31, 2020 (2019:
nil).

4 EEEANEN=E (FBAAK

5l (56622%F ) 55383 1% * A &)
(IREEERNZER) RH (5
622GE) REB LTHRAR
EHRHE) @

m)§$mﬁﬁﬁﬂ

RBE-Z-ZTF+-_A=+— EILtE
& ]IHTH”EF%LK ERE N
%hﬁiﬁ’lﬁfﬁ%‘k%iﬁ BAR Tﬁﬁffﬁ

REMEBAEBNEMRE MO
§$‘}Z§$F§H&E’J RAEN (ZF—N
FE) -

w)§$m%¢ﬁﬂ

RBE_Z-_ZFT_A=+—HLF
E - $E%ﬂ?¢§$ﬁkﬁﬂ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ$xiﬁﬁ&
A1 =S SRR RIBZARF - TF
EATAI L UL FE S ORISR R (=T —
NE ) -

(d) RERHREERBEEE=FH
REHKE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AHEBREM T (H)

34 BENEFITS AND

INTERESTS OF

DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND HK LISTING RULES) (continued)

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans and

(f)

other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities with
such directors subsisted at the end of or at any time during the
year ended December 31, 2020 (2019: nil).

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

No other significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
or at any time during the year ended December 31, 2020 (2019:
nil), except for the transactions disclosed in Note 29.
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